NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION In the Matter of: LOUISIANA POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY (Waterford Steam Electric Station, DOCKET NO. 50-382 Unit 3) PAGES: 1294 thru 1530 DATE: March 30, 1982 AT: New Orleans, Louisiana ALDERSON ____ REPORTING 400 Virginia Ave., S.W. Washington, D. C. 20024 Telephone: (202) 554-2345 8204070413 820330 PDR ADDCK 05000382 PDR

	UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
	2 NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION
	3 ATOMIC SAFETY AND LICENSING BOARD
	A STORIC ON DIT AND DICENSING BOARD
	4 In the Matter of:)
2345	5) LOUISIANA POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY)
554-	6) Docket No. 50-382
(202)	7 Unit 3))
0024	8
3	Room 223, East Courtroom
ź	Court of Appeals Building
1	0 New Orleans Lewisians
ž.	New Orleans, Louisiana
I ISH	1 Tuesday,
≥ 5 1	March 30, 1982
	The above-entitled matter came on for further
1 1	hearing, pursuant to adjournment, at 9:00 a.m.
Nall I	4 BEFORE
1	5
- 1	SHELDON J. WOLFE, Chairman
Š,	Administrative Judge
÷ 1	7 Atomic Safety and Licensing Board
U.F.	Washington, D. C. 20555
	8
	DR. HARRY FOREMAN
	Administrative Judge
2	0 Box 395, MAYO
	Minneapolis, Minnesota 55455
2	1
2	2 DR. WALTER H. JORDAN
	881 West Outer Drive
2	Oak Ridge, Tennessee 37830
2	4
2	5

A

.

.

.

r.

1294

A	P	P	E	A	R	A	N	C	E	S	
			-	**		**		~	-	~	

On behalf of the Applicant, Louisiana Power & Light Company:

SHAW, PITTMAN, POTTS and TROWBRIDGE ERNEST L. BLAKE, JR., Esq. JAMES B. HAMLIN, Esq. 1800 M Street, N. W. Washington, D. C. 20036 1295

On behalf of the Regulatory Staff:

SHERWIN TURK, Esg. GEARY S. MIZUNO, Lsg. SUZANNE BLACK Office of the Executive Legal Director U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D. C. 20555

On behalf of the Joint Intervenors:

LYMAN L. JONES, JR., Esq. P. O. Box 9216 Metairie, Louisiana 70005

-and-

LUKE FONTANA, Esq. 834 Esplanade Avenue New Orleans, Louisiana

B

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

:8

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

									i.	1296
	1				<u>c</u> <u>o</u>	<u>N</u> <u>T</u> <u>E</u> <u>N</u>	<u>T</u> <u>S</u>			
	2	WITN	ESSE	s	DIRECT	VOIR DIRE CRO	SS REDI	RECT H	RECROSS	BOARD EXAM.
	3	IRWI	N D.	J. BROS	S					
	4	By	Mr.	Jones	1298					
345	5	BŶ	Mr.	Blake		13	45			
554-2	6									
4 (202)	7									
. 2002.	8									
V, D.C	9									
NGTON	10									
VASHL	11									
NG. W	12									
IUILDI	13									
ERS B	14									
EPORT	15									
W. , RI	16									
ET, S.	17									
STRE	18									
HTT 0	19									
30	20									
	21									
	22									
	23									
	24									
	25									

.

2

1			EXHIBIT	2		
2	NUMBER:			IDENTIFIED	RECEIVED	WITHDRAWN
3	Joint Inter	rvenors':				
4	No.	22		1300	1336	
5	No.	23		1301	1336	
6	No.	24		1301	1336	
7	No.	25		1302	1336	和思想
8	No.	26		1303	1336	
9	No.	27		1304	1336	
10	No.	30		1305		1306
11	No.	31		1343	1344	

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

•

		1298
1-1 ged	1	PROCEEDINGS
•	2	9:00 a.m.
	3	JUDGE WOLFE: All right. Mr. Jones.
۲	4	MR. JONES: Your Honor, at this time I would
	5	like to call Joint Intervenors' next witness, Dr. Irwin Bross.
	6	JUDGE WOLFE: Would you remain standing,
	7 7	Doctor, and raise your right hand.
6006	8	Whereupon,
	9	IRWIN D. J. BROSS,
C.FO.	10	called as a witness by Counsel for the Joint Intervenors,
U A SHI	11	having first been duly sworn by the Chairman, was examined
A SNI	12	and testified as follows:
•	13	JUDGE WOLFE: Please be seated.
TERS	14	DIRECT EXAMINATION
RPOR	15	BY MR. JONES:
MS	16	Q. Dr. Bross, do you have before you at this
EET	17	time a copy of a document entitled, "Sworn Statement
H STR	18	of Dr. Irwin D. J. Bross"?
17 00	19	A. I do.
	20	Q. Have you had the opportunity to review this
	21	document, Doctor?
	22	A. Yes.
-	23	Q. Was this document prepared at your direction
0	24	and in consultation with you?
	25	A. Yes, it was.

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

.

	1	Q. Are the answers to the questions which are
	2	contained therein true and correct, to the best of your
	3	knowledge, information and belief?
	4	A. I believe so.
45	5	Q. Are there any changes which you have found to
554-23	6	be appropriate with relation to the statement or the
(202)	7	questions, or any other type of
20024	8	A. Well, you have pointed out a couple of
(, D.C.	9	changes. I don't know if this is how I should introduce
NGTON	10	the point or not, but they are acceptable to me.
ASHD	11	MR. JONES: Your Honor, if you please, at
ING, W	12	this time, with regard to Question 18, we would move the
BUILD	13	Board to correct a typographical error, "reasonable,"
LERS 1	14	and substitute therefor the word "measurable," it having
(EPOR	15	been pointed out yesterday, of course, that there was a
S.W., B	16	typographical error in the citation of the quotation.
EET, S	17	At this time, also, Your Honor, we would move
H STR	18	the Board with regard to Question 29 to delete the word
300 7T	19	"high" in the first line of Question 29.
	20	Your Honor, at this time, also, if I may, I
	21	would like to go off the record for one clerical matter.
	22	JUDGE WOLFE: Yes.
	23	(Discussion off the record.)
	24	BY MR. JONES:
	25	Q Dr. Bross, are you also familiar with the

1299

	1	publication entitled I'm sorry with a paper entitled,
	2	"A Simple Mechanism for Synergism in Genetic Damage from
	3	Low-Level Radiation or Chemical Mutagens"?
)	4	A. Yes.
345	5	Q Are you the author of that paper, sir?
2) 554-2	6	A. That's a draft.
4 (202	7	Q. Are you familiar with a paper strike that.
. 2002	8	MR. JONES: I would note for the record,
N. D.C	9	Your Honors, that that is the document which has been
TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WAS JINGTON	10	designated as Joint Intervenors' Exhibit 22.
	11	(The document referred to was
	12	marked Joint Intervenors' Exhibit
	13	No. 22 for identification.)
	14	BY MR. JONES:
	15	Q. Dr. Bross, are you familiar with a paper
	16	entitled, "Why the Assurances That the Water is 'Safe'
	17	Have No Scientific Validity"?
	18	A. Yes, that's testimony.
300 7	19	Q. Okay, and are you the author of that testimony?
	20	A. Yes.
	21	MR. JONES: For the record, Your Honors, I
	22	would like to point out that the exhibit just referred to
	23	is Exhibit 23 on Joint Intervenors' exhibit list.
	24	11
	25	11

-

1300

		1301
+	1	(The document referred to was
D	2	marked Joint Intervenors' Exhibit
	3	No. 23 for identification.)
	4	BY MR. JONES:
	5	Q. Dr. Bross, are you also familiar with the
	6	documents entitled, "Letter to H. Ray Patterson, Editor in
	7 (202)	Chief of Health Physics," dated September 16, 1981?
0.000	8 8	A. Yes.
	9	Q. Are you the author of that letter?
NOTON	10	A. Yes.
110 Y A	HSV	MR. JONES: Let the record reflect that the
300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, V	12	document which the witness has referred to is that
	13	document designated as Joint Intervenors' Exhibit 24.
	14	(The document referred to was
	15	marked Joint Intervenors' Exhibit
	16	No. 24 for identification.)
	17	BY MR. JONES:
	18	Q. Dr. Bross, are you familiar with the document
	19	entitled, "Direct Estimates of Low-Level Radiation Risks
	20	of Lung Cancer at Two NRC-Compliant Installations"?
	21	A. Yes.
	22	Q. Can you tell the Board what this paper
	23	represents?
Ð	24	A. I believe that what was submitted was in
	25	fact a photocopy of the galleys, because the actual reprints

	1	are not available. The paper is March 1982.
	2	It's just been published. As a matter of
	3	fact, I have not seen the actual journal itself, because I
	4	don't think they send it out quite that fast to us; but
345	5	this is what is in the journal.
) 554-2	6	Q. Okay, and what journal is this
4 (202	7	A. "Yale Journal of Biology and Medicine."
. 2002	8	JUDGE FOREMAN: Could you pull the microphone
N, D.C	9	just a little closer to you?
OTON	10	THE WITNESS: Are you having trouble hearing
WASHI	11	me?
ING, 1	12	JUDGE FOREMAN: It will be fine to sit back,
BUILD	13	but just pull the microphone close to you.
TERS	14	THE WITNESS: I was a little afraid that if
REPOR	15	I was going to get too close to i', I would overload it.
S.W. , 1	16	JUDGE JORDAN: You are just right now.
tEET,	17	THE WITNESS: Would you please tell me I
H.S.H.	18	have no awareness of these things if I get off my
300 71	19	location.
	20	MR. JONES: Let the record reflect that the
	21	document the witness has just referred to is designated
	22	as Exhibit No. 25 on the Joint Intervenors' exhibit list.
	23	(The document referred to was
	24	marked Joint Intervenors' Exhibit
	25	No. 25 for identification.)
		이 이 사람이 있는 것은 것은 것은 것을 하는 것을 수 있는 것을 수 있는 것을 하는 것을 수 있다.

•

•

1302

		1303
	1	BY MR. JONES:
	2	Q. Dr. Bross, are you also familiar with the
	3	document entitled, "The 1980 Reassessment of the Health
	4	Hazards of Low-Level Ionizing Radiation"?
2345	5	A. Iam.
2) 554-	6	Q. Can you describe for us briefly what that
24 (202	7	document represents?
2002	8	A. There was an invited presentation in
N, D.(9	Heidelberg.
INGTO	10	Q. All right.
WASH	11	MR. JONES: Let the record reflect that the
DING,	12	document which the witness has referred to is designated
BUIL	13	as Joint Intervenors' Exhibit 26.
RTERS	14	(The document referred to was
REPO	15	marked Joint Intervenors'
S.W. ,	16	Exhibit No. 26 for identifica-
REET.	17	tion.)
TH SI	18	BY MR. JONES:
300 7	19	Q. Doctor, are you also familiar with the
	20	document entitled, "A Dosage Response Curve for the
	21	One-Rad Range, Adult Risks from Diagnostic Radiation"?
	22	A. I am.
	23	Q. And are you the author or co-author of that
	24	paper?
	25	A. Co-author.

1

		이 같아요. 그는 것 같아요. 그는 것이 같은 것은 것이 같이 있는 것이 같아요. 것은 것은 것이 같아요. 것은 것이 같아요. 그는 것이 같아요. 그는 것이 같아요. 나는 것이 않아요. 나는 것이 같아요. 나는 것이 않아요. 나는 것이 같아요. 나는 것이 않아요. 나는 것이 않아요. 나는 것이 않아요. 나는 것이 같아요. 나는 것이 않아요. 나 나 않아요. 나는 것이 않아요. 나는 않아요. 나는 것이 않아요. 나는 않아요. 나는 않아요. 나는 것이 않아요. 나는 것이 않아요. 나는 않아요. 나는 않아요. 나는 않아요. 나는 않
L-7	1	Q. Was that paper published in "The American
•	2	Journal of Public Health" in February 1979?
	3	A. Yes.
•	4	MR. JONES: Let the record reflect that the
345	5	document described by the witness is Joint Intervenors'
554-2	6	Exhibit No. 27.
4 (202	7	(The document referred to was
2002	8	marked Joint Intervenors' Exhibit
N, D.C	9	No. 27 for identification.)
NGTO	10	BY MR. JONES:
WASHI	11	Q Dr. Bross, at this time are there any
, DNIG, 1	12	additions or amendments which you wish to add to your
BUILI	13	prefiled written tetimony?
TTERS	14	A. Well, I would like to include a paper referred
REPOF	15	to in the testimony, but somehow, inadvertently, I suppose,
S.W.	16	omitted from the list that you have given just now.
REET,	17	The paper which was published in the journal
TH ST	18	called "Investigative Radiology" in January-February 1980
300 7	19	is titled, "Cumulative Genetic Damage in Children Exposed
	20	to Preconception and Interuterine Radiation."
	21	It is by myself and Mr. Natarajan. It is
•	22	referred to in my testimony. It should have been in the
	23	list.
•	24	MR. JONES: Your Honor, we would at this time
	25	move to add the paper described by the witness as Joint
	1.1	

1304

Intervenors' Exhibit 30.

1-8

1

25

	10.11	그는 것 사내가 그는 것에서 그렇게 다 좀 걸렸다. 이것 방법을 가지는 것은 것이 가지 못했지? 않는 것 것 이렇게 물건했다. 것 같
	2	(The document referred to was
	3	marked Joint Intervenors' Exhibit
	4	No. 30 for identification.)
345	5	JUDGE WOLFE: You are just moving to add it
554-2	6	to your list at this time, requesting leave to add it to
1 (202)	7	your list?
2002	8	You are not moving the admission into evidence?
N, D.C.	9	MR. JONES: We would, further, subject
NGTCI	10	JUDGE WOLFE: Well, which is it, or both?
VASHi	11	MR. JONES: Actually, we're moving for both,
ING, 1	12	Your Honor.
BUILD	13	JUDGE WOLFE: Any objection?
TERS	14	MR. BLAKE: Judge Wolfe, I think that the
REPOR	15	Board should understand that Counsel were never even
S.W	16	informed of this until this very moment.
LEET,	17	I do not have a copy of this exhibit. I am
H STF	18	unprepared to take a position on it, and I think in view
300 71	19	of the weeks that we have spent talking about the
	20	admissibility of exhibits, and in fact as late ago as
	21	yesterday arriving at an agreement, at least between me
	22	and Mr. Jones, stipulating to the admissibility, I regard
	23	it as very bad.
	24	I will leave it at that, that Counsel couldn't

1305

even be apprised of the addition of an exhibit at this

juncture.

1

2

1-9

	3	because I haven't even seen the document.
. 20024 (202) 554-2345	4	JUDGE WOLFE: Mr. Turk.
	5	MR. TURK: I also oppose the admission of the
	6	referenced article. I have not seen it. I have never
	7	known that it was going to be a proposed exhibit.
	8	In view of the reasons stated by Mr. Blake and
N, D.C	9	in view of the awful history of late identification of
INGTO	10	proposed exhibits without Counsel really having time to
WASH	11	prepare for cross-examination, even on those proposed
DING,	12	exhibits which we've known about before today, I think
BUIL	13	this is a terribly late time to raise a new exhibit.
RTERS	14	MR. JONES: Your Honor, in view of the
REPO	15	positions taken by opposing Counsel, I would move for leave
S.W. ,	16	to withdraw the proferred exhibit.
REET	17	JUDGE WOLFE: All right, the motion to
IS H.L.	18	withdraw allowed. Proposed Joint Intervenors' Exhibit 30
300	19	is withdrawn.
	20	(The document referred to,
	21	previously marked for
	22	identification as Joint
	23	Intervenors' Exhibit No. 30,
	24	was withdrawn.)
	25	MR. JONES: Your Honor, I do believe that
		ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

I oppose it and I have to for the moment

and

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

21

23

20024 (202) 554-2345

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C.

the witness has some remarks to direct to the paper which 1 2 he mentioned, and I would move the Board at this time that the witness be allowed to make a supplemental statement 3 4 with respect to that question.

1307

JUDGE WOLFE: In other words, you are requesting leave for the witness orally to supplement his written direct testimony by testifying as to whatever the findings and/or conclusions were in this paper that was withdrawn as Joint Intervenors' Exhibit 30; is that correct?

> MR. JONES: That's correct, Your Honor. JUDGE WOLFE: Any objection? TURK: Yes, I do object. MR.

At this time I don't know what that paper says. I'm unprepared to cross-examine on the paper or on any additional direct testimony concerning the paper beyond that which was required to be filed in writing by March 9th.

19 We are now at hearing and for the first time 20 I hear that there's a request to file additional direct testimony not previously known to Counsel, upon which 22 Counsel could not have prepared for cross-examination.

There was a clear order requiring that 24 testimony be filed two weeks before hearing. In the 25 Commission's regulations in fact, the requirement is that



MR. TURK: To the extent that the additional article or any additional comments about the article might be relevant and come within the scope of direct testimony already filed, then it will be before us.

1309

5 But to expand beyond it at this time, I think6 is impermissible.

MR. BLAKE: Judge Wolfe, there are occasions when supplemental direct or additional direct is called for. I am at a loss at this point to react to Mr. Jones' request because I haven't even heard the basis for why he -- this witness ough' to be allowed at this juncture, and without any prior notification, to supplement his testimony.

I think I would have to respond to whatever the basis might be that Mr. Jones would offer. It certainly is not usual, nor done without some cause.

It flies in the face of the general ability
of counsel to prepare to cross-examine and respond to prefiled written testimony.

JUDGE WOLFE: Mr. Jones.

21 MR. JONES: Your Honor, we recognize the 22 unusual nature of this request. Nevertheless, we believe 23 that the witness comprehends this as being an important 24 adjunct to his testimony.

25

-1

1

2

3

4

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

20

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

It may not be possible for the witness to

2-2 refer to the specifics which he has in mind in responding 1 to counsel's cross-examination. 2 3 And, accordingly, we feel that it would be appropriate for the Board to hear what the witness has to 4 5 say at this time to -- for an inclusion in the record. 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 JUDGE WOLFE: This proposed supplemental oral 6 testimony -- does this expand upon testimony that's already 7 8 part of the written testimony? 9 MR. JONES: That is my understanding, Your 10 Honor. The witness has not at this time disclosed fully 11 to me what it is exactly that he proposes to say. 12 JUDGE WOLFE: I would suggest you consult 13 with him for a couple of minutes and find out what this 14 testimony is. Is it a departure, for one thing, from 15 anything that's stated in the written direct testimony; 16 or is it just a supplementation to expand upon what is 17 presently covered in the written direct testimony? 18 This would be of interest to the Board. 19 MR. JONES: If it please Your Honor --20 JUDGE WOLFE: We'll recess for a couple of 3 21 You may speak to your witness. minutes. 22 MR. JONES: Thank you, Your Honor. 23 (A short recess was taken.) 24 MR. JONES: Your Honor, if it please the 25 Board, the witness advises that the specific topic of the

ĩ.

1310

paper he refers to is cited in full in the witness' answer 2-3 1 to Question No. 37, and that the purpose of his remarks 2 will be to amplify the answer which is contained in Answer 3 37, that it will in no way expand upon his testimony, nor 4 will it fundamentally or substantively change his testimony. 5 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 JUDGE WOLFE: Going back to square one now, 6 the document which you propose to offer as Joint Inter-7 8 venors' Exhibit 30 --9 MR. JONES: Yes, Your Honor. 10 JUDGE WOLFE: -- is the article cited by 11 the witness in his answer to Question 37? 12 MR. JONES: That's correct, Your Honor. 13 I might point out that it would appear to me 14 that the subject of the paper is highly relevant and 15 material to this proceeding, inasmuch as we've been strug-16 gling through some five days now of hearings to arrive at 17 this point, to address ourselves to the question of 18 synergistic low-level radiation reactions. 19 It appears to me from the title of the paper 20 and from the answer of the witness that this is something 21 which addresses the question excensively. 22 JUDGE WOLFE: Mr. Blake, you have been shown 23 where in the document as to which the witness wishes to 24 orally supplement his testimony is cited in the witness' 25 answer to Question 37. I take it that you have had an

514

1311

1	occasion to review that document to see what it says. Is
2	that correct?
3	MR. BLAKE: No, sir, we do not have a copy
4	of that document.
5	JUDGE WOLFE: That's not my question. My
6	question is Perhaps you are answering me.
7	But have you had occasion to read that docu-
8	ment previously?
9	MR. BLAKE: No, sir.
10	JUDGE WOLFE: Even though it was cited in
11	Dr. Bross' answer to Question 37?
12	MR. BLAKE: Correct.
13	JUDGE WOLFE: How about you, Mr. Turk?
14	MR. TURK: The same answer is true for the
15	Staff.
16	JUDGE WOLFE: And might I ask, without going
17	too much into detail, why not, Mr. Blake?
18	MR. BLAKE: Well, as you'll recall, Judge
19	Wolfe, it was identified with essentially two working days
20	before we commenced this hearing that Dr. Bross would
21	actually appear.
22	I at that time explained to you and I must
23	reiterate now, as counsel must always do in preparation for
24	a nearing, you have to call your priorities; you have to
	make your determinations about how you spend your time.
	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

•

•

1312

1	And I chose to spend my time based on exhibits
2	which had been identified as exhibits, and a combination
3	of preparing cross-examination on the testimony before
4	us.
5	In this case we had a document identified in
6	the testimony, which was not proffered as an exhibit.
7	elected not to look at that document.

300 77H STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

10

11

12

13

15

16

8 JUDGE WOLFE: When did you receive this written 9 testimony of Dr. Bross?

> MR. BLAKE: March 9.

JUDGE WOLFE: Mr. Turk, the same question.

1313

MR. TURK: The Staff received the testimony sometime -- somewhat later than March 9th due to the extra 14 time that it takes to get things through the Commission mail system. It was approximately March 10th or 11th that we actually received copies of the testimony.

17 At about the same time we received approxi-18 mately two inches thick proposed exhibits for the first 19 time -- I should qualify that -- with the exception of 20 those materials which were identified during discovery.

21 We then learned for the first time of the 22 other proposed exhibits; we received copies of those.

23 We received testimony of all other witnesses 24 in that same time period. And in the brief two weeks or 25 less than two weeks before hearing, there was a lot to do

other than explore statements contained in testimony of 1 witnesses who were apparently not going to be appearing 2 today, and as to whose testimony we felt there was reason-3 able grounds there should be no testimony admitted. 4 And I would note that our belief was in

fact justified, in view of the Board's ruling as to proposed Exhibit No. 28, which is the testimony of Dr. Samuel Epstein, wherein the witness did not appear. The Board ruled that the sponsored testimony was inadmissible.

11 And in anticipation of such a ruling, we 12 felt that the Bross testimony would similarly be inad-13 missible.

14 We learned only -- I believe on Thursday --15 perhaps Friday, but I believe Thursday of the week prior 16 to coming to hearing the following Monday, that Dr. Bross 17 would be here.

18 There was no time to explore further the 19 statements in his testimony.

(Bench conference.)

21 MR. TURK: I might add that if this additional 22 statement which Dr. Bross wishes to make is along the same 23 lines as what his testimony already contains, there may be 24 a point during testimony -- I'm not sure -- but there may 25 be a point during testimony when it can be elaborated

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

5

6

7

8

9

10

20

2 - 6

1315

1 upon.

2-7

20024 (202) 554-2345

D.C.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON,

14

But I'm not sure whether he's going to make
additional statements, which I have not yet had time to
consider or review.

JUDGE WOLFE: Well, certainly the witness, Mr. Jones, did answer Question 37 and did cite this document. What more generally does the witness wish to do? Just further amplify -- clarify or really go into some detail now with this supplemental testimony?

Can you give me some advice on that?
 MR. JONES: It's my appreciation, Your Honor,
 that the witness wishes to amplify and clarify the state ment which appears in the answer to Question 37.

(Bench conference.)

MR. JONES: Your Honor, may I address the Board for a moment, perhaps in resolution of the conflict which appears before you at this time.

During Your Honors' colloquy, I spoke to the witness, and he advises that it was not his intention to provoke procedural debate before this forum, and that, accordingly, he would at this time withdraw the request to supplement his testimony.

23 JUDGE WOLFE: All right. Request granted.
24 /
25 /

			1316
-1 m		1	MR. JONES: Your Honor, at this time we would
	•	2	move for the adoption of the witness' prefiled testimony
		3	Strike that.
)	4	We wish to move for the admission of the
	2345	5	witness' prefiled testimony, his curriculum vitae and
	() 554-2	6	accompanying bibliography. We would further move for the
	24 (20)	7	admission into evidence of Joint Intervenors' Exhibits 22,
	C. 200	8	23, 24, 25 and 26.
	N, D.	9	JUDGE WOLFE: All right.
	INGTO	10	(Bench conferince.)
	WASH	11	JUDGE FOREMAN: Mr. Jones, you had identified
	ING, 1	12	Exhibit No. 27. Do you want to ask that that be in-
0	BUILI	13	cluded?
	TERS	14	MR. JONES: Yes, Your Honor. I would also
	REPOF	15	irclude Exhibit 27 as part of the motion.
	S.W. ,	16	JUDGE WOLFE: All right. Have these exhibits -
	REET.	17	proposed exhibits been marked for identification?
	TH STI	18	MR. JONES: They have, Your Honor, and are
	300 71	19	pending
		20	JUDGE WOLFE: Has the necessary number of
		21	copies been provided to the reporter, three of each?
•		22	MR. JONES: They will be momentarily. We
•		23	have the appropriate numbers of documents.
		24	JUDGE WOLFE: All right. Let's consider
		25	then any objections to the motion to incorporate by

reference into the record the statement -- sworn statement 5 of Dr. Bross? 2 Did you say there was a curriculum vitae 3 attached to this? Oh, yes. All right. 4 -- inclusive of the curriculum vitae and in-5 20024 (202) 554-2345 clusive of a table -- inclusive of a bibliography and in-6 7 clusive of a table marked "Confidence Intervals for Infant 8 and Childhood Mortality by Parents Gonadal Dose." 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 9 Excuse me. A graph rather. 10 MR. JONES: Tnat's correct, Your Honor. All 11 of those items are included in the exhibit. 12 JUDGE WOLFE: Any objection? Well, Applicant 13 has already stipulated to the admissibility of this docu-14 ment; is that correct? 15 MR. BLAKE: Judge Wolfe, it is correct that 16 Applicant has no objection to the admissibility of the 17 identified exhibits. 18 JUDGE WOLFE: I see. 19 MR. BLAKE: Nor do we have -- and that by 20 virtue of our stipulation of yesterday with Mr. Jones, 21 nor do we have any objection to the admission into evi-22 dence of the curriculum vitae, the graph, nor the 23 bibliography. 24 I do, however, have an objection to portions 25 of the sworn statement of Dr. Irwin D. J. Bross, which I'll

3-2

1 identify now.

3-3

2

3

4 MR. BLAKE: Yes, that's correct. 5 JUDGE WOLFE: All right. What are your ob-300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 6 jections to the testimony? 7 MR. BLAKE: The basis for my objection is 8 that there is no record evidence to support the statements 9 which appear at some points in questions, and at other 10 points in answers in Dr. Bross' testimony regarding the 11 expected releases from the Waterford 3 plant. 12 And, in addition, I see nothing in Dr. Bross' 13 qualifications which would allow him to independently 14 testify on expected releases from that plant. Specifically, 15 I would move to exclude from Dr. Bross' testimony the 16 first sentence in Question 17, the --17 JUDGE WOLFE: Take that a little slower, 18 please. 19 MR. BLAKE: All right, sir. 20 JUDGE WOLFE: All right. 21 MR. BLAKE: Question and Answer No. 29, which 22 refer to 25 and 75 millirem and the one-rad range, else-23 where specifically defined in Dr. Bross' prefiled testi-24 mony as a range of dose between 100 millirem and 10 rem. 25 JUDGE WOLFE: Now, what is your objection ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

JUDGE WOLFE: Your stipulation only covers

these proposed exhibits that were authored by Dr. Bross?

1318

1319

then here?

1

554-2345

20024 (202)

D.C.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WA3HINGTON,

-4

2 MR. BLAKE: The same objection. JUDGE WOLFE: The same objection, namely --3 MR. BLAKE: Similarly --4 5 JUDGE WOLFE: -- namely, that there's nothing in the record to date in support? 6 7 MR. BLAKE: That's correct. Nothing in the 8 record and nothing in his qualifications which would allow 9 him independently to arrive at that determination. 10 JUDGE WOLFE: All right. 11 MR. BLAKE: Similarly, Question and Answer 12 40, 4-0, which again includes references to 25 and 75 milli-13 rem and the one-rad range, defined by Dr. Bross in his 14 response to Question 15. 15 Similarly, Question and Answer 41, which while 16 it contains no specific quantified level talks in terms of 17 low-level radiation in Waterford 3 emissions. And since 18 Dr. Bross has specifically defined what he means by low-19 level radiation in his answer to Question 15 as the one-20 rad range, 100 millirem to 10 rem, I add this guestion and 21 answer to the list. 22 And, finally, Question and Answer 51, 5-1, 23 again which refers specifically to the one-rad range else-24 where defined by Dr. Bross. 25 That concludes my objections.

JUDGE WOLFE: Mr. Turk?

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON,

300 7TH STREET,

3-5

MR. TURK: I join in the objections on the testimony. I have the further objection to the admission of one of the proposed exhibits.

1320

JUDGE WOLFE: Which one is that, please, now? MR. TURK: This is proposed Exhibit No. 23, entitled "Why the Assurances that the Water Is Safe Have No Scientific Validity."

9 I have attempted to be fairly liberal in my 10 reading of the proposed exhibits in order to keep down the 11 number of objections. When I came to this one, I noticed 12 that, first of all, it is testimony filed concerning 13 chemical risks in the Niagara Falls area.

Not only is it related to Niagara Falls, it also is in the nature of rebuttal testimony -- or so it would appear, or testimony at least which is supportive of testimony presented by the New York Public Interest -well, I forget what the acronym stands for -- NYPRG, N-Y-P-R-G.

It does not appear to have anything whatsoever to do with the chemical environment surrounding the Waterford plant or present in New Orleans or Louisiana. It does not say anything at all which is either material or relevant and that it does not at all have any bearing on the issues to be decided here, nor does it make any facts

in issue more or less probative.

Pursuant to the Commission's regulations and the Federal Rules of Evidence, the rules governing procedures in U. S. Courts, I think it is clearly irrelevant and immaterial and should not be admitted.

JUDGE WOLFE: All right. Mr. Jones.

MR. JONES: Your Honor, I would like to begin by first addressing myself to Mr. Turk's objection with respect to Joint Intervenors' proposed Exhibit 23.

I believe that this paper is both relevant and material to the issues which are germane to Joint Intervenors' case, in that it is a rigorous discussion of hazards from low-level pollutants:

And the question of hazards from low-level pollutants is as important to this energy case as is the question of hazards from low-level radiation.

It further, in our view, is relevant in its
discussion of the mechanism by which toxic substances cause
damage to living tissues, which is something that our
witness yesterday devoted his entire testimony to.

It also points out -- we think rather forcefully -- the problems which arise in populations which are burdened with chemical pollutants which are assertedly within the limits of regulatory standards.

In summary, it's our belief that the paper

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

25

1321

demonstrates that in a burdened environment, the fact that experts, whether they be industry experts or state officials or federal officials, take the position that regulatory standards have been met does not always ade-quately assure public health and safety. 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASLINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 And so in addressing itself to these issues, we assert that Dr. Bross' contribution in this respect is both relevant and material.

3-7

MR. JONES: I should now like to address 1 2 myself to Mr. Blake's objections in his motion to strike portions of Dr. Bross' testimony. 3

4-1

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

19

1323

4 This motion, of course, is also concurred in 5 and joined in by the NRC Staff.

As I appreciate the nature of Mr. Blake's objection, with respect to Question 17, we are once again faced with the question of whether the plant should be judged and viewed in terms of its maximum permissible regulatory standard vis-a-vis the asserted releases which Applicant and Staff have testified about.

JUDGE WOLFE: Wait a moment. We are talking now about the first sentence in Question 17?

MR. JONES: That's correct, Your Honor.

15 JUDGE WOLFE: And as I understand Mr. Blake's 16 objection, there's nothing in the record in support of 17 this question, so as a hypothetical question or as a 18 regular guestion -- well, as a hypothetical guestion, it must be founded on some fact in the record.

20 MR. JONES: Well, Your Honor, I believe that 21 it's appropriate for the witness --

22 JUDGE WOLFE: And at the very least it's a 23 leading question, but I think Mr. Blake's objection is 24 it assumes a state of the record that is not so. 25

Where does this appear as a factual matter

in the record today, this 25 to 75 millirem figure? Where 1 does it appear, for example, under NRC operating license 2 specifications? 3 MR. JONES: Your Honor, it's our position 4 that the figure 25 to 75 millirems as allowable release 5 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 doses is the standard which is fixed by the EPA. 6 JUDGE WOLFE: BY EPA? 7 MR. JONES: Yes, that's our understanding 8 of the matter. 9 10 And it was also the testimony of Dr. Branagan that the maximum permissible -- I'm sorry -- the maximum 11 dose which could be sustained to an individual, even the 12 hypothetical individual which we talked about during the 13 bulk of Dr. Branagan's testimony, was capable of sustaining 14 15 up to 23 millirems, and that 23 millirems would be the 16 level at which the NRC would take some form of enforcement 17 action if there were releases in that order of magnitude. 18 Accordingly, that's the basis for the question. 19 JUDGE WOLFE: All right. 20 MR. JONES: If I might make one further 21 statement of amplification, Your Honor, we believe that 22 the witness, through his testimony, is prepared to 23 establish a factual situation which will correspond to the 24 millirem levels set forth in the predicate of Question 17;

4-2

25

1324

and we feel it appropriate for this question -- or rather,

554-2345

20024 (202)

D.C.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON,

21

we feel it's appropriate for the issue to be explored 1 through cross-examination, rather than through the device 2 which Applicant has sought to use before this Board 3 previously of striking the witness' testimony without 4 allowing the witness a full and thorough opportunity through 5 cross-examination and redirect to establish the basis for 6 the conclusions which are expressed in the witness' 7 8 testimony.

1325

9 As Your Honors can fully appreciate, I trust, 10 all of the prefiled testimony which has been brought 11 before the Board thus far tends to pe substantially 12 conclusionary in nature, and it is our understanding that 13 the purpose of the cross-examination process is to test 14 the probity and validity of the conclusions set forth by 15 witnesses in their prefiled testimony; and that accordingly, 16 where the witness can more convincingly set forth the 17 basis for his position, that it is more appropriate --18 strike that -- that that should be the testimony which 19 should be adopted by the Board as being the most persuasive 20 in reaching its own findings of fact and conclusions.

And accordingly --

JUDGE WOLFE: Yes, but what is being objected to is not part of the witness' testimony. What is being objected to is the question, is it not?

MR. JONES: Well, i C I may, Your Honor --

1-1		
4-4	'	JUDGE WOLFE: Mr. Blake, your objection was
	2	to the first sentence in Question 17?
	3	MR. BLAKE: Correct.
	4	JUDGE WOLFE: Your objection did not extend to
	5	the answer?
554-2	6	MR. BLAKE: Not in this case.
(202)	7	JUDGE WOLFE: The objection is not to any
20024	8	conclusional testimony of the witness. The objection is
v. D.C.	9	to the question.
NGTON	10	MR. JONES: If I may, Your Honor, I would
VASHL	11	again submit that if the witness has an adequate explanation
ING. V	12	for the predicate to the question, that it would be
BUILD	13	appropriate at that strike that and let me reverse the
TERS	14	context.
(EPOR	15	I would submit to Your Honors that if the
S.W. 1	16	witness can in his cross-examination adequately sustain
LEET,	17	the basis for the predicate to the question, that it is
H STF	18	appropriate to allow the predicate to remain, and I would
300 71	19	suggest to Your Honors that at this time it is our view
	20	that it is in effect premature to raise the motion to
	21	strike with respect to the first sentence in Question 17.
-	22	JUDGE WOLFE: All right. Go ahead, Mr. Jones.
-	23	MR. JONES: With respect to the other
	24	objections raised by the Applicants, I would also urge the
-	25	same view, that if at the conclusion of the witness'

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

1326

testimony he has failed to provide an adequate basis for 1 both question and answer from his testimony, that it may 2 then be appropriate for the Applicant to renew its motion; 3 but I think it's entirely premature to allow the Applicant 4 to move to strike a portion of the testimony before the 5 witness has the opportunity to be heard on the basis for 6 those particular portions of the testimony. 7 JUDGE WOLFE: And that's the conclusion of 8 9 your argument? 10 MR. JONES: Those are my views on the subject, 11 Your Honor. 12 JUDGE WOLFE: All right. Anything more? 13 JUDGE JORDAN: I am not a lawyer and it's 14 dangerous for me to ask a question outside the field, but 15 Mr. Blake has been a source of information on matters which 16 are outside my field for a long time now. 17 Therefore, I guess the reason I address this 18 question to Mr. Blake is because of my past experience. 19 As the Chairman points out, I will also -- and 20 I intended to say that, although it might well have slipped 21 my mind -- ask other Counsel, too, if they have views. 22 That's the matter of, say, the 25 to 75 23 millirem. Let's assume that it is correct that it has not 24 been established on the record. 25 Now, if that question were allowed in as it

1327

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

4-5

554-2345 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) is, would that enable the Intervenors to have proposed
 findings which say the plant puts out 25 to 75 millirems?
 Therefore, would the Applicant be prejudiced as a
 consequence of the ability of the Intervenors to cite this
 as part of the record?

4-6

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1328

I really am asking for your help and advice, Mr. Blake, and the other people, too.

MR. BLAKE: Dr. Jordan, it is questionable that with respect to 17 itself, that that would be the case. There's always been some question in my mind in questionand-answer format testimony exactly the probative or reliable value of the question itself; but it is clear from some of the other answers in here that that would be the case, where the witness has affirmatively in his answer portion of the testimony stated that the emissions will be so-and-so, either one rad or in the 25 to 75 millirem range.

So that is indeed one threat that I see.
2 important, however, is that the assessments are based on 3 that level of emission or causal dose from emissions from 4 the plant; and, therefore, we are talking about and focusing 5 on something which in my view has not been established in REPC (TERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 6 the record as fact. 7 That's really the second. 8 I would like to address this 25 to 75 millirem 9 figure. As you are aware from having set on the Appindix 10 I Board, shortly after the Appendix I, the EPA issued, 11 40 CFR Part 190, which Mr. Jones has made reference

5-1

1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

300 7TH STREET, S.W.

to.

As you'll recall as well, there was some concern at that point in time that all of the work that had gone into Appendix I and the rule-making proceeding would have to be completely reconstituted by the EPA's rule-making proceeding.

MR. BLAKE: The second and probably the more

In fact, that was avoided by EPA's explicit statements which were made at the time that 40 CFR Part 190 was published, that it was EPA's view that for plants at sites, even up to five and certainly for a single-unit site, that compliance with 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix I, of the NRC's regulations would constitute compliance with EPA's regulations.

I say that because there ought to be no

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

1329

confusion here with regard to what this plant is bound by. It is bound by Appendix I and there's no confusion about extending it to these EP, levels.

1330

Secondly, it is my recollection that Dr. Mauro has testified in this proceeding, and in response to your question, Dr. Jordan, whether or not other contributions from the entire uranium fuel site addressed in 40 CFR 190 would add anything meaningful or measurable to doses in the area of the environs of Waterford 3.

His answer was no. In fact, that is uncontroverted in the record at this point.

So my objection stands.

JUDGE JORDAN: Very well. Thank you. Does anyone else wish to comment on that?

Mr. Turk?

I was particularly concerned as to whether admission of the question would prejudice the Applicant.

MR. TURK: There is a further reason why historically hypothetical questions must be tied to facts in the record or facts which may be later put into the record, and I note that because in my view there are no facts presented by any of the direct testimony filed by the Joint Intervenors which will indicate that a dose of 25 to 75 millirems or a dose in the one-rad range, as the

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

5-2

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

5-3

1

2

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

554-2345

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202)

terms used by Dr. Bross, will ever be experienced as a result of the Waterford operation.

1331

3 The reason historically, as I understand it, why hypotheticals must be in the proper form is possibly largely tied to the problem of confusion in the record. Testimony will come in and question after question will be asked. We will not always be prescient enough to use in the guestioning of the witness the fact that the assumed fact is only hypothetical.

That's number one.

Number two, where the fact cannot be tied to evidence in the record or evidence to be put in the record, then it's not relevant. It has no bearing on the case.

For that reason, there is a very proper objection to the use of hypotheticals not tied to record evidence.

I have other comments which I would like to address in response to Mr. Jones on both the admissibility of these portions of testimony, as well as on the exhibits, but I don't believe Mr. Blake has yet had a chance to respond to Mr. Jones, and I would wait until he has had that opportunity.

23 JUDGE JORDAN: Since I had a direct question 24 to Mr. Blake and you have joined in that, I think perhaps 25 we ought to allow Mr. Jones to respond to their answers to

5-4

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

1332

my direct question, and then we will go back to the
 Chairman and the objections otherwise.

MR. JONES: Judge Jordan, Members of the Board, I believe that Mr. Turk's statement with respect to the treatment of hypothetical questions speaks precisely to the point which I previously addressed; namely, that Joint Intervenors....

I believe that Mr. Turk's remarks just now with respect to hypothetical questions speaks directly to the point which I had previously sought to bring before the Board; namely, that it is premature to judge the probity of such questions until the witness has had the opportunity to fully be heard.

Secondly, I recognize that Your Honor's question was whether or not there would be prejudice to the Applicant, and it's our view that rather than prejudicing the Applicant, the prejudice at this point would fall upon the Joint Intervenors, since there are facts which we believe will be elicited from the witness and further defense through the cross-examination of the witness' statement, which at this point in time -- I can't predict what will be the ultimate outcome of the witness' cross-examination testimony, but it is at least our view at this point prior to commencing the crossexamination process that the witness is fully capable of

1 providing the basis for those views and of answering the

objections of Applicant and Staff.

Accordingly, we would submit to Your Honor that the prejudice, if any, would not be to the Applicant by allowing the hypotheticals at least to remain as testimony subject to later rulings by the Board; rather, the prejudice would be upon the Joint Intervenors who would not be allowed to introduce critical elements in their case.

MR. TURK: If Counsel has terminated his
remarks, I'd like to respond very briefly.

JUDGE WOLFE: All right.

MR. TURK: Mr. Jones is now making a statement that if the witness is allowed to be crossexamined, he will somehow be able to support the 25 to 75 millirem which is assumed in the question, or the one-rad range which is assumed in the question.

18 There is nothing in the direct testimony of 19 the witness which even indicates that he was going to make 20 such an assessment.

In effect, Mr. Jones would be now inserting a very significant new line of direct testimony, or if testimony generally, in that he would now for the first time be advising us, Counsel for the Staff as well as Counsel for the Applicants, that this witness wishes to

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

554-2345 D.C. 20024 (202) 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON,

5-5

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

12

13

14

15

16

17

1333

make a new dose calculation. 1

5-6

554-2345

20024 (202)

D.C.

11

12

14

15

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON,

We have had no prior indication that the 2 witness was going to do that. There is nothing in the 3 direct testimony which we have been able to see which 4 indicates that this witness should be cross-examined as to 5 bases for any new dose calculation which he may be coming 6 7 up with.

1334

8 JUDGE WOLFE: How about the witness' answer 9 to Question 40, recognizing that a motion to exclude has 10 been made to that question and answer?

In the answer on the second page of the answer to 40 there is wording, "It should be noted that 13 while 25 - 75 mill rem may be an average under normal operating conditions, for a variety of reasons, the individual exposures may be substantially higher."

16 Granted, while this is subject to a motion 17 to strike, regardless, this is direct testimony and upon 18 cross-examination the witness can be gueried as to the 19 basis for this 25 - 75 millirem.

20 MR. TURK: If it had not been for the 21 question which preceded that statement, if instead the 22 question had been give us an estimate of the releases and 23 tell us how that will affect the population, then the 24 question would be properly cross-examinable, in my view. 25

But since the question asks, "Would introduction

of radiation in the one-rad range containing liquid and 1 gaseous and particulate emissions from Waterford aggravate 2 3 certain risk," in my view, until now we did not have 4 adequate notice that the witness was coming up with some 5 dose calculations. 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 6 Rather, this all seems to be tied to the 7 initial question which assumes 25 to 75 millirems. 8 JUDGE WOLFE: All right. Anything more? 9 MR. JONES: I have nothing further, Your 10 Honcr. 11 JUDGE WOLFE: Mr. Blake? 12 MR. BLAKE: No. 13 JUDGE WOLFE: We will have a recess. We 14 will recess until guarter of 11:00, in which case if we 15 have not completed, we will continue to recess without 16 further notice until 11:00 o'clock. 17 Hopefully, we will have made our determinations 18 by that time. 19 All right. We stand in recess. 20 (Recess taken.) 21 22 23 24 25

5-7

1335

-1	1	JUDGE WOLFE: All right. The Board is ready					
•	2	to rule.					
	3	The Staff's objection to proposed Joint					
	4	Intervenors' Exhibit 23 is denied. We believe the document					
345	5	is relevant because it discusses mechan sms by which en-					
554-2	6	vironmental pollutants may relate to carcinogenesis.					
4 (202)	7	Accordingly, Joint Intervenors' proposed					
2002	8	Exhibits 22, 23, 24, 25, 26 and 27 are admitted as					
N. D.C	9	exhibits.					
NGTO	10	(The documents heretofore marked					
WASHI	11	for identification as Joint					
JING,	12	Intervenors' Exhibits Nos. 22,					
BUILI	13	23, 24, 25, 26 and 27 were					
TERS	14	received in evidence.)					
REPOR	15	JUDGE WOLFE: With respect to Applicant's					
S.W.,	16	motion to exclude portions of the testimony of Dr. Bross,					
RET,	17	which is supported by Staff, we grant the motion to ex-					
TH STI	18	clude as to the first sentence of Question 17.					
300 7	19	Since the question is hypothetically based					
	20	upon a fact not spread on the record, the second sentence					
	21	will stand. But to make it intelligible, the Board will					
•	22	delete the word "this" from the second sentence.					
-	23	We grant the motion to exclude as to Question					
•	24	29, since in its entirety it's based upon facts not of					
-	25	record. However, we believe the answer to Question 29					

6

ł

1336

should stand, provided Mr. Jones now provides a question, 1 which would have elicited the answer to Question 29. 2 So if you would, Mr. Jones -- take your 3 time, phrase a proper question to which there will be no 4 objection, to elicit the answer to Question 29. 5 554-2345 You see, in ordinary circumstances and in the 6 20024 (202) usual court or administrative proceeding where oral testi-7 mony is given, if such a question had been put to the 8 D.C. 9 witness and objected to, then counsel obviously could re-S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, phrase the question to elicit that which he wishes to have 10 11 elicited. 12 So we're giving you that opportunity to frame 13 a proper question to the witness, Mr. Jones. 14 MR. JONES: I appreciate that, Your Honor. 15 If I might ask leave of the Board, would it be possible 16 for me to consider this over the lunch recess and report 300 7TH STREET, 17 to the Board at th commencement of this afternoon's 18 session? 19 JUDGE WOLFE: All right. 20 We now turn to Question and Answer 40. The 21 Board partially grants the motion to exclude as to 22 Question 40, to the extant the words, "in the one-rad 23 range," are excluded, because this wording is based on 24 facts and not spread on the record. 25 We, thus, amend the question to read: "Would

6-2

1337

introduction of radiation contained in liquid and gaseous 1 and particulate emissions from the Waterford 3 nuclear 2 power plant aggravate this risk? By what mechanism is the 3 risk enhanced?" 4 5 Is there some objection to this deletion of 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 6 the words so deleted? 7 MR. JONES: I have none, Your Honor. 8 JUDGE WOLFE: Absent objection then, we will 9 proceed. 10 And I take it there was no objection to the 11 earlier ruling -- or earlier rulings. 12 (No response.) 13 JUDGE WOLFE: All right. 14 The motion to _xclude is denied as to the 15 answer as to Question 40. We note that the witness does 16 advert to 25-75 millirems, et cetera. 17 While a question -- a hypothetical question 18 need be predicated on the facts of the case, here we have 19 the witness speaking to 25-75 millirems. And we see 20 nothing improper about the witness proceeding to address 21 that subject, obviously subject to cross-examination. 22 MR. BLAKE: Judge Wolfe, may I ask a question 23 at this point? 24 JUDGE WOLFE: Yes. 25 MR. BLAKE: In my argument, I not only based

6-3

1338

it on the fact that there was -- on the grounds that there were no facts in evidence to support the hypothetical, 2 but also included in my view that this witness had no 3 qualifications to address that. Did the Board take that into consideration in its considerations? JUDGE WOLFE: As I said, you can go into this

1339

on cross-examination, which subsumes the question of credibility or expertise of the witness. So, yes, this -- you would be permitted to cross-examine on qualifications certainly.

MR. BLAKE: My only question is whether or not I had made it clear enough.

JUDGE WOLFE: Yes.

The motion to exclude is partially granted as to Question 41, since low-level radiation, as earlier defined by the witness in his testimony, is not a fact established in the record.

Question 41 is rephrased by the Board to 18 delete the words, "low level," and now reads: "Can you 19 make a statement with regard to the health risks from 20 radiation in emissions from Waterford 3 as it impacts that 21 portion of the population already at risk on pre-22 existing genetic damage, as evidenced by 'indicator 23 diseases'?" 24

Any objection or statements of prejudice by

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

30º 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

6-4

1

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

25

the Board's deletion of these two words? We will hear --1 MR. JONES: No objection from Joint Inter-2 venors, Your Honor. 3 JUDGE WOLFE: Absent objection then, we will 4 proceed. 5 20024 (202) 554-2345 MR. TURK: I'm wondering whether we really 6 need to wait until after the lunch recess for the re-7 formulation of Question 29. Perhaps if we just took a 8 D.C. moment or two, we can get that out of the way and then 9 S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, proceed. 10 JUDGE WOLFE: I will proceed with the Board's 11 ruling. We'll see how Mr. Jones -- what he ultimately 12 decides. 13 We'll proceed then to rule that we -- in 14 light of this deletion of the two words, "low level," the 15 motion to exclude the answer to Question 41 is thus 16 300 7TH STREET, 17 denied. 18 With respect to Question 51, the motion to 19 exclude is partially granted. The words, "in the one-rad 20 range," are stricken as not being based upon facts spread 21 on the record. 22 The question now reads: "What is your assess-23 ment for the health risk to South Louisiana's population 24 of the introduction of additional radiation resulting from plant operations at the Waterford 3 nuclear generating 25

6-5

1340

		facility?"				
		Any objection? Any prejudice being shown				
	1	will be an				
	3	WIII be				
	4	MR. JUNES: NO ODJECTION, YOUR HONOR, INSM				
2345	5	the Joint Intervenors.				
) 554-	6	JUDGE WOLFE: Absent objection then, we will				
1 (202	7	proceed.				
2002	8	The motion to exclude the answer to Question				
I, D.C.	9	51 is thus denied, since the question to the Board's mind				
(CTO)	10	is now properly phrased.				
ASHIN	11	Have you rephrased the question				
NG, W	12	MR. JONES: Your Honor, I fear that I have				
UILDI	13	been assidiously following the Board's ruling with relation				
ERS B	14	to the other matters. Unfortunately, I have not had in the				
CPORT	15	past five minutes any additional time to devote to the				
W., RI	16	question.				
ET, S.	17	JUDGE WOLFE: Yes.				
STRE	18	MR. JONES: I feel that it would be preferable				
0 7TH	19	to be allowed to confer with the witness perhaps, and				
30	20	also with other counsel				
	21	JUDGE WOLFE: All right. So that we can move				
	22	this along, the Board is going to grant the request to				
	23	incorporate into the record by reference the sworn state-				
	24	ment of Dr. Bross and all of the attachments, except				
	25	for the Question and Answer 29. We will rule on that				

6-6

1341



UNITED STATES OF AMERICA NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

BEFORE THE ATOMIC SAFETY & LICENSING BOARD

In the Matter of

LOUISIANA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY Docket No. 50-382

(Waterford Steam Electric Station Unit 3)

SWORN STATEMENT OF DR. IR WIN D. J. BROSS

1. By whom are you employed and what position(s) do you hold?

Answer. I am employed by Roswell Park Memorial Institute for Cancer Research as Director of Biostatistics.

 Is this in a specialized health field? If so, what is the description of the type of health field?

Answer. Yes. Cancer Research and Public Health.

3. What previous positions have you held?

<u>Answer.</u> From 1952-1959, I was Head, Statistical Design and Analysis Section at Cornell University Medical College and the Sloan-Kettering Institute in New York City. From 1949-1952, I was Research Associate in the Biostatistics Department of the Johns Hopkins University in Baltimore. 4. What are your academic qualifications and degrees?

Answer. I hold a M.A. and Ph.D. in Experimental Statistics from the University of North Carolina, the latter granted in 1949.

- Have you done post-doctoral work? If so, in what field or fields? Answer. No formal post-doctoral work.
- 6. Have you done any research in the fields of cancer and/or human exposure to radiation?

Answer. Since 1952 I have been heavily involved in cancer research and since about 1967 in research on health effects of low-level radiation.

7. Please describe your research.

Answer. My direct involvement in research on radiogenic cancer occurred when I became Acting Head of Epidemiology at RPMI in addition to my job as Director of Biostatistics. During my 7 years as Acting Head, I developed a program in Biometric Research on Cancer Epidemiology which developed the biostatistical technology for radiation research, which was subsequently applied to data from the Tri-State survey. More recently, I have analyzed data from the Portsmouth Naval Shipyard Study on health effects among nuclear submarine workers.

8. What publications have your works appeared in?

<u>Answer.</u> My more than 300 articles have appeared in many different journals. These journals include the most prestigious journals in general science, general medicine, statistics, epidemiology, public health, cancer research, and other disciplines. (See Bibliography).

- Which of your published works deal with the areas of your research? Answer. Almost all of them.
- Do you have any as yet unpublished research data compiled? Anwswer. Yes.

11. Have you participated in any scientific colloquia? If so, where, when, under whose sponsorship, and what topics have you dealt with?

<u>Answer.</u> I participated in many scientific colloquia on many different topics on health hazards of radiation. I have recently given invited papers to the American Statistical Association (1980), and the Yale Symposium on the health effects of low-level radiation (1981). In 1979, I spoke at the invited symposium in Dusseldorf on metastasis and at the University of Heidelberg on radiation hazarcs.

12. Have you ever appeared as an expert witness in state, federal or congressional hearings or courts?

Answer. I appeared at a 1978 NPC hearing held specifically for the purpose of reviewing our radiation-leukeumia findings. I was a principal witness at Congressional hearings on radiation hazards in 1978 (Serial No. 95-179) and at Other Congressional hearings such as one on February 25, 1980 on cancer research. I appeared at a state legislative hearing on December 10, 1981 (and on several previous occasions) and before the Ontario Provincial Legislature. I also have been involved in the quasi-judicial NRC and the New York State hearings on licensure.

13. Would you please define for purposes of this discussion:

(a) "DNA"

Answer. The genetic information stored in a double helix chemical structure.

(b) "Carcinogen"

Answer. An agent caqpable of causing cancer (here, human cancer). (c) "Doubling dose"

Answer. The dosage of a carcinogen that will double the risk of cancer (relative to baseline levels for a given category of individuals).

 Would you please define synergism and indicate how this phenomena would affect health risks to a population.

Answer. In general, synergism means that the combination of two risk factors produces a more-than-additive effect on the risk. For specificity, the scale used for measuring risk and the characteristics of the population at risk and the diseases under study may have to be spelled out.

15. What do you mean by "the one rad range"? How does the term rad relate to the term rem? Is there any special significance or difference between the two terms in discussions of low level radiation?

Answer. At the 1978 NRC hearing mentioned in Question 12, it was stipulated that for the purposes of that hearing, the terms <u>rad</u> and <u>rem</u> could be used interchangeably in referring to diagnostic x-rays and low-level nuclear radiation. The 1-rad range is the range up or down by a factor of 10 from 1 rad (100 to 10,000 millirem). This specifies more exactly what is generally called "low-level radiation". Below 100 millirem is commonly called "background radiation". Above this range is "therapeutic radiation", although usually this would be 50 rads or more.

16. What do you mean by and what is the significance of "indicator diseases"?

Answer. By "indicator diseases", we mean lesser diseases that tend to precede the occurrence of more serious diseases such as leukemia and cancer. For children, the indicator diseases are asthma, urticaria, eczema, pneumonia, dysentery, and rheumatic fever. For adults, heart disease and several other diseases can play this role. The persons reporting prior indicator disease have a much higher risk of developing leukemia from low-level exposures than those who report no indicator disease. 17. Under NRC operating license specifications, light water nuclear power plants are allowed to release radioactive effluents in amounts which will result in radiation doses to the public of 25-75 millirems each year. How does this additional annual radiation exposure relate to the background radiation exposure?

Answer. Background radiation is generally taken as 100 millirem per year, although at particular locations, the actual figure may be somewhat higher or lower. The roughly 10-fold increase in leukemia with each decade of life is attributable, at least in part, to cumulative background exposure (which is directly proportional to age). If the excess radiation to the public is 50 millirem per year, this might be taken as roughly equivalent to aging 50 percent faster per year.

18. The NRC staff has concluded, regarding radiation emissions, that "...there will be no reasonable radiological impact on members of the public from routine operation of the station."* How does this risk analysis compare with the results of your research?

Answer. The risk analysis used by the NRC staff fails to use the current figures for health hazards of low-level radiation and does not take cumulative effects or synergistic effects from chemical pollution into account. Since the new risk estimates are 100 times greater than the ones NRC uses, the cumulative effects are much greater than NRC recognizes and the probable synergistic effects are much more serious, the NRC statement on radiological impact is at least questionable and in all likelihood is wrong.

*U. S. NRC, Final Environmental Statement related to the operation of Waterford SES, Unit No. 3, NUREG-0779, paragraph 5.9.1.2, p. 5-36.

19. Do you accept the biostatistical techniques and the risk analysis of

the "'R III report?

<u>Answer.</u> The BEIR III report is unacceptable since it completely ignores the quantitative estimates of radiation risks which can now be derived from biostatistical-epidemiological studies of populations actually exposed to low-level radiation. Extrapolations beyond the range of data is unacceptable from a statistical standpoint when there is actual data in the range, as there now is from more than 30 studies (Yale Symposium).

20. Can you describe the mechanism by which radiation and chemicals cause adverse health consequences? What is the operation of that mechanism?

Answer. Basically, the mechanism causing cancer and other effects to occur many years after the original chemical or radiation exposure is genetic damage to the DNA of human genetic material. This can be thought of as a "b.eak point" or defect in the complex chemical structure of the double helix. The defect in the DNA represents misinformation which has little or no effect (so far as the whole organism is concerned) as long as it is confined to a single cell. For the whole-body economy to be affected, it is necessary that the misinformation be reproduced by cloning (approximately 32 doubling times are needed). This is the explanation for the long "latent period" between the initial damage and the clinical manifestation of this damage. Eventually the misinformation (which generally involves the manufacture or control of enzymes involved in the host defense system) can result in the deterioration of the host defense syntem. This, in turn, allows the damaged cells to eventually become metastatic cancer cells. 21. Is there any difference between the mechanisms by which chemicals and radiation cause these adverse health consequences?

Answer. Yes. The radiation damage is random or non-specific whereas chemical mutagens ordinarily attack the structure of the DNA only at very specific points.

22. Does it matter in terms of public health consequences whether chemical mechanisms or radiation mechanisms are in effect?

Answer. Although the mechanisms are different, the adverse health effects are similar. It probably does not matter greatly whether a particular site of damage is produced by a random radiation effect or a systematic chemical effect as long as there is permanent misrepair of the break that puts misinformation into the genetic structure of the DNA.

23. How would the action of this mechanism be manifested in a population?

<u>Answer.</u> The genetic damage would not be immediately obvious because of the redundancy of biological systems; hence, current "target" theories assume that several break points are required to cause initiation of the cancer process (rather than a single break point). However, the damage cumulates in the sense that the genetic material of the population is degraded. Thus an increased proportion of the population will have multiply defects in their genetic material and their risks of cancer and other diseases are thereby increased. Suppose, for instance, hypothetically it takes 4 defects to produce cancer. If an individual had 3 pre-existing genetic defects, then it would take only 1 additional defect to initiate the cancer process. The manifestation of the genetic damage of a population, therefore, 's likely to be increased morbidity (e.g., indicator diseases) in the population but not necessarily cancer. Eventually, however, cancer rates go up, as the frequency of person in the "susceptible group" (e.g., 3 defects) increases and the low-level radiological and chemical exposures produces the additional break-point now needed to initate cancer.

24. In your view, is the health risk associated with this mechanism cumulative in a population from generation to generation?

<u>Answer.</u> Yes. As the successive generations are exposed to chemical or radiological mutagens, the proportion of the population in the susceptible group or next-to-susceptible damage categories builds up. Thus, there is a cumulative effect.

25. Could this health risk be cumulative over the lifetime of an individual? What support do you have for this view?

Answer. The cumulative effect of background and other environmental exposures is reflected in a steady increase of cancer risks with age that were noted in Question 17. In a mutagenic environment, the risk that a cell in a susceptible individual will sustain the additional break point needed to initiate cancer is proportional to time and in this sense is cumulative.

26. Could you identify any category(ies) of individuals more likely than the rest of the population to demonstrate health effects from a cumulative risk?

<u>Answer.</u> As previously noted, there is a susceptible group (persons who probably had pre-existing genetic damage) that are more likely than the rest of the population to be affected by low-level radiation or other exposures. We cannot identify these persons positively by the genetic technology now available although we can distinguish these persons in a probability sense by their prior medical history. 27. What is the qualitative result of cumulative low level radiation exposure? (i.e., what, if any, diseases are associated with such exposures).

Answer. The list of the diseases is a long one and we do not know where it ends. Leukemia and lymphoma are clearly radiogenic. There are also a number of technogenic solid tumors, such as long cancer, bladder cancer and esophagus cancer. The indicator diseases are also rediogenic. In general, it looks as though most of the diseases which are called "chronic diseases" are likely to be produced or promoted by mutagens in the environment.

28. Qualitatively, how does the health risk from low-level radiation exposure compare to the risk from relatively high level exposure?

Answer. Quantitatively, the answer to this question is given by the dosage response curve. According to recent evidence, the curve is far from linear. The current data suggests that the curve starts to level off at around 10 rem and is relatively flat for doses in the vicinity of 100 rem, and is relatively flat for doses in the vicinity of 100 rem, actually turning downward at even higher doses becvause the cells are sterilized and cannot clone. Qualitatively, this means that the risks for low-level radiation are not so very different from the risks for high-level radiation.

29. Given Louisiana's high cancer mortality rate due to chemical carcinogens present in the Mississippi River, such as chloroform, carbon tetrachloride, dimethylsulfoxide, benzene and others, and in the air between Baton Rouge and New Orleans, i.e. halogenated hydrocarbons, can you state the nature of the risk to the population posed by the introduction of radiation in the one rad range into this environment? Assume for this assessment a radiation dose to the population of 25-75 millirems/year.

<u>Answer.</u> In view of the limitations of our current scientific knowledge on the synergistic effects between specific chemicals (such as those named in the question) and low-level ionizing radiation, I don't think it is possible to give any precise quantitative predictions of specific risks in the exposed poulation. It is, however, possible to make a rough qualitative assessment by extrapolating from the experience in the U.S.S.R., where there are conditions similar to those that would exist with the operation of Waterford Three.

30. Why are the U.S.S.R. conditions similar?

<u>Answer.</u> The policy of siting nuclear reactors on chemically contaminated rivers is virtually forced by the geography of the Soviet Union. For practical purposes, Russia is a landlocked country. The main water resources for chemical or nuclear plants are the long river systems. Since these plants require large amounts of water, the siting policy in the U.S.S.R. has been to string these plants like beads along these long river systems. This results in a build-up in chemical and radiological contamination downstream. Hence, many areas in the U.S.S.R. have been experiencing the conditions that would exist on the lower Mississippi in Louisiana with the operations of Waterford Three.

31. Has this siting policy with a mix of chemical and nuclear plants along the Soviet Russian rivers had any adverse health effects on the population?

Answer. It seems to be having disastrous effects. In all of the technologically advanced nations (including the U.S.S.R.) there was a

declining infant mortality rate for many years. Howver, recently, in the U.S.S.R. these rates have turned around and are now <u>rising</u> rather rapidly. The rates now about double U.S. rates. This was first reported by CIA statisticians but has since been confirmed by Russian statisticians (according to newspaper reports).

32. Are there explanations other than contamination of the river waters for the increase in infant mortality rates in the U.S.S.R.? Why single out pollution?

Answer. There are always many post-hoc explanations for statistical facts and both the CIA and the Russian statisticians have given explanations other than pollution. While these explanations may sound plausible, the turn-around of a national rate requires some exposure to hazards on a <u>national</u> scale. Pollution is nationwide because of the siting strategy of the Communist technocrats and the high density of population along the river systems. However, attributing the turn-around to correction of underreporting in a remote province (the Russian explanation) or to vodka-drinking mothers (the CIA explanation) makes little epidemiological sense.

33. Are there positive reasons for attributing some or most of the increased infant mortality to chemical-radiological contamination of the Russian river system?

<u>Answer.</u> Yes. Drinking water is the key to infant mortality. The elimination of bacterial contamination was the key to the reduction in the mortality from infectious disease. To tur, the U.S.S.R. rates around, there has to be a replacement of the bacterial contamination by technogenic contamination of the drinking water. 34. What could be predicted for the Waterford Three siting policy on the basis of the experience with Soviet siting policy?

Answer. First, an increase in infant mortality that would reflect the genetic damage from the chemical-radiological contamination. Second, an increase in deaths of children before adulthood due to the genetic damage. Finally, an increase in the cancer rates for the adult population. These effects could occur from simple cumulative risks, but they would be greater if there are synergistic effects. The rapid increase in Soviet infant mortality rates suggests that there well may be synergistic effects from the chemical-radiological pollution in the river systems. Clearly, the U.S.S.R. has adopted a dangerous siting policy which the U.S. can avoid because it has more siting options.

35. Is there any actual scientific evidence that would suggest that there may be synergistic effects for deaths at early ages in the children of persons exposed to radiation?

Answer. Yes. There is strong evidence in a recent report in <u>Science</u> on the children of persons who had been exposed to the Japanese A-bomb (Schull, W.J., Masanori, O, Neel J.V.: Genetic Effects of the Atomic Bombs: A Reappraisal. Science, Vol. 213, pp. 1220-1227, September 11, 1981) In this case, of course, both parents were exposed to low-level ionizing radiation to the gonads (less than 10 rems) so it is not an example of synergism between chemicals and radiation. The report in <u>Science</u> found no statistically significant differences, but this was due to the use of a faulty statistical analysis. A straightforward analysis of the same data shows the clear evidence of synergism showing Graph I (See Appendix A, attached hereto.) 36. Can you explain Graph I?

<u>Answer.</u> Graph I (shown in Appendix A) demonstrates three things. First, from the ranges of the 95% confidence intervals (shown as vertical brackets), it is clear that the groups designated are distinct in terms of detectable effects in children from radiation exposure of their parents. Second, observing the horizontal dotted lines as the range of infant mortality among controls, it is also clear that <u>only</u> one group's percentage mortality falls wholely above the control range: the group in which both parents were exposed to 0-9 rems radiation.

The fact that infant mortality in this group is significantly elevated over that shown for exposures to father and to mother independently indicates a synergistic effect among children. Thirdly, it is important that the 95% confidence intervals for this zero-nine rems-to-both-parents group falls wholely within the upper segment of confidence intervals of the groups in which parents were exposed to much higher combined invels of radiation. So this graph demonstrates that synergism results in greater infant mortality in a group exposed to lower doses of radiation than in those exposed to higher doses. Nor can this result be predicted from the groups in which only one parent was exposed to zero-nine rems.

37. Is there any other evidence of synergism when both parents are exposed to radiation?

<u>Answer.</u> Yes. We had earlier shown that a similar phenomena occurs with diagnostic x-rays where there can be exposure of either parent before pregnancy or exposure of mother and fetus during pregnancy. Certain combinations of exposures showed synergism (Bross, I.D.J., Natarajan, N.: Cumulative Genetic Damage in Children Exposed to Preconception and Intrauterine Radiation. Investigative Radiology 15 (1): 52-64, 1980). 38. Is there any evidence that both reproductive wastage such as infant mortality <u>and</u> cancer in adults can be produced by the same contamination?

<u>Answer.</u> Yes. The chemical contamination at Love Canal produced doubled risks of spontaneous abortion and of birth defects (Bross, I.D.J.: Muddying the Water at Niagara. <u>New Scientist</u>, Vol. 88, No. 1231, pp. 728-729, December 11, 1980). In the same area, there is also excess cancer (Janerich, Burnett, Feck, et al: "Cancer Incidence in the Love Canal Area". <u>Science</u>, Vol. 212, pp. 1404-1407, June 19, 1981). Since both phenomena are due to genetic degradation, it is not surprising that they tend to go together. However, infant mortality shows up more quickly (9 months) than solid cancers (15 or more years).

39. Can you specify any subgroups within this South Louisiana population which might be special risk?

Answer. As noted in Question 26, there is a susceptible subgroup which is more likely to report indicator diseases than the general population, but it cannot be precisely identified by genetic markers.

40. Would introduction of radiation in the one rad range contained in liquid and gaseous and particulate emissions from the Waterford Three nuclear power plant aggravate this risk? By what mechansm is the risk enhanced?

Answer. There is now evidence from several studies that the doubling dose for myeloid leukemia in men is around 5 rem (See Yale Journal of Biology and Medicine, "Direct Estimates of Low-level Radiation Risks of Lung Cancer at Two NRC-compliant Nuclear Installations: Why are the New Risk Estimates 20 to 200 Times the Old Official Estimates,

1.14 Bak 31.

1-1-1-1-1-4-A

Bross and Driscoll). It is likely that the persons affected by this low-level radiation are the susceptibles with pre-existing genetic damage. The emissions from Waterford Three could aggravate the risk. It should be noted that while 25-75 millirem may be an average under normal operating conditions, for a variety of reasons, the individual exposures may be substantially higher. Apart from accidental releases, there are factors in every system that concentrate as well as dissipate particulate radioactives. In Pennsylvania, this occurred with cows eating grass downstream from the release. An average exposure is likely to be misleading because some people may not get any exposure and some may get 10 or 100 times this exposure.

11.14.

104

11-61108.1

41. Can you make a statement with regard to the health risk from low level radiation in emissions from Waterford Three as it impacts that portion of the population already at risk from pre-existing genetic damage as evidenced by "indicator diseases"?

<u>Answer.</u> For persons with pre-existing genetic damage as evidenced by "indicator diseases", etc., the risks of leukemia may be much more than doubled. In our studies of childhood leukemia (Bross, I.D.J. and Natarajan, N.: Genetic Damage from Diagnostic Radiation. JAMA, Vol. 237, pp. 2399-2401, May 30, 1977), the risks of leukemia in the children where indicator diseases are reported were increased by factors of 10 or more.

42. Can you make a statement with regard to the doubling dose which would affect this population with pre-existing genetic damage (due to chemical carcinogens in the Louisiana environment)?

Answer. Since the persons with pre-existing genetic damage cannot $\stackrel{\underline{}}{\underline{}}$ be accurately identified, it is not possible to make a quantitative state

ment about risks in this group. However, a doubling dose such as 5 rem involves averaging of risks over a population including these persons. Therefore, the doubling doses of these persons would, if anything, be substantially lower than 5 rem.

-

Sec. 21.

1141

43. What are the stages or steps in the oncological process?

Answer. We now know with reasonable certainty the general steps and stages in the cancer process, although there are many details (e.g., of the time frame) which still have to be filled in. The first two steps in the process are initiation and promotion. The initiation of the cancer process occurs when the treak-point is put into the DNA of human genetic material by a radiological or chemical process. This step is strictly one of physical science--physics and chemistry. However, nothing occurs elinically unless the second step, promotion, also takes place. It is during this step that the misinformation which is fixed in the genetic material, probably by misrepair of the lesion, is reproduced billions of times by cloning by the damaged cell. This is a biological process rather than a physical process.

During this phase, the cells are under surveillance of the host defense system and their growth may be slowed or even aborted. While long-term effects on the host defense system are probably genetic, chemicals and radiation - un also produce immediate effects on the system. Both chemical and radiological insult is used, for instance, to knock out the host defense system of animals so that transplanted human cancer cells can be used in animal studies. After about 32 doubling times, the cone of damaged cells may be large enough to be clinically detected or to cause symptoms. The later steps in the cancer process include growth of the primary tumor, local dissemination to the lymph nodes, generalized mestastases, and usually the death of the patient.

44. What roles do radiation and chemical agents play in the oncological process?

1.1.4.8

14

1

<u>Answer.</u> As noted in the previous question, radiation; and chemical agents can initiate the oncological process by causing genetic damage. They can also have direct effects on the host defense system which may promote cancer.

45. Are there any other mechanisms in which chemical agents and radiation work together?

<u>Answer.</u> Animal studies (where the terms "initiation" and "promotion" have a related but more specialized meaning) distinguish "complete" carcinogens from other carcinogens. A "complete" carcinogen can both initiate and promote whereas other carcinogens may do one or the other but not both. Radiation is a complete carcinogen and so is tobacco tar. However, radiation can also act together with a chemical initiator or a chemical promotor.

46. Is the damage from low-level radiation aggravated by excessive levels of chemical carcinogens?

<u>Answer.</u> As explained in the previous question, chemical carcinogens can work jointly with radiation effects to produce the combination of initiation and promotion that is needed for the clinical manifestation of cancer.

47. Can you cite any incidence of populations which have been exposed to risk factors (industrial chemical carcinogens and nuclear power plant emissions) similar to those which exist in south Louis and with the operation of Waterford Three? What has been the result as far as you know?

<u>Answer.</u> Two examples of populations exposed to risk factors, the Soviet river populations and the residents of Love Canal, have already been mentioned and the adverse health effects have been noted. Because the Niagara Falls Area has both chemical and radiological dumpsites, the high technogenic cancer rates in this area might possibly reflect some synergistic action, but this is speculative. What is not speculative is that Niagara Falls is in the upper decile of U.S. counties for the technological cancers such as lung, bladder, and esophagus. My testimony of December 10, 1981 ("Why the Assurances that the Water is 'Safe' Have No Scientific Validity") to the New York State Assembly Committee on Environmental Conservation dealt in more detail with these risks.

48. Does synergism exist or operate at low levels of exposure?

Line - the Pr

1-161004.41

Answer. Synergism operates at low levels of exposure (and possibly more efficiently at these levels).

49. What happens to a piece of DNA that has been broken? Is the result a lasting one?

<u>Answer.</u> There is a repair process for break-points in DNA. However, animal studies suggest that it is not a very accurate one. Probably it is a misrepair of the break-point that puts permanent misinformation into the DNA.

50. Do you know of any biostatistical models which relate risk from <u>existing genetic damage</u> in a population to additional risk from <u>radiation</u> in the one rad range, with reference to first and second generation exposure in the same population? Answer. An example of this is given in Questions 35, 36, and 37.

51. What is your assessment for the health risk to South Louisiana's population of the introduction of additional radiation in the one rad range resulting from plant operations at the Water Three nuclear generating facility?

Tak P.

1, 19,154

Answer. As indicated by the previous answers, it is not possible to give a very precise quantitative assessment of the health risks to Southern Louisiana populations from the additional radiation in the 1-rad range produced by plant operations at Waterford Three. However, as is also suggested by preceding questions there is sufficient scientific knowledge about the cancer process, genetic damage, radiation risks, chemical hazards, and potential interactions of chemical and radiological hazards to make a qualitative assessment. In other words, there is sufficient scientific knowledge and past experience (primarily in the U.S.S.R.) to indicate that the policy of siting nuclear reactors on the lower Mississippi River could pose a major public health hazard to the population of Southern Louisiana.

In my view, this evidence is more than sufficient to establish a very strong <u>prima</u> facie case that the siting policy would endager the public health and safety and at this point, I would appeal to the Primacy Principle: With possible technological hazards, the benefits must go to the public and not to the technology. This principle is discussed in my book, SCIENTIFIC STRATEGIES TO SAVE YOUR LIFE (Chapter 3).

In the U.S. (through not in the U.S.S.R.) there are viable alternatives to a policy of siting nuclear plants on a river with a heavy chemical burden already. Since these options exist for us, an application of the Primacy Principle indicates that it is clearly in the public interest to locate Waterford Three (or its equivalent) elsewhere. Indeed, I would add that the siting policy of putting nuclear plants on U. S. river systems should be reconsidered by NRC and this strategy eliminated. Unless this is done, the disastrous situation in the U.S.S.R., where the infant mortality rate is double that of the U. S. and is rapidly rising, could be the shape of things to come in the U.S.

** - See 25.

11-1424.4

CURRICULUM VITAE

IRWIN D.J. BROSS, Ph.D.

Born: November 13, 1921, Halloway, Ohio, Male Married with 3 children

EDUCATION:

	Dates	Degree	Field
UCLA, California North Carolina State, N.C. University of North Carolina, North Carolina	1942 1948 1949	B.A. M.A. Ph.D.	Mathematics Experimental Statistics Experimental Statistics

POSITIONS HELD:

Associate in the Department	Johne Hopkins Univ.	1971-Present
Acting Chief of Epidemiology	Reswell Park Mem. Insg.	1966-1974
Research Professor of Biostatistics	State University of N.Y. at Buffal	1961-Present
Director of Biostatistics Head, Research Design & Analysis Assistant Professor for Public	Roswell Fark Mem. Inst. Sloan Kettering Inst. Cornell University	1959-Present 1952-1959 1952-1959
Health & Freventive Medicine Research Associate, Department	Med. College Johns Hopkins Univ.	1949-1952

MEMBERSHIPS:

American Association for the Advancement of Science American Statistical Association Biometric Society Society for Epidemiologic Research Fellow, American College of Epidem 2003

BIBLIOGRAPHY

Dr. Irwin D.J. Bross

- Fiducial Intervals for Variance Components. Biometrics, 6(2):
 136-144, June 1950.
- Study of the Influence of Sex of Donor on the Survival of Erythroblastotic Infants Treated by Exchange Transfusion. (Coauthors: *Milton S. Sacks, C.L. Spurling, Elsa F. Jahn). Pediatrics, 6(5):772-777, November 1950.
- Estimates of the LD50: A Critique. Biometrics, 6(4):413-423, December 1950.
- Two-Choice Selection. Journal of the American Statistical Association, 45:530-540, December 1950.
- Significance Tests for Certain 2x2 Tables. (Coauthor: M.M. Delaney). The American Journal of Hygiene, <u>55(3):357-362</u>, May 1952.
- Sequential Medical Plans. Biometrics, 8(3):188-205, September 1952.
- Introduction to the Theory of Games: Book Review. Journal of the American Statistical Association, <u>48</u>(263):655-657, September 1953.
- Observations on an Outbreak of Infectious Hepatitis in Baltimore During 1951. (Coauthors: *Abraham M. Lilienfeld, Philip E. Sartwell). The American Journal of Public Health, <u>43</u>(9):1085-1096. September 1953.
- DESIGN FOR DECISION. The Macmillan Company, New York, New York, 276 pages, October 1953.
- A Confidence Interval for a Percentage Increase. Biometrics, <u>10</u> (2):245-250, June 1954.
- Is There an Increased Risk? Federation Proceedings, <u>13</u>(3):815-819, September 1954.
- 12. Looking Around: Statistical Decision Making. Harvard Business Review, 32(5):133-147, September-October 1954.
- Misclassification in 2x2 Tables. Biometrics, 10(4):478-486, December 1954.

* a Principal Author if other than Dr. Bross
- Statistical Analysis of Clinical Results from 6-Mercaptopurine. Annals of the New York Academy of Sciences, 60(2):369-373, December 6, 1954.
- 15. Therapy for Intellectual Obesity or Common Sense in Reducing
 Figures. The American Journal of Obstetrics and Gynecology, 69
 (2):372-377, February 1955.
- 16. How to Make Decisions. The American Society for Quality Control National Convention Transactions, pp. 457-466, May 1955.
- Statistics and the Clinician. Annals of Internal Medicine, 43(2):442-450, August 1955.
- Body Weight as a Factor in the Response of Mice to Botulinal Toxins. (Coauthors: *Carl Lamanna, Wayne I. Jensen). The American Journal of Hygiene, 62(1):21-28, July 1955.
- A Study of Environmental Factors in Cancer of the Larynx. (Coauthors: Ernst L. Wynder, Emerson Day). Cancer, 9(1):86-110, January-February 1956.
- Epidemiological Approach to the Etiology of Cancer of the Larynx. (Coauthors: Ernst L. Wynder, Emerson Day). Journal of the American Medical Association, 160:1384-1391, April 21, 1956.
- Important Factors in the Evaluation of Medical Statistics. Modern Medicine, 24(9):244-248, May 1, 1956.
- 22. The Distribution of Sickness Disability in a Homogeneous Group of 'Healthy Adult Men'. (Coauthors: *Lawrence L. Hinkle, Jr., Ruth H. Pinsky, Norman Plummer). American Journal of Hygiene, <u>64</u>(2): 220-242, September 1956.
- Ridit Analysis of Automotive Crash Injuries. (Coauthor: Rivkah Feldman). Division of Automotive Crash Injury Research, CUMC, October 15, 1956.
- Lung Cancer in Women. A Study of Environmental Factors. (Coauthors: *Ernst L. Wynder, Jerome Cornfield, Walter E. O'Donnell). New England Journal of Medicine, <u>255</u>:1111-1121, December 13, 1956.
- 25. Rapid Analysis of 2x2 Tables. (Coauthor: Ethel L. Kasten). Journal of the American Statistical Association, 52(227):18-28, March 1957.
- 26. The Significance of Delay in Relation to Prognosis of Patients with Primary Operable Breast Cancer. (Coauthor: *Guy F. Robbins). Cancer, 10(2):338-344, March-April 1957.

- Lung Cancer in Women. Abstract in Modern Medicine, April 1, 1957.
- Aetiological Factors in Mouth Cancer, An Approach to Its Prevention. (Coauthor: "rnst L. Wynder). British Medical Journal, i:1137-1143, May 18, 1957.
- Environmental Factors in Cancer of the Upper Alimentary Trac*.
 A Swedish Study with Special Reference to Plummer-Vinson (Paterson-Kelly) Syndrome. (Coauthors: *Ernst L. Wynder, Sven Hultberg, Folke Jacobsson). Cancer, 10(3):470-487, May-June 1957.
- A Method for Evaluation of Laxative Habits in Human Subjects. (Coauthors: *Theodore Greiner, Harry Gold). Journal of Chronic Diseases, 6(3):244-255, September 1957.
- 31. Studies in Human Ecology: Factors Relevant to the Occurrence of Bodily Illness and Disturbances in Mood, Thought, and Behavior in Three Homogeneous Population Groups. (Coauthors: *Lawrence E. Hinkle, Jr., Norman Plummer, Rhoda Metraux, Peter Richter, John W. Gittinger, William N. Thetford, Adrian M. Ostfeld, Francis D. Kane, Leo Goldberger, William E. Mitchell, Hope Leichter, Ruth Pinsky, David Goebel, Harold G. Wolff). American Journal of Psychiatry, 114(3):212-220, September 1957.
- 32. A Study of the Etiologic Factors in Cancer of the Mouth. (Coauthors: *Ernst L. Wynder, Rivkah Feldman). Cancer, 10(6): 1300-1323, November-December 1957.
- 33. How to Use Ridit Analysis. Biometrics, 14(1):18-38, March 1958.
- Sequential Clinical Trials. Journal of Chronic Diseases, 8(3): 349-365, September 1958.
- 35. Evaluation of the Performance of Indices of Tumor Growth in the Testing of Tumor Growth Inhibitors Against the Nelson Ascites Tumor. (Coauthor: *George S. Tarnowski). Annals of the New York Academy of Sciences, 76(3):586-600, December 5, 1958.
- 36. Statistical Problems in a Mass Screening Program. (Coauthors: Paul Armitage, Marvin A. Schneiderman. Discussant: Irwin Bross). Annals of the New York Academy of Sciences, <u>76</u>(3):903-905, December 1958.
- LA DECISION ESTADISTICA. Aguilar, Madrid, Spanish Translation, 1958.
- Note on an Application of the Schumann-Bradley Table. The Annals of Mathematical Statistics, 30(2):581-583, June 1959.

- 39. The Significance of Early Treatment of Breast Cancer. (Coauthors: *G.F. Robbins, J.W. Berg, C. DePadua, G.P. Sarmiento). Cancer, 12(4):688-692, July-August 1959.
- 40. Ridit Analysis of the Effects of Carcinostatic Chemicals on the Growth Indices of the Nelson Mouse Ascites Tumor. (Coauthor:
 *George S. Tarnowski). Cancer Research, 19(6):581-590, July 1959.
- Cancer and Coronary Artery Disease Among Seventh-Day Adventists. (Coauthors: *Ernst L. Wynder, Frank R. Lemon). Cancer, <u>12(5)</u>: 1016-1028, September-October 1959.
- Controlled Clinical Trials for Cancer Chemotherapy. Chemotherapy of Cancer Syllabus, Sloan-Kettering Institute, VII-12-VII-28, October - November 6, 1959.
- The Antiemetic Efficacy of Cyclizine (Marezine) and Triflupromazine (Vesprin). (Coauthors: *J. Weldon Bellville, William S. Howland). Anesthesiology, 20(6):761-766, November-December 1959.
- A Method for the Clinical Evaluation of Antiemetic Agents. (Coauthors: *J. Weldon Bellville, William S. Howland). Anesthesiology, 20(6):753-760, November-December 1959.
- 45. Statistical Criticism. Cancer, 13(2):394-400, March-April 1960.
- Postope ative Nausea and Vomiting IV: Factors Related to Postoperative Nausea and Vomiting. (Coauthors: *J. Weldon Bellville, William S. Howland). Anesthesiology, <u>21</u>(2):186-193, March-April 1960.
- 47. Postoperative Nausea and Vomiting III: Evaluation of the Antiemetic Drugs Fluphenazine (Prolixin) and Promethazine (Phenergan) and Comparison with Triflupromazine (Vesprin) and Cyclizine (Marezíne). (Coauthors: *J. Weldon Bellville, William S. Howland). The Journal of the American Medical Association, <u>172</u>:1488-1493, April 2, 1960.
- A Study of the Epidemiology of Cancer of the Breast. (Coauthors: *Ernst L. Wynder, Takeushi Hiryama). Cancer, <u>13</u>(3), May-June 1960.
- 49. A Rapid Quantitative Method for the Comparison of Diuretic
 Agents in Bed-Patients with Congestive Failure. (Coauthors:
 *Harry Gold, Nathaniel T. Kwit, Argyrios J. Golfinos). American Journal of the Medical Sciences, 239(6)(43/665 58/680), June 1960.
- 50. DESIGN FOR DECISION. Hokkaido, Japan, Japanese Translation, 1960.

- 51. How to Cut the Highway Toll in Half in the Next Ten Years. Public Health Reports, 75(7):573-581, July 1960.
- 52. Postoperative Nausea and Vomiting V: Antiemetic Efficacy of Trimethobenzamide and Perphenazine. (Coauthors: *J. Weldon Bellville, William S. Howland). Clinical Pharmacology and Therapeutics, 1(5):590-596, September-October 1960.
- 53. Outliers in Patterned Experiments: A Strategic Appraisal. Technometrics, 3(1):91-102, February 1961.
- 54. Tables published in 6 AUSLAGE DOCUMENTA GEIGY WISSENSCHAFTLICHE TABLLEN, published by J.R. Geigy. Printed in Switzerland, pp. 170.27, 1961. (and END PAPER).
- A Study of Etiological Factors in Cancer of the Esophagus. (Coauthor: *Ernst L. Wynder). Cancer, <u>14</u>(2):389-413, March-April 1961.
- PREVISION ET DECISIONS RATIONNELLES. Dunod, Paris, French Translation, 1961.
- Food Additives. (Coauthors: *Morton L. Levin, Paul R. Sheehe). Science, 133:947-948, March 24, 1961.
- Statistical Dogma: A Challenge. The American Statistician, 5(3):14-15, June 1961.
- Latin Squares to Balance Immediate Residual, and Other Order, Effects. (Coauthor: *Paul R. Sheehe). Biometrics, <u>17</u>(3): 405-414, September 1961.
- On a Graphical Sequential Test. Biometrics, <u>17(4):649-651</u>, December 1961.
- 61. A New Approach to Differential Toxicity. (Coauthor: George S. Tarnowski). Cancer Research, 22(1):46-56, January 1962.
- Titration of the Effects of a Group of Selected Chemicals on the Growth of Ascites and Solid Forms of the Nelson Mouse Tumor. (Coauthor: *George S. Tarnowski). Cancer Research, <u>22(1):136-155</u>, January 1962.
- 63. Symposium on Clinical Drug Evaluation and Human Pharmacology:
 Part V. An Ametric Approach to Bioassay. Clinical Pharmacology and Therapeutics, 3(3):369-373, May-June 1962.
- 64. Discussion on the Foundations of Statistical Inference. Discussants: Allan Birnbaum and others). Journal of the American Statistical Association, 57(298):269-305, June 1962.

- Tobacco and Health. (Letter to the Editor). (Coauthors: Morton L. Levin, George E. Moore). Science, <u>137</u>(3533):925, 926, 928, September 14, 1962.
- How Can Safety Measures Be Scientifically Evaluated? Passenger
 Car Design and Highway Safety. Consumers Union of U.S., Inc.,
 pp. 12-24 (et seq.), September 1962.
- Symposium on Clinical Drug Evaluation and Human Pharmacology: Part VIII. An Ametric Approach to Bioassay. C.V. Mosby Company, St. Louis, pp. 49-53, 1962.
- Highway Risks at Extreme Speeds. Public Health Reports, <u>78(1)</u>: 27-33, January 1963.
- 69. Some Epidemiological Features of Malignant Solid Tumors of Children in the Buffalo, N.Y. Area. (Coauthors: *Donald Pinkel, John E. Dowd). Cancer, <u>16</u>(1):28-33, January 1963.
- How Can Safety Measures Be Scientifically Evaluated? Traffic Safety, 62(2):16-18, February 1963.
- Linguistic Analysis of a Statistical Controversy. The American Statistician, 17(1):18-21, February 1963.
- 72. PREVENTIVE MEDICINE AND PUBLIC HEALTH. Chapter 3 "Statistics in Public Health and Medical Research". (Author: W.G. Smillie; Revised by: E.D. Kilbourne). 3rd ed. The Macmillan Co., New York, pp. 36-73, 1963.
- 73. Key Problems in Clinical Testing. (Name of Dr. Bross withheld on publication). Interagency Coordination in Drug Research and Regulation. Hearing before the Subcommittee on Reorganization and International Organizations of the Committee on Government Operations United States Senate, Eighty-Eighth Congress. First Session. Fart 4, pp. 1632-1633, March 21, 1963.
- Linguistic Habits of Scientists. Perspectives in Biology and Medicine, VI(3):322-346, Spring 1963.
- 75. Futility of High-Speed Driving. 80 m.p.h. Speed Sharply Increases Accident Risk with Little Saving in Time. Traffic Digest and Review, 11(6):16, June 1963.

Studies on Hyaline Membrane Disease: I. The Fibrinolysin
 System in Pathogenesis and Therapy. (Authors: *Clara M. Ambrus, et al.) (Appendix A by Dr. Irwin Bross). Pediatrics, <u>32(1):24</u>, July 1963.

i.







- 77. Comments on High Speeds. Public Health Reports, 78(9):821-822, September 1963.
- 78. Studies on Topical Chemotherapy of Tumor-Contaminated Surgical Wounds. (Coauthors: *Faud A. Mukhtar, F. Stanley Hoffmeister, Joe DiPaolo, Paul R. Sheehe, Hans Wilkens, George E. Moore). The American Journal of Surgery, 106(5):768-776, November 1963.
- 79. Statistical and Inductive Probabilities. (Book Review of Hugues Leblanc). Journal of the American Statistical Association, 58(304):1171-1173, December 1963.
- Comments on Highway Speeds. Public Health Reports, <u>79(1)</u>: 87-90, January 1964.
- Prisoners of Jargon. American Journal of Public Health, <u>54(6)</u>: 918-927, June 1964.
- 82. Highway Risks at Extreme Speeds. (Spanish title: Los Peligros De La Velocidad Excesiva En Las Carreteras*) Boletin de la Oficina Sanitaria Panamericana, LVII(1):55-62, June 1964.
- Is It Really Wrong? The American Statistician, <u>18(3):21-22</u>, June 1964.
- 84. Comparison of Reserpine and 20-Methoxydeserpidine by a New Method for the Assay of Antihypertensives in Ambulant Patients. (Coauthors: *N.T. Kwit, D. Mehta, H. Gold, A.J. Golfinos, W.N. Zahm, E.A. Goessel). Journal of New Drugs, <u>4</u>(4):200-205, July-August 1964.
- 85. Taking a Covariable into Account. Journal of the American Statistical Association, 59(307):725-736, September 1964.
- Blood Groups in Patients with Multiple Cancers. (Coauthors: *Y. Tsukada, R.H. Moore, J.W. Pickren, E. Cohen). Cancer, <u>17</u>(10): 1229-1232, October 1964.
- 87. Diuretic Effect of Polythiazide and Sodium Meralluride: Comparison in Bedfast Patients with Edema. (Coauthors: *H. Gold, N.T. Kwit, D. Mehta). Journal of the American Medical Association, 190(7):571-574, November 1964.
- 88. Incidence of Second Primary Tumors in Children with Cancer and Leukemia: A Seven-Year Survey of 150 Consecutive Autopsied Cases. (Coauthors: *William Regelson, Juliet Hananian, Goryun Nigogosyan). Cancer, <u>18</u>(1):58-72, January 1965.
- 89. NIH Career Awards. (Letters) Science, <u>147</u>(3664):1395, March 1965.





- 90. BESLUITVORMING EN STATISTIEK. Marka-Boeken, Antwerpen, Dutch Translation of DESIGN FOR DECISION, 1965.
- 91. DESIGN FOR DECISION. A Free Press Paperback, The Macmillan Company, 1965.
- 92: JAK PODEJMOVAC DECYZJE. Panstwowe Wydawnictwo Naukowe, Wirsaw, Polish Translation of DESIGN FOR DECISION, 1965.
- 93. Book Review of "Stochastic Models in Medicine and Biology". Proceedings of a symposium conducted by the Mathematics Research Center. Quarterly Review of Biology, 40(3):327-328, September 1965.
- 94. Synchronous Tumors in Patients with Multiple Primary Cancers. (Coauthors: *R. Moore, Y. Tsukada, W. Regelson, J.W. Pickren). Cancer, 18(11):1423-1430, November 1965.
- 95. Clinical Factors in Smoking Withdrawal: Preliminary Report. (CoautHors: *Arlene L. Plakun, Julian Ambrus, Saxon Graham, Morton L. Levin, Charles A. Ross). The American Journal of Public Health, 56(3):434-441, March 1966.
- Electronic Computers for Evaluation of Clinical Data. III. Interpretation of Data. Cancer Chemotherapy Reports, 50(3):157-161, March 1966.
- 97. BESLUTS PLANERING. Bokforlaget Aldus/Bonniers, Stockholm, Swedish Translation of DESIGN FOR DECISION, 1966.
- 98. Development of Lower Genital Carcinomas in Patients with Anal Carcinoma - A More Than Casual Relationship. (Coauthors: *A. Cabrera, Y. Tsukada, J.W. Pickren, R. Moore). Cancer, <u>19</u>(4):470-480. April 1966.
- 99. What is an Objective Response? (Coauthors: *A.A. Rimm, J.K. Ahlstrom). Proceedings of the American Association for Cancer Research, 7:59, April 1966.
- Spurious Effects From an Extraneous Variable. Journal of Chronic Diseases, 19:637-647, June 1966.
- 101. Is Toxicity Really Necessary? I. The Question. (Coauthors:
 A.A. Rimm, N.H. Slack, R.K. Ausman, R. Jones, Jr.). Cancer, 19
 (12):1280-1784, December 1966.
- 1025 Is Toxicity Really Necessary? II. Source and Analysis of Data. (Coauthors: A.A. Rimm, N.H. Slack, R.K. Ausman, R. Jones, Jr.). Cancer, 19(12):1785-1795, December 1966.





- 103. Is Toxicity Really Necessary? III. Theoretical Aspects. (Coauthors: A.A. Rimm, N ____ack, R.K. Ausman, R. Jones, Jr.). Cancer, 19(12):1796-180-, December 1966.
- 104. Letter to the Editor on the Bayesian Pendulum. American Statistician, 21(1):37-38, February 1967.

105. Tar and Nicotine Retrieval From Fifty-Six Brands of Cigarettes. (Coauthors: *G.E. Moore, R. Shamberger, F.G. Bock). Cancer, 20(3):323-332, Ma. ch 1967.

- 106. Which Breast Cancer Patients Have Faster Growing Tumors? (Coauthors: *R.L. Priore, L.E. Blumenson, N.H. Slack). Proceedings of the American Association for Cancer Research, 8:55, March 1967.
- 107. Chemotherapy and a Two-Disease Model of Breast Cancer. (Coauthors: L.E. Blumenson, N.H. Slack, R.L. Priore). First Tenovus Symposium on Factors Influencing Prognosis of Breast Cancer, p. 19, 1967 (Abstract).
- 108. Adjuvant Chemotherapy for Cancer of the Corpus Uteri (Preliminary Report). (Coauthors: *G.C. Lewis, Jr., S.J. Nadler, N.H. Slack). Obstetrics and Gynecology, 29(6):757-902, June 1967.
- 109. Long-Term Drug Dangers. (Letter to the Editor). Science, 156(3782):1552-1553, June 1967.
- Pertinency of an Extraneous Variable. Journal of Chronic Diseases, 20:487-495, 1967.
- Experiment--or Stagnate. (Letter to the Editor). New York Times Magazine, p. 4, July 1967.
- 112. Tar and Nicotine in Cigarettes. (Abstract of "Tar and Nicotine Retrieval from Fifty-Six Brands of Cigarettes"). Modern Medicine, 35(17):64, August 1967.
- What is Objective Tumor Response? (Coauthors: *A.A. Rimm, J.K. Ahlstrom). Cancer, 20(8):1326-1334, August 1967.
- 114. Letter to the Editor on Fiscal vs. Scientific Criteria. Saturday Review, pp. 104-105, January 1968.

Chromosomes and Causation of Human Cancer and Leukemia. IV.
 Vectorial Analysis. (Coauthors: *A.A. Sandberg, N. Takagi, M.L. Schmidt). Cancer, 21(1):77-82, January 1968.

in the second



- 116. Design of Future Studies of Surgical Adjuvants in Breast Cancer. (Coauthors: N. Slack, L. Blumenson, R. Priore). Proceedings of the American Association for Cancer Research, 9:9, March 1968, (Abstract).
- 117. Recognition of Syntactic Structure by Computer. (Letter to the Editor). Nature, 217(5133):1078, March 1968.
- 113. What is Pain? A Scientific Approach to Questions of Psychopharmacological Language. In PSYCHOPHARMACOLOGY: DIMENSIONS AND PERSPECTIVES. Edited by J.R.B. Joyce for Tavistock Publications, J.B. Lippincott Company. (London, England), 1968.
- 119. DESIGN FOR DECISION. Published in Slavak by Slovenske Vydavatel 'stvo Technickej Literatury in Bratislava, Czechoslovakia, 1968.
- 120. 'Basic Science' Under Military Control. (Letter to the Editor). New York Times, May 5, 1968.
- 121. Effect of Filter Cigarettes on the Risk of Lung Cancer. National Cancer Institute Monograph, (28):35-40, 1968.
- 122. Chronology and Pattern of Human Chromosome Replication. IX. Metasynchronous DNA Replication in Homologs. (Coauthors: *A.A. Sandberg, N. Takagi, M.L. Schmidt). Cytogenetics, 7: 298-332, 1968.
- 123. A Syntactic Formula for English Sentences: Application to Scientific Narrative. Computers and Biomedical Research, 1(6): 565-578, June 1968.
- 124. A Two-Disease Model For Breast Cancer. (Coauthors: L.E. Blumenson, N.H. Slack. R.L. Priore). In PROGNOSTIC FACTORS IN BREAST CANCER. (Proceedings of First Tenovus Symposium, Cardiff 12th-14th April 1967). Edited by A.P.M. Forrest and P.B. Kunkler, for E. & S. Livingstone Ltd., Edinburgh and London, pp. 288-300, 1968.
- 125. A Controlled Randomized Comparative Study of Early and Late Adrenalectomy in Women with Advanced Breast Cancer. (Coauthors: *T.L. Dao, T. Nemoto). In PROGNOSTIC FACTORS IN BREAST CANCER. (Proceedings of First Tenovus Symposium, Cardiff 12th-14th April 1967). Edited by A.P.M. Forrest and P.B. Kunkler, for E. & S. Livingstone Ltd., Edinburgh and London, pp. 177-185, 1968.

126

Risks of Lung Cancer in Smokers Who Switch to Filter Cigarettes. (Coauthor: R. Gibson). American Journal of Public Health, <u>58</u> (8):1396-1403. August 1968.

- 127. Book Review of "Proceedings of the Fifth Berkeley Symposium on Mathematical Statistics and Probability". Cancer Research, 28(9):1916, September 1968.
- 128. Leukemia in Children Exposed to Multiple Risk Factors. (Coauthors: *R.W. Gibson, S. Graham, A.M. Lilienfeld, L.M. Schuman, M.L. Levin, J.E. Dowd). New England Journal of Medicine, 279(17):906-909, October 1968.
- 129. Effects of 5-Fluorouracil (NSC-19893) in 389 Patients with Cancer (Eastern Clinical Drug Evaluation Program). (Coauthors: *G.E. Moore, R. Ausman, S. Nadler, R. Jones, Jr., N. Slack, A.A. Rimm). Cancer Chemotherapy Reports (Part 1), 52(6):641-653, October 1968.
- 130. Effects of 6-Mercaptopurine (NSC-755) in 290 Patients with Advanced Cancer (Eastern Clinical Drug Evaluation Program). (Coauthors: *G.E. Moore, R. Ausman, S. Nadler, R. Jones, Jr., N. Slack, A.A. Rimm). Cancer Chemotherapy Reports (Part 1), 52(6): 655-660, October 1968.
- 131. Effects of Chlorambucil (NSC-3088) in 374 Patients with Advanced Cancer (Eastern C'inical Drug Evaluation Program). (Coauthors: *G.E. Moore, R. Ausman, S. Nadler, R. Jones, Jr., N. Slack, A.A. Rimm). Cancer Chemotherapy Reports (Part 1), 52(6):661-666, October 1968.
- 132. Effects of Meturedepa (NSC-51325) in 233 Patients with Advanced Cancer (Eastern Clinical Drug Evaluation Program). (Coauthors: G.E. Moore, R. Ausman, S. Nadler, R. Jones, Jr., N. Slack, A.A. Rimm). Cancer Chemotherapy Reports (Part 1), 52(6):667-673, October 1968.
- 133. Effects of Mitomycin C (NSC-26980) in 346 Patients with Advanced Cancer (Eastern Clinical Drug Evaluation Program). (Coauthors: *G.E. Moore, R. Ausman, S. Nadler, R. Jones, Jr., N. Slack, A.A. Rimm). Cancer Chemotherapy Reports, (Part 1), 52(6):675-684, October 1968.
- 134. Carcinoma of the Bladder, 5-Fluorouracil and the Critical Role of a Placebo. 'A Cooperative Group Report I'. (Coauthors: *G.R. Prout, Jr., N.H. Slack, R.K. Ausman). Cancer, 22(5): 926-931, November 1968.
- Cigarette Smoking and Periodontal Disease. (Coauthors: *H.
 Solomon, R.L. Priore). Journal of the American Dental Association, 77(5):1081-1084, November 1968.
- 136. Letter to the Editor on Peck Order in the Sciences. American Statisticum, 22(5):37-38, December 1968.





- Statistical Testing of a Deep Mathematical Model for Human Breast Cancer. (Coauthor: L.E. Blumenson). Journal of Chronic Diseases, 21:493-506, December 1968.
- 138. Relation Between Aortic Atherosclerosis and the Use of Gigarettes and Alcohol: An Autopsy Study. (Coauthors: *D.L. Sackett, R.W. Gibson, J.W. Pickren). New England Journal of Medicine, 279(26): 1413-1420, December 1968.
- Ridit Analysis. (Anonymous). New England Journal of Medicine, 279(26):1453-1454, December 1968.
- 140. A Mathematical Analysis of the Growth and Spread of Breast Cancer. (Coauthor: *L.E. Blumenson). Biometrics, <u>25(1)</u>: 95-109, March 1969.
- 141. Applications of Probability: Science vs. Pseudoscience. Journal of the American Statistical Association, <u>64</u>(325):51-57, March 1969.
- 142. Feasibility of an Automated Reporting-And-Inquiry System With All Transactions in the Natural Language of the User. (Coauthors: R.L. Priore, P.A. Shapiro, D.F. Stermole, B.B. Anderson). Proceedings of the American Association for Cancer Research, 10:9, March 1969. (Abstract)
- 143. Information in Natural Languages: A New Approach. (Coauthors: *P.A. Shapiro, R.L. Priore, B.B. Anderson). Journal of the American Medical Association, 207(11):2080-2084, March 1969.
- 144. Dunce Caps for Giant Brains. The New York Statistician, 20(4): 1-2, March-April 1969.
- 145. How Case-For-Case Matching Can Improve Design Efficiency. The American Journal of Epidemiology, 89(4):359-363, April 1969.
- 146. Role of Placebo, 5-FU in Study of Bladder Cancer. (Coauthors: *G.R. Prout, N.H. Slack, R.K. Ausman). Modern Medicine, <u>37</u>(7): 142, April 1969. (Abstract)
- 147. A Statistical Solution to an Ethical Problem. (Coauthors: M.L. Schmidt, T.L. Dao, T. Nemoto). Clinical Pharmacology and Therapeutics, 10(3):307-313, May-June 1969.

Feasibility of Automated Information Systems in the Users' Natural Language. (Coauthors: R.L. Priore, P.A. Shapiro, D.F. Stermole, B.B. Anderson). American Scientist, <u>57</u>(2):193-205, Summer 1969.

- 149. Book Review of "Information Retrieval Systems: Characteristics, Testing, and Evaluation", by F.W. Lancaster. American Scientist, 57(2):124A-125A, Summer 1969.
- Location of Breast Cancer and Prognosis. (Coauthors: *B. Fisher, N.H. Slack, R.K. Ausman (and Cooperating Investigators)).
 Surgery, Gynecology and Obstetrics, 4:705-716, October 1969.
- 151. Cancer of the Breast: Size of Neoplasm and Prognosis. (Coauthors: *B. Fisher, N.H. Slack (and Cooperating Investigators)). Cancer, 24(5):1071-1080, November 1969.
- 152. Letter to the Editor on Requiring Proof of Efficacy and Safety for all Therapy. American Journal of Public Health, <u>59(11)</u>: 1978-1979, November 1969.
- 153. Therapeutic Implications From a Mathematical Model Characterizing the Course of Breast Cancer. (Coauthors: *N.H. Slack, L.E. Blumenson). Cancer, 24(5):960-971, November 1969.
- 154. What is Objective Tumor Response? (Coauthors: *A.A. Rimm, J.K. Ahlstrom). In YEAR BOOK OF CANCER, pp. 357-359. Year Book Medical Publishers, Inc., Chicago, 1969.
- 155. Changes in Fibrin-Stabilizing Factor Levels in Relation to Maternal Hemorrhage and Neonatal Disease. (Coauthors: *C.M. Ambrus, J.L. Ambrus, K.R. Niswander, D.H. Weintraub, H.B. Lassman). Pediatric Research, 4(1):82-88, 1970.
- 156. DESIGN FOR DECISION. Kodan Sha Ltd., Tokyo, Japan, Japanese Translation, 1970.
- 157. The Role of Mathematical Models in Clinical Research. The American Statistician, 24(1):53-56, February 1970.
- 158. Cats and Childhood Leukemia. (Coauthor: R. Gibson). Proceedings of the American Association for Cancer Research, <u>11</u>:12, March 1970, (Abstract).
- 159. Cats and Childhood Leukemia. (Coauthor: R. Gibson). Journal of Medicine, 1(3):180-187, 1970.
- 160. Statistical Criticism. In THE QUANTITATIVE ANALYSIS OF SOCIAL PROBLEMS, Edward R. Tufte, ed., pp. 97-108. Addison-Wesley Publishing Co., Massachusetts, 1970.
- 161. A Model System for Detecting Drug Impairment of Antitumor Host Defenses. (Coauthors: *E. Mihich, R.M. Mihich, C.A. Nichol). Cancer Research, 30:1376-1383, May 1970.

- 162. Irradiation and 5-Fluorouracil as Adjuvants in the Management of Invasive Bladder Carcinoma. A Cooperative Group Report After Four Years. (Coauthors: *G.R. Prout, Jr., N.H. Slack). Journal of Urology, 104:116-129, July 1970.
- 163. Evaluation of Survivors of Respiratory Distress Syndrome at 4
 Years of Age. (Coauthors: *C.M. Ambrus, D.H. Weintraub, K.R. Niswander, L. Fischer, J. Fleishman, J.L. Ambrus). American Journal of Diseased Children, 120:296-302, October 1970.
- Prof Says Computers Have Been Flops in Science. Reporter, 2 (21):4, February 1971. (Abstract).
- 165. Does Illness in Pets Increase Risk of Human Leukemia? (Coauthors: R. Bertell, R. Gibson). American Association for Cancer Research, 12:8, March 1971 (Abstract).
- 166. Prognostic Factors Affecting Adrenalectomy in Patients with Metastatic Cancer of the Breast. (Coauthors: *M.L. Schmidt, T. Nemoto, T. Dao). Cancer, 27(5):1106-1111, May 1971.
- 167. Preoperative Irradiation as an Adjuvant in the Surgical Management of Invasive Bladder Carcinoma. (Coauthors: *G.R. Prout, N.P. Slack). Journal of Urology, 105:223-231, 1971.
- Analysis of Prognostic Factors in Patients with Primary Breast Carcinoma. (Coauthor: *N.H. Slack). Journal of Medicine, <u>2</u>: 93-111, 1971.
- 169. Letter to the Editor. Science, <u>172</u>(3982):426, April 1971. (Abstract).
- 170. Letter to the Editor. Open Access Archives. The American Statistician, 25(2):36f, April 1971. (Abstract).
- Previous Tonsillectomy and the Incidence of Acute Leukaemia of Childhood. (Coauthors: *A.I. Freeman, N. Lieberman, J. Tidings, O. Glidewell). Lancet, p. 1128, May 1971.
- 172. Application of a Mathematical Model to a Clinical Study of the Local Spread of Endometrial Cancer. (Coauthors: *L.E. Blumenson, N.H. Slack). Cancer, 28(3):735-744, September 1971.
- 173. Another Look at Bode's Law. "Comment'. Journal of the American Statistical Association, 66(335):562-564, September 1971.
- Some Epidemiological Clues in Thyroid Cancer: Tonsillectomy,
 Acne, Allergy, Ethnicity. (Coauthors: K. Shimaoka, J. Tidings).
 Archives of Intern. Med., 128:755-760, November 1971.

- Predictive Design of Experiments Using Deep Mathematical Models. (Coauthor: L.E. Blumenson). Cancer, <u>28</u>(6):1637-1646, December 1971.
- 176. Letter to the Editor: 'Mission Scientist Rebuts Academicians'. Biomedical News II, p. 2, December 1971.
- 177. Critical Levels, Statistical Language, and Scientific Inference.
 FOUNDATIONS OF STATISTICAL INFERENCE (A SYMPOSIUM). Edited by V.P. Godambe and D.A. Sprott. Holt, Rinehart and Winston of Canada, Limited, pp. 500-519, 1971.
- Binding of Positively Charged Particles to Glutaraldehyde-Fixed Human Erythrocytes. (Coauthors: *L. Weiss, R. Zeigel, O.S. Jung). Experimental Cell Research, 70:57-64, 1972.
- Accessibility of Archives. Biomedical Computing, <u>3</u>(2):113-122, 1972.
- 180. Scientific Strategies in Human Affairs: Use of Deep Mathematical Models. Transactions of the New York Academy of Sciences, Series 11, 34(3):187-199, March 1972.
- 181. Low Level Radiation and Leukemia: Identification of Susceptible Children. American Association of Cancer Research, <u>13</u>:2, March 1972 (Abstract).
- 182. How Information is Carried in Scientific Sublanguages. (Coauthors: P.A. Shapiro, B.B. Anderson). Science, <u>176</u>(4041): 1303-1307, June 1972.
- 183. Is There an Increased Risk of Metastasis? Surgery, Gynecology, and Obstetrics, 134:1000, June 1972.
- 184. Leukemia from Low-Level Radiation: Identification of Susceptible Children. (Coauthor: N. Natarajan). New England Journal of Medicine, 287(3):107-110, July 1972.
- Predicting Survival Following Surgery for Bronchogenic Carcinoma. (Coauthors: *N.H. Slack, A. Chamberlain). Chest, 62:433-438, October 1972.
- 186. Testicular Tumor: Histologic and Epidemiologic Assessment. (Coauthors: *K.D. Sharma, J.F. Gaeta, R.H. Moore, G.P. Murphy). New York State Journal of Medicine, pp. 2421-2425, October 1972.
- 187. Pets and Adult Leukemia. (Coauthors: R. Bertell, R. Gibson). American Journal of Public Health, 62(11):1520-1531, November 1972.



- Letter to the Editor: 'A Cancer Research Policy'. The Relevant Scientist, 2:33-34, November 1972.
- 189. Self-Criticism and Public Confidence. The Sciences. (Point of View), 12(10):28, December 1972.
- 195. Note on Lung Cancer Among Cigar and Pipe Smokers. (Coauthor:
 *J. Tidings). Preventive Medicine, 1(4):543-546, December 1972.
- Leukemia and Occupations. (Coauthor: *E. Viadana). Preventive Medicine, 1(4):513-521, December 1972.
- An Autopsy Study of Metastatic Sites of Breast Cancer. (Coauthors: *E. Viadana, R. Cotter, J.W. Pickren). Cancer Research, <u>33</u>:179-181, January 1973.
- 193. Experiences with Bilateral Primary Carcinoma of the Breast. (Coauthors: *N.H. Slack, T. Nemoto, B. Fisher). Surgery, Gynecology, and Obstetrics, 36:433-440, 1973.
- 194. Use of a Mathematical Model to Bridge the Clinic-Laboratory Gap: Local Spread of Endometrial Cancer. (Coauthor: *L. Blumenson). Journal of Theoretical Biology, 38:397-411, 19 3.
- 195. Letter to the Editor: 'The Tices Data-Input System'. The American Statistician, 27(1):39, February 1973.
- 196. Letter to the Editor: 'Tonsillectomy and Hodgkin's Disease'. (Coauthors: *K. Shimaoka, J. Tidings). New England Journal of Medicine, 288(12):634-635, March 1973.
- 197. Position Paper on Health Hazards of Small Cigars. United States Congressional Record-Senate, pp. S4360-S4361, March 1973. (Abstract).
- Letter to the Editor: Dr. Bross Replies. The Sciences, <u>13</u>(4):
 May 1973.
- 199. Trans-Science and Responsibility. Science, <u>180</u>(4091):1122-1124, June 1973.
- 200. Letter to the Editor: The Rush Toward Atomic Energy: Safety First. The New York Times, July 1973.
- 201. An Autopsy Study of Some Routes of Dissemination of Cancer of the Breast. (Coauthors: *E. Viadana, J.W. Pickren). British Journal of Cancer, 27:336-340, 1973.
- 202. Unobtrusive Biomedical Data-Input Systems. (Coauthors: A. Gregory, C. Rathod, D. Bross). Bio-Medical Computing, (41:219-228, 1973.

- 203. How Information is Carried in Scientific Sub-Languages. (Coauthors: P.A. Shapiro, B.B. Anderson). Polish Translation. Science, 1(33), 1973.
- 204. Languages in Cancer Research. Perspectives in Cancer Refearch, Chapter 19, pp. 213-221, 1973.

205. Computer Assisted Discourse Analysis of Jargon. (Coauthor: D. Stermole). Computer Studies in the Humanities & Verbal Behavior, 4(2):65-76, August 1973.

- 206. Another Look at Coffee-Drinking and Cancer of the Urinary Bladder. (Coauthor: J. Tidings). Preventive Medicine, 2:445-451, 1973.
- 207. Preconception Radiation and Leukemia. (Coauthor: *N. Natarajan). Journal of Medicine, 4:276-281, 1973.

 Leukemia from Low-Level Radiation: Identification of Susceptible Children. (Coauthor: N. Natarajan). Year Book of Cancer, 1973. (Abstract).

- 209. Experiences With Bilateral Primary Carcinoma of the Breast. (Coauthors: *N.H. Slack, T. Nemoto, B. Fisher). Year Book of Cancer, 1973. (Abstract).
- Preoperative Irradiation and Cystectomy for Bladder Carcinoma, IV: Results in a Selected Population. (Coauthors: *G.R. Prout, N.H. Slack). Seventh National Cancer Conference Proceedings, pp. 783-791, 1973.
- 211. Letter to the Editor: Cars in the Fuel Crisis: Curb Horsepower. The New York Times, Sec. 1, p. 42, October 2, 1973.
- Plasminogen in the Prevention of Hyaline Membrane Disease.
 (Coauthors: *C.M. Ambrus, D.H. Weintraub, T.S. Choi, B. Eisenberg, H.P. Staub, N.G. Courey, R.J. Foote, D. Goplerud, R.V. Moesch, M. Ray, O.S. Jung, I.B. Mink, J.L. Ambrus). American Journal of Diseased Children, 127:189-194, February 1974.
- 213. Carcinogenic Activity of Smoke Condensate From Cigarettes with Ammonium Sulfamate-Treated Paper. (Coauthors: *F.G. Bock, I. Michelson, R.L. Priore). Cancer, 33(4):108-114, April 1974.

214. Letter to the Editor: Should Journals Publish Extended Abstracts - Only? The American Statistician, May 1974.

215. An Epidemiological Study of the Relationship of Reproductive Experience to Cancer of the Ovary. (Coauthors: *D.J. Joly, A M. Lilienfeld, E.L. Diamond). American Journal of Epidemiology, 99:190-209, 1974.



- 216., Letter to the Editor: 'Adversary Science in Aliquippa'. Health Physics, 26:581-583, June 1974.
- 217. Efficacy of Adrenalectomy in Treatment of Patients with Metastatic Cancer of the Breast. (Coauthors: *A. Chamberlain, T. Dao, T. Nemoto, N.H. Slack). Surgery, Gynecology & Obstetrics, 138:891 895. June 1974.
- 218. Strategies of Science in Human Affairs: How to Assure the Quality of Scientific Statements. Clinical Pharmacology and Therapeutics, 15(6):543550, June 1974.
- Letter to the Editor: Nuclear. The New York Times, July 7, 1974.
- 220. Relation Between Benign Prostatic Hyperplasia and Cancer of the Prostate. (Coauthors: *H.K. Armenian, A.M. Lilienfeld, E.L. Diamond). The Lancet, pp. 115-117, July 20, 1974.
- 221. Letter to the Editor: Speed Lobby. Buffalo Evening News, September 6, 1974.
- 222. The Role of the Statistician: Scientist or Shoe Clerk. The American Statistician, November 1974.
- 223. Abstracts and the Refereeing Process (Abstract). The American Statistician, 28(2):75, 1974.
- 224. Use of the Medical History to Predict the Future Occurrence of Leukemias in Adults. (Coauthor: *E. Viadana). Preventive Medicine, 3:165-170, 1974.
- 225. Direct Input of Toxicologic Data to the Computer. (Coauthor: *A.R. Gregory). Clinical Toxicology, 7(4):395-400, 1974.
- 226. Risk of Leukemia in Susceptible Children Exposed to Preconception, In Utero and Postnatal Radiation. (Coauthor: N. Natarajan). Preventive Medicine, 3:361-369, 1974.
- 227. Letter to the Editor: Approach to Societal Problems. Science, 186:478, 1974.
- 228. Point of View: Professional Ethics: Organizations vs. Individuals. The Sciences, p. 29, November 1974.
- Adjuvant Progestogen Therapy in the Primary Definitive Treatment of Endometrial Cancer. (Coauthors: *G.C. Lewis, Jr., N.H. Slack, R. Mortell). Gynecology Oncology, 2:368-376, 1974.

- ×

- 230. The Relationship of Histology to the Spread of Cancer. (Coauthors:
 *E. Viadana, J.W. Pickren). Journal of Surgical Oncology, 7:177-186, 1975.
- 231. The Metastatic Spread of Myeloma and Leukemias in Men. (Coauthors:
 E. Viadana, J.W. Pickren). Virchows Archiv A. Pathological
 Anatomy and Histology, 365:91-101, 1975.
- 232. Letter to the Editor: The New York Sunday Times (Financial Section). February 2, 1975.
- 233. Adrenalectomy with Radical Mastectomy in the Treatment of High Risk Breast Cancer. (Coauthors: *T. Dao, T. Nemoto, A. Chamberlain). Cancer, 35(2):478-482, February 1975.
- Letter to the Editor: Uneven Doses. America, p. 102, February 15, 1975.
- 235. SCIENTIFIC STRATEGIES IN HUMAN AFFAIRS: TO TELL THE TRUTH. Exposition Press, Inc., Jericho, New York, March 21, 1975.
- 236. Do Generalized Metastasis Occur Directly from the Primary? (Coauthors: E. Viadana, J. Pickren). Journal of Chronic Diseases, 28:149-159, May 1975.
- 237. A Cascade Theory of Metastasis and Its Clinical Implications. (Coauthors: E. Viadana, J. Pickren). Sixty-Sixth Annual Meeting of the AACR Proceedings, May 7-11, 1975. San Diego, California, Vol. 16. (Abstract).
- 238. "Smoking and Health. I. Modifying the Risk for the Smoker". Less Harmful Ways of Smoking. Proceedings of the Third World Conference on Smoking and Health. (E.L. Wynder, D. Hoffman, G.B. Gori, Eds.) U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C., Vol. 1:111-118, 1975.
- Professional Ethics: Society vs. Individuals. (Opinion) SIAM, 8(3):368, June 1975.
- 240. Studies on the Prevention of Respiratory Distress Syndrome of Infants Due to Hyaline Membrane Disease with Plasminogen. (Coauthors: *C.M. Ambrus, T.S. Choi, D.H. Weintraub, B. Eisenberg, H.P. Staub, N.G. Courey, R.J. Foote, D. Goplerud, R.V. Moesch, M. Ray, O.S. Jung, I.B. Mink, J.S. Ambrus). Seminars in Thrombosis and Hemostasis, 11(1):42-51, July 1975.
- 241. The Influence of Site of Metastasis on Tumor Growth Response to Chemotherapy. (Coauthor: *N.H. Slack). British Journal of Cancer, 32:78, 1975.

- 242. A Computerized Tumor Registry System for Persons Who Do Not Love Computers. (Coauthors: *I.C. Johnson, L.E. Blumenson). Journal of Surgical Oncology, 7:375-380, 1975.
- 243. Marital and Reproductive Experience in a Community-Wide Epidemiological Study of Breast Cancer. (Coauthors: A.M. Lilienfeld, J. Coombs, A. Chamberlain). The Johns Hopkins Medical Journal, 136:157-162, 1975.
- 244. Epidemiologic Characteristics of Patients with Prostatic Neoplasms. (Coauthors: *H.K. Armenian, A.M. Lilienfeld, E.L. Diamond). American Journal of Epidemiology, 102(1):47-54, 1975.
- 245. Comments on "Estimating 'Safe' Levels, A Hazardous Undertaking", by N. Mantel and M.A. Schneiderman. Cancer Research, "Correspondence", 35:3212-3213, November 1975.
- Grammatical Compression in Notes and Records: Analysis and Computation. American Journal of Computational Linguistics, 2(4), December 1975.
- 247. The Role of the Statistician: Scientist or Shoe Clerk. Statistica, XXXV(4):801-804, October-December, 1975.
- 248. Letter to the Editor: 'Dumb Editorial' Riles a Health Researcher. Buffalo Evening News, January 19, 1976.
- 249. "Communications from Bross". (Commentary). American Journal of Public Health, 66(2):161, February 1976.
- 250. Epidemiology and Lung Cancer: What Has Been Accomplished? Mentor, 7(1):13-15, February 1976.
- 251. Metastatic Sites that Produce Generalized Cancer: Identification and Kinetics of Generalizing Sites. (Coauthor: L.E. Blumenson). IN: FUNDAMENTAL ASPECTS OF METASTASIS. (Leonard Weiss, Editor, North Holland, Amsterdam), Chapter 21, 359-375, 1976.
- 252. Early Onset of Oral Cancer Among Women Who Smoke and Drink. (Coauthor: J. Coombs). Proceedings of the American Association for Cancer Research, p. 1, March 1976.
- 253. The Maximal Size of Avascular Tumors. (Coauthor: *L.E. Blumenson). — Proceedings of the American Association for Cancer Research, — (Abstract), p. 1, March 1976.
- 254. Hospital Admission Records: A Source for Identifying Occupational Groups at Risk of Cancer. (Coauthors: *L. Houten, E. Viadana). Annals of New York Academy of Sciences, 271:384-387, May 28, 1976.



- 255. Letter to the Editor: P.B. Medawar's Role at SKI. Murray Kempton: On Lillian Hellman. The New York Review of Books, XXIII, (10), June 19, 1976.
- 256. Right Answers from Wrong Assumptions. (Editorial). Preventive Medicine, 5(2):203-206, June 1976.
- Medical Concerns: The Mindless Use of Radiation Technology.
 Proceedings of the National Energy Forum, the University of Akron, 1:5-11, July 26-30, 1976.
- 258. Letter to the Editor: On 'Controlling One's Environment'. American Journal of Public Health, 66(9):907-908, September 1976.
- 259. The Metastatic Spread of Kidney and Prostate Cancers in Man. (Coauthors: *E. Viadana, J.W. Pickren). Neoplasma, 23(3): 323-333, 1976.
- A Possible Mechanism for Enhancement of Increased Production of Tumor Angiogenic Factor. (Coauthor: *L.E. Blumenson). Growth, 40:205-209, 1976.
- 261. Letter to the Editor: Response to "Definition of Rates: Some Remarks on Their Use and Misuse", by Regina C. Elandt-Johnson. American Journal of Epidemiology, 104(2):219-220, 1976.
- Letter to the Editor: Politics of Mammography. Science News, 110(11), September 11, 1976.
- 263. Screening Random Asymptomatic Women Under 50 by Annual Mammographies: Does it Make Sense? (Coauthor: L.E. Blumenson). Society for Epidemiological Research. American Journal of Epidemiology, <u>104</u> (3):316, 1976 (Abstract).
- 264. Letter to the Editor: 'Major Hazard' Seen in N-Plant Closing. Courier Express, Editorial Page, October 14, 1976.
- 265. Letter to the Editor: Says Deadly Material Stored at NFS Plant. Buffalo Evening News, Editorial Page 24, October 11, 1976.
- 266. Screening Random Asymptomatic Women Under 50 by Annual Mammographies: Does it Make Sense? (Coauthor: Leslie Blumenson). Journal of Surgical Oncology, 8:437-445, 1976.
- 267. Scientific Strategies in Human Affairs: Explaining Statistics to the Public. The American Statistician, <u>30(4):171-175</u>, November 1976.
- 268. Letter to the Editor: Nuclear Waste: The 'Time Bomb'. The New York Times, November 19, 1976.



- 269. Cancer Experience of Men Exposed to Inhalation of Chemicals or to Combustion Products. (Coauthors: *E. Viadana, L. Houten). Journal of Occupational Medicine, 18(12):787-792, December 1976.
- 270. Early Onset of Oral Cancer Among Women Who Smoke and Drink.
 (Coauthor: J. Coombs). Journal of Oncology, 33:136-139, 1976.

 271. The Spread of Blood-Borne Metastases in Malignant Lymphomas of Man. (Coauthors: *E. Viadana, J.W. Pickren). Journal of Oncology, 33:123-131, 1976.

- 272. Letter to the Editor: Possible Hazards of Radiologic Surveillance of High Risk Groups. The New England Journal of Medicine, 296(4): 232-233, 1977.
- 273. Differences in Breast Cancer Between Japan and the United States. (Coauthors: *T. Nemoto, T. Tominaga, A. Chamberlain, Z. Iwasa, H. Koyama, M. Hama, T. Dao). Journal of the National Cancer Institute, 58(2):193-197, February 1977.
- 274. Letter to the Editor: A Coming Battle? Science, <u>195(4282)</u>: 933-934, March 11, 1977.
- 275. Exposure of Either Parent to Diagnostic Radiation Prior to Conception Produces Serious Genetic Damage in the Child. (Abstract) (Coauthor: N. Natarajan). Proceedings of the American Association for Cancer Research, 18:1, March 1977.
- 276. What is a Valid Scientific Argument: A Linguistic Approach to an Answer. Methods of Information in Medicine, <u>16(2):7580</u>, April 1977.
- 277. The Changing Histopathology of Lung Cancer. (Coauthors: *R.G. Vincent, J.W. Pickren, W.W. Lane, I. Bross, H. Takita, L. Houten, A. Gutierrez, T. Rzepka). Cancer, 39(4):1647-1655, April 1977.
- 278. Prevention of Hyaline Membrane Disease with Plasminogen: A Cooperative Study. (Coauthors: *C.M. Ambrus, T.S. Choi, E. Cunnanan, B. Eisenberg, H.P. Staub, D.H. Weintraub, N.G. Courey, R.J. Patterson, H. Jockin, J.W. Pickren, O.S. Jung, J.L. Ambrus). Journal of the American Medical Association, <u>237</u>(17):1837-1841, April 1977.
- 279. Genetic Damage from Diagnostic Radiation. (Coauthor: N. Natarajan). Journal of the American Medical Association, 237(22):2399-2401, May 30, 1977.
- 280. Distribution of Aryl Hydrocarbon Hydroxlase Inducibility in Cultured Human Lymphocytes. (Coauthors: *B. Paigen, J. Kinowada, H.L. Gurtoo, K. Paigen, N.B. Parker, E. Ward, N.T. Hayner, F. Hume, R. Vincent). Cancer Research, 37:1829-1837, June 1977.



- 281. Five-Year Follow-Up Results of a Collaborative Study of Therapies for Carcinoma of the Bladder. (Coauthors: *N.H. Slack, G.R. Prout). Journal of Surgical Oncology, 9:393-405, 1977.
- 282. A Retrospective Survey of Cancer in Relation to Occupation.
 (Coauthors: *L. Houten, E. Viadana, P. DeCoufle, K. Stanislawczyk).
 NIOSH Research Report, 1977. DHEW(NIOSH) Publication No. 77-178.
- 283. Letter to the Editor. Primacy Principle. Environmental Health Perspectives, pp. 329-331, December 1977.
- 284. Occupational Cancer in Men Exposed to Metals. (Coauthors: *L. Houten, E. Viadana, G. Sonnesso). Chapter 7, IN: ADVANCES IN EXPERIMENTAL MEDICINE AND BIOLOGY, Volume 91 (G.M. Schrauzer, Ed.), Plenum Press, N.Y., 1977, pp. 93-102.
- 285. Letter to the Editor: Comment on Ridit Analysis by Dr. Bross. American Journal of Epidemiology, 107(3):263-264, March 1978.
- 286. Cascade Spread of Blood-Borne Metastases in Solid and Non-Solid Cancers of Man. (Abstract) (Coauthors: *E. Viadana, J.W. Pickren). Proceedings of the American Association of Cancer Research, 19:2, March 1978.
- 287. Letter to the Editor: Dose-Response Relationship in Radiogenic Breast Cancer. Journal of the National Cancer Institute, <u>60</u>(4): 727-728, April 1978.
- 288. Letter to the Editor: Nuclear Monologue? The Sciences, <u>18(5)</u>: 2, May-June 1978.
- 289. Preliminary Report on Radiation and Heart Disease. (Coauthors: M. Ball, T. Rzepka, R. Laws). Journal of Medicine, 9(1):3-15, 1978.
- 290. The Metastatic Spread of Cancers of the Digestive System in Man. (Coauthors: *E. Viadana, J.W. Pickren). Oncology, <u>35</u>(3):114-126, 1978.
- 291. An Autopsy Study of Metastatic Patterns of Human Leukemias. (Coauthors: *E. Viadana, J.W. Pickren). Oncology, <u>35</u>(2): 87-96, 1978.

292. Cascade Spread of Blood-Borne Metastases in Solid and Non-Solid Cancers of Man. (Coauthors: *E. Viadana, J.W. Pickren). IN: PULMONARY METASTASIS. (L. Weiss, H. Gilbert, Editors), G.K. Hall and Company, Boston, Massachusetts, Chapter 12, pp. 142-167, 1978.

293. Occupational Cancer in Men Exposed to Dust and Other Environmental Hazards. (Coauthors: E. Viadana, L. Houten). Archives of Environmental Health, 33(6):300-307, 1978.

- 294. Radiation Standards and Public Health. Proceedings of a Second Congressional Seminar on Low-Level Ionizing Radiation. Washington, D.C., February 10, 1978.
- 295. Hazards to Persons Exposed to Ionizing Radiation (and to their Children) from Dosages Currently Permitted by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission. Presentation to the Nuclear Regulatory Commission, April 7, 1978, Docket #43-FR9395.
- 296. Effect of Radiation on Human Health: Health Effects of Ionizing Radiation. Volume 1. Hearings Before the Subcommittee on Health and the Environment of the Committee on Interstate and Foreign Commerce. Ninety-Fifth Congress, Serial No. 95-179, February 1978.
- 297. Reply by Dr. Bross: On Biases in Judging Statistical Methods. American Journal of Epidemiology, 109(1):30-32, 1979.
- 298. Natural Language and a Computer System in Medical Research. (Coauthors: *I.C. Johnson, S.L. Tsao, D.P. Shedd). Methods of Information in Medicine, 18(1):15-17, 1979.
- 299. A Dosage Response Curve for the One Rad Range: Adult Risks from Diagnostic Radiation. (Coauthors: M. Ball, S. Falen). American Journal of Public Health, 69(2):130-136, 1979.
- 300. A Prospective Study of the Relationship Between Benign Breast Diseases and Breast Carcinoma. (Coauthors: *L.J. Coombs, A.M. Lilienfeld, W.S. Burnett). Preventive Medicine, 8(1):40-52, 1979.
- 301. Letter to the Editor: Comments on "Oral Contraceptives and Birth Defects", by Rothman and Louik. New England Journal of Medicine, 300(1):47, 1979.
- 302. Assessment of Myelotoxic Effects of Chemotherapy from Early Leukopenic Response: Application of a Mathematical Model for Granulopoiesis. (Coauthor: *L.E. Blumenson). Journal of Surgical Oncology, 11:171-176, 1979.
- 303. U.S. Civilian Casualties of Cold War Radiation Weapons and Myths: Must There Be Another Million? Testimony to the Senate Government Affairs Subcommittee on Energy, Nuclear Proliferation, and Federal Services, March 6, 1979.
- 304. Letter to the Editor: Comments on "A Study of Diet and Breast Cancer", by A.B. Miller et al., American Journal of Epidemiology, 109(5):619, May 1979.

ŧ

- 305. Letter to the Editor: "Low-Level Radiation Hazards..." (Comments on "Electromagnetic Radiation Emitted from Video Terminals" by Weiss and Petersen). American Industrial Hygiene Association Journal, 40:830-831, September 1979.
- 306. Letter to the Editor: "Nuclear Discord". The Sciences, 19(7): 2, September 1979.
- 307. Letter to the Editor. ("the Forum..." Section): Comments on Video Terminals and Radiation. American Industrial Hygiene Association Journal, 40(12):A14, December 1979.
- 308. When Speaking to Washington, Tell the Truth, the Whole Truth, and Nothing But the Truth, and Do So Intelligibly. The American Statistician, 34(1):34-38, 1980.
- 309. Cumulative Genetic Damage in Children Exposed to Preconception and Intrauterine Radiation. (Coauthor: N. Natarajan). Investigative Radiology, 15(1):52-64, 1980.
- 310. Letter to the Editor. Nuclear Wastes. The New York State Journal of Medicine, 80:144, January 1980.
- 311. Letter to the Editor: Reassessment of Radiation Hazards: Can Health Physicists Keep Up? Health Physics, <u>38</u>:431-432, March 1980.
- 312. The Role of Brain Metastases in Cascade Processes: Implications for Research and Clinical Management. Chapter 4 in BRAIN METASTASES, pp. 66-80, G.K. Hall & Co., Publisher, (L. Weiss, H. Gilbert, and J. Posner, Editors), 1980.
- 313. Letter to the Editor. "Mammography", Canadian Medical Association Journal, 123(2):94-95, July 19, 1980.
- 314. Letter to the Editor. Re: Health Effects of Particulate Pollution: Reappraising the Evidence. American Journal of Epidemiology, 112(4): 571-574, October 1980.
- 315. Bladder Cancer and Artifical Sweeteners: A Methodological Issue. (Technical Comment). Science, 210(4468):447, October 1980.
- 316. Letter to the Editor. "Sweet and Sour." The Sciences, pp. 2-3, November 1980.
- 317. The Biostatistical and Biological Basis for a Cascade Theory of Human Metastasis. In: METASTATIC TUMOR GROWTH (E. Grundmann, Editor), Cancer Campaign, Vol. 4, pp. 207-221, Gustav Fischer Verlag, Stuttgart, New York, 1980.
- 318. Muddying the Water at Niagara. ("Forum" Section). New Scientist, 88(1231):728-729, December 11, 1980.

- 319. Letter to the Editor. (Comments on "Low-Dose Radiation and Leukemia," by A. Linos, et al). New England Journal of Medicine, 303(14):815, 1980.
- 320. Letter to the Editor. Background Radiation Paradoxes. Health Physics, 40(January):127-128, 1981.
- 321. SCIENTIFIC STRATEGIES TO SAVE YOUR LIFE (Marcel Dekker, Inc., New York, New York), March 1981.
- 322. This Week's Citation Classic ("How to Use Ridit Analysis", Biometrics <u>14</u>:18-38, 1958). Current Contents <u>24</u>(24):17, June 15, 1981.
- 323. Metatechnology: A Technology for the Safe, Effective, and Economical Use of Technology. Metamedicine, 2:145-153, 1981.
- 324. Letter to the Editor. (Re: "Comparing Radical Mastectomy with Quadrantectomy, Axillary Dissection, and Radiotherapy in Patients with Small Cancers of the Breast", by Veronesi, et al). New England Journal of Medicine, 305(21):1283, 1981.
- 325. Direct Estimates of Low-level Radiation Risks of Lung Cancer at Two NRC-compliant Nuclear Installations: Why are the New Risk Estimates 20 to 200 Times the Old Official Estimates? (Coauthor: D.L. Driscoll). The Yale Journal of Biology and Medicine, in press.
- 326. Automatic Encoding of Clinical Narrative. (Coauthors: *N. Sager, G. Story, P. Bastedo, E. Marsh, and D. Shedd). Computers in Biology and Medicine, in press.

101-12154014

ł.



•

	1	JUDGE WOLFE: Have you now finished, Mr.
	2	Jones, or is there something more?
	3	MR. JONES: Not at this time. I only wanted
	4	to point out that at this time we will tender 13 copies
345	5	of the witness' statement and also three copies of each
554-23	6	exhibit to the court reporter for inclusion in the
(202)	7	record at this point.
20024	8	JUDGE WOLFE: All right, fine.
N. D.C.	9	MR. JONES: Parenthetically if " may take
NGTO	10	one brief moment for an aside as Your Honor will recall
NASHI	11	at the end of the day yesterday we had a bit of a procedural
ING.	12	problem with respect to the curriculum vitae of Dr.
BUILD	13	Pandit who was our witness yesterday.
TERS	14	This morning I have tendered three copies to
REPOR	15	be included as an exhibit. I would at this time move
S.W	16	the Board for inclusion of Dr. Pandit's vitae as Joint
REET,	17	Intervenors' Exhibit 31.
TH ST	18	(The docyment referred to was
300 7	19	marked Joins Intervenors' Ex-
	20	hibit No. 31 for identifi-
	21	cation.)
	22	// // //
	23	and a second as the second as
	24	and the second
	25	

1343

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

A R R MAR

	1	JUDGE WOLFE: As a precedent to that, I take				
	2	it you are withdrawing your offer of yesterday to have				
	3	Dr. Pandit's curriculum vitae incorporated into the				
	4	record as if read; is that correct?				
640	5	MR. JONES: Either way. I had				
1 100	6	JUDGE WOLFE: You don't have the necessary				
(707)	7	number of copies for incorporation into the record, so				
12002	8	now you are marking his curriculum vitae as Joirt				
, n.c.	9	Intervenors' Exhibit 31; is that correct?				
n inv	10	MR. JONES: That's correct, Your Honor.				
INCOM	11	JUDGE WOLFE: All right. Any objection?				
-	12	MR. TURK: The Staff has none.				
	13	JUDGE WOLFE: All right. The request is				
CUIT	14	granted and Joint Intervenors' Exhibit 31 is admitted				
	15	into evidence.				
	16	MR. JONES: Thank you, Your Honor.				
	17	(The document referred to,				
	18	previously marked Joint				
	19	Intervenors' Exhibit No. 31				
	20	for identification, was				
	21	received in evidence.)				
	22	MR. JONES: I have nothing further at this				
	23	time.				
	24	JUDGE WOLFE: All right. Cross, Mr. Blake?				
	25	11				

g

•

1344

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

4	2	4	5
T	0	• 1	5

CROSS-EXAMINATION

2	BY	MR.	BLAKE	1
---	----	-----	-------	---

A.

3 Q. Dr. Bross, have you ever visited the Waterford 4 3 plant?

3
24
+
10
112
8
2
3
-
2
*
24
15
~
-
ź
õ
8
9
2
H
5
A.
5
ch
ž
=
-
Ξ.
-
584
2
-
5
ž
2
2
H
2
5
~
(m
No.
KF.
E
30
I
-
C.a.

18

19

21

300

7-2

1

5

6

7

Have you read the FSAR related to Waterford 3? 0.

No, I have not.

Do you know what FSAR stands for?

8 A. Can I answer generally on this? I received a 9 big stack of paper. I glanced through this stack of 10 paper, if that's what you call reading.

11 I did not make any effort to internalize the 12 stack of paper, because in my view this material has no 13 scientific or statistical value from the public health 14 standpoint.

15 It does not say anything, in my view, about 16 what will happen to the people in Louisiana if the plant 17 is built. That's my concern, public health.

Would you know, Dr. Bross, in the large 0. stack of paper which you have referred to whether or not 20 there were a number of volumes which looked similar to the one that I am holding?

22 No. It was a stack about so thick. A. 23 0. I see.

24 But it was different. It was loose-leaf A. 25 paper. It was not bound.

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

	1	MR. BLAKE: The record should reflect that
•	2	what it is I am holding is a copy of Volume V of Louisiana
	3	Power & Light's Final Safety Analysis Report.
)	4	BY MR. BLAKE:
345	5	Q. Having shown you that document, is it fair
554-2	6	to say now that you have not read or reviewed the Final
1 (202)	7	Safety Analysis Report for the Waterford plant, which is
2002	8	comprised of a set of books that look like that?
N, D.C	9	A. Yes.
NGTO	10	Q. Have you read the Applicant's Environmental
WASHI	11	Report?
JING,	12	A. Again, as I told you, my view of all this
BUILI	13	material is that it is irrelevant, immaterial and
CLERS	14	incompetent to public health at this hearing; and,
REPOF	15	therefore, I did not make any attempt to internalize
S.W. ,	16	these documents.
REET,	17	Q. Dr. Bross, I may well ask you about your
TH STI	18	opinion as to the materiality, relevance and worth of
300 7	19	certain documents.
	20	At the moment all I'm asking you is whether
	21	or not you have read certain documents?
•	22	A. Well, I told you I just
	23	Q. Have you read
	24	A. I glanced through the documents. I'm not
	25	sure which documents I glanced through because of my

1346

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

position.

1

7

8

9

10

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

I'm not sure which exact documents I glanced through, but if you were counting that as reading, I'm not sure exactly what you mean by reading. If you mean leafing through, looking at these things, some of them I have looked through.

In that sense, I have not read in detail any documents.

Q. You have not read in detail any documents?A. That's right.

11 Q. You mean any documents relating to the 12 operation of Waterford 3?

A. Any of the testimony from the utility
witnesses. I have read through them, I glanced through
them, but as far as I'm concerned, this testimony does not
bear on what interests me, which is public health.

Q. Dr. Bross, have you read a document that looks like the one that I am holding, which is the Staff's Final Environmental Statement related to the operation of Waterford Steam Electric Station, Unit No. 3?

A. Well, my answer to that question is the same as the others. I believe I thumbed through it, but only in that sense.

24 Q You believe that you have thumbed through 25 this one?

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

7-4

D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON,

21

24

25

1

A. Right.

Q. But you never thumbed through the FSAR or
3 the Environmental Report?

A. If it was a big thick series of volumes, I
5 have not received that.

As I mentioned, I got about a dozen -- I
don't know the exact number, but a fairly large number -of loose-leaf materials, which I thumbed through.

9 Q. I see. Is this what you would refer to as
10 a loose-leaf document?

A. I think it was photocopy or something like that. As I say, I can't testify on individual documents, whether I have even leafed through them; but in view of my position, which is that I wouldn't spend the time to read them in detail under any circumstances, this is -you know, we could continue this line of questioning, but my answer to every question would be the same.

18 Q. That is that while you may have leafed through 19 a photocopy version, although you are not sure of this 20 document, you wouldn't be familiar with it?

A. No.

22 Q Are you familiar with 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix 23 I?

A. Well, I have to give you the same answer.Q. You'd have to give me the same answer?

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

	1	A. Yes.
,	2	Q. That is that you are not familiar it. You
	3	may have leafed through it, if it was sent to you, but in
)	4	any event it has no bearing on public health and safety?
2345	5	A. Right.
) 554-2	6	Q. Would you give me the same response to
4 (202	7	40 CFR Part 190?
. 2002	8	A. Yes, if it's in the same set of documents.
N, D.C	9	I assume you're not going to be bringing in something
INGTO	10	completely different from what we're talking about.
WASHI	11	These are all documents, as it were, in the
DING,	12	utility witnesses and the Staff witnesses, is that correct,
BUILI	13	that you're referring to?
TERS	14	When you give numbers, I don't know what
REPOH	15	these numbers really represent.
S.W. ,	16	Q. You don't recognize the term 10 CTR Part
REET,	17	50, Appendix I?
TH STI	18	A. No.
300.77	19	Q. It is the Commission's regulations which
	20	establish for nuclear powerplants, Dr. Bross, the emissions
	21	which are allowable for routine operations.
)	22	Would you still retain your opinion that
	23	that has no bearing on public health and safety?
	24	A. That's the gist of my testimony.
	25	Q That the Commission's regulations have no

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

bearing --

I'm saying very specifically that compliance A. 2 is not safety. In other words, I'm concerned with safety. 3 As a public health bureaucrat of the State of New York 4 for many years, my job is protecting the public health and 5 safety. 6 It is not dealing with legal questions like 7 compliance, which is your province. 8 As far as I'm concerned, the evidence that 9 I've introduced clearly shows that compliance is not 10 safety. The two have nothing that is directly relating. 11 One is a legal concept; the other is a 12 13 scientific concept. 14 I only testify on the scientific aspect. 15 Q. Are you familiar with how Appendix I was 16 developed? How the Commission's regulations which govern 17 routine releases from nuclear powerplants? 18 Do you mean specific numbers or the general A. 19 approach? 20 The general approach to the derivation of 0. 21 that regulation; do you know how that was done? 22 23 A. The only thing I can respond on this is 24 that during times that I have testified in Washington and 25 before Congressional committees or study groups set up

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

7-7

00 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

by Congress, the question of how the permissible levels of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission and other regulatory agencies has come up.

4 In the course of those hearings the information that I received in my efforts to present, as it were, the health aspects of how you would organize a level that would be as permissible were generally regarded as not pertinent, because I was told the levels were set on different bases altogether.

10 So I do not believe, from what I have had as 11 personal experience, that actual health facts and figures 12 have had very much to do with regulations that in the 13 first place reflect the numbers which were set and have 14 been unchanged for 20 years or thereabouts, such as 15 the five-rem level, and which were set at a time when 16 there really was very little scientific evidence.

0. Do you know to what level Appendix I would hold nuclear powerplant releases of a plant like Waterford 3?

20 You are asking me questions about compliance. A. 21 I have the general feeling that the figures are about five 22 rems for the workers with complicated exceptions, and 23 five hundred rems for the public, with again some 24 complicated exceptions, and then some special circumstances 25 dealing with dosages that are legally allowed under certain

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

554-2345 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202)

17

18

19

1

2

3

5

6

7

8

circumstances to the general public remote from the plant.

1352

I have made no effort to memorize these figures, because I regard them as essentially irrelevant and immaterial and incompetent if we're dealing with the public health and safety, which is what I'm testifying on, and only that.

Q. So it would be your understanding of the regulations that with respect to the off-site population that the plant's releases would be generally limited to something in the neighborhood of 500 millirem, unless --

A. Well, there are special circumstances where, for instance, I think it was in your testimony you mentioned this, that the figures that you objected to in the questions were EPA figures, which you have referenced, which of course are substantially lower than 500 millirem.

But as I say, there are variants that reduce the number to lower levels in that sense, if that's what you're referring to?

Is that what you wanted?

20 Q Your understanding would be that the NRC would 21 generally limit it to 500 millirem, but based on the 22 argument that you heard this morning, that EPA might have 23 lower numbers?

A. Well, the NRC may also have lower numbers
 under special conditions for compliance of plants. I mean,

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

20024 (202) 554-2345 D.C. 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON,

7-9

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18
7.10

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

13

14

15

16

17

18

24

25

20024 (202) 554-2345

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C.

there are a series of regulations which I do not pretend to be an expert on, which I don'd regard as having any relevance to the public health and safety.

1353

Now, I realize this is not an opinion which will be shared by everyone, and particularly by the Administrative Judges, but my purpose here today is basically to say we should stop this nonsense. We should stop dealing with compliance, when this compliance is not protecting the public health and safety.

10 You are asking me questions exclusively on 11 compliance, and not on safety.

12 Are you aware of what the expected releases 0. will be from Waterford 3, setting aside compliance for the moment?

You mean, have I glanced through the A. materials that were sent to me and see what the estimates of releases by the utility witnesses or the NRC Staff were? Is that the question?

19 Well, first of all, I don't know what 0. 20 documents were sent to you, Dr. Bross, so I can't frame 21 my questions based on the documents which were sent to you. 22 I have to ask the questions as I hest

23 can.

> A. Right.

> > And I want to ask you again, are you aware Q.

11	1	of what the estimates are of releases from the Waterford
	2	3 plant?
	3	A. In the sense of leafing through them, yes; in
	4	the sense of remembering them, no.
345	5	
554.2	6	
4 (202	7	
2002	8	
N. D.C	9	
NGTO	10	
WASHI	11	
NING, 1	12	
BUILL	13	
TERS	14	
REPOR	15	
S.W. , 1	16	
LEET,	17	
H STF	18	
300 TT	19	
	20	
	21	
	22	
	23	
	24	
	25	

1354

BY MR. BLAKE:

ĩ

20024 (202) 554-2345

D.C.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON,

18

25

Do you have your own opinions or judgments 0. 2 about what the releases will be from this plant? 3 4 A. I don't testify as an expert witness on radiation releases from nuclear plants, the calculations 5 6 of these quantities. If you had the impression that I was 7 going to give you an alternative estimate of these quantities, that was not my intention. 8 9 I have very little credence -- and I believe 10 the estimates that are calculated by -- all of the esti-11 mates that I've seen, using standard methods which have 12 been used for a long time in many of these hearings, I 13 have no belief that these figures have any value from a 14 public health standpoint. 15 So as far as I'm concerned, this is a lot of 16 Mickey Mouse arithmetic. And I have no use in the area of 17 public health for calculations which mislead the public

1355

on what the actual hazards are.

As far as I'm concerned, these estimates doprecisely that.

21 Q. Using your term, "Mickey Mouse arithmetic," 22 let me refer you to a couple of portions of your own sworn 23 testimony at this point -- and specifically your answer 24 to Question No. 51.

Can you read for us your first sentence in that

answer?

1

S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

300 7TH STREET,

- 2

"As indicated by previous answers, it is not A. 2 possible to give a very precise quantitative assessment of 3 the health risks to Southern Louisiana populations from 4 the additional risk" -- and the part that's struck I won't 5 read -- "produced by the plant operations at Waterford 3." 6 Excuse me, Dr. Bross, but no portion of that 7 0. sentence was stricken from your testimony. 8 Oh? Well, all right. Then I will clarify 9 A. this point. 10 11 The only reason that sentence -- The only reason those words, which I said were stricken --12 13 apparently incorrectly -- "in the one-rad range" are there simply as a matter of English, to reference the 14 15 question that was asked previously. 16 What the guestion dealt with was what the Administrative Judges have, as far as I'm concerned, 17

1356

18 done -- which as far as I'm concerned improves all of the 19 questions, which is to remove any intent by me that I'm 20 talking about a specific release estimate made by me.

21 That's not my intention. I'm talking about -22 if you like -- wherever the releases from the plant would
23 be.

24 Q. Do you have any basis for this testimony now
25 admitted under oath in this proceeding for the statement

that you have just read? Do you have any basis for this 1 statement in your sworn testimony? 2 A. That it is not possible to give precise 3 quantitative assessments of the health risks? Yes. 4 Continue to read the sentence, please, Dr. 5 0. 6 Bross, the entire sentence. 7 -- "to Southern Louisiana populations from A. the additional radiation in the one-rad range produced 8 9 by plant operations by Waterford 3." 10 And let me amplify this point -- make it 11 perfectly clear what I intended. 12 In other words, this is a statement of if the 13 additional radiation is in the one-rad range, this is 14 what we could try to say would happen. I am not mak-15 ing this as a unconditional statement. Basically it's a 16 conditional statement referring to the previous sentence. 17 It's a matter of English -- that indicates that the --18 if we're talking about radiation in the one-rad range, 19 which is what I'm talking about here, and this is released, 20 then this is what will happen. 21 That's all the statement means. 22 0. I see. So a fair reading of that statement 23 is, "As indicated by the previous answers, it is not 24 possible to give a very precise quantitative assessment of 25

3-3

00 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

1357

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

the health risk to Southern Louisiana populations, if

additional radiation in the one-rad range produced by
plant operations at Waterford 3 results" is that a
fair
A. No, I would just strike the as I said
originally, just strike the "one-rad range," which was

1358

was

simply a matter of English to show what I was referring to in my answer, since that was what was said in the question.

9 I'm not saying that there is any particular --I told you that I don't intend, and I can't -- and I 10 don't pretend to have expertise in the calculation of 11 these Mickey Mouse arithmetic figures. 12

Let me refer you to your own testimony in 0. answer to Question No. 40, looking particularly at the top of the second page --

Uh-huh. A.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

13

14

15

16

17

18

D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

WASHINGTON,

S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING,

300 7TH STREET,

8-4

-- where that answer carries over, and the Q. sentence.

19 Do you have any support for the statement 20 which you make in your testimony: "It should be noted 21 that while 25 - 75 millirem may be an average under 22 normal operating conditions, for a variety of reasons, 23 the individual exposures may be substantially higher"? 24 All right. Let me explain that precisely. A. 25 As far as I --

	1	Q. Would you start, please, by explaining the
	2	basis for the 25 - 75 millirem figure?
	3	A. Exactly. That's what I intend to do.
	4	We As far as I have been informed, and
640	5	in the answer to this question understanding that this
	6	is a level which is a compliance level in the previous
(202)	7	questions, I believe, that has been set, and that it
12002	8	refers to an average exposure that compliance levels
	9	set average exposures.
NOIN	10	And so under the if you prefer, you could
NILLEY	11	add, "It should be noted," and then this statement is
NC' W	12	essentially conditional.
	13	It's What I really want to say is simply
d cura	14	that if you deal with an average figure on exposures, that
	15	individual exposures may be very different from average
	16	exposures.
· · · ·	17	And, of course, in all of the what I have
THE	18	referred to and whichseems to bother you a little Mickey
	19	Mouse arithmetic on these numbers like this, the numbers
3	20	tend to be average numbers.
	21	And so when somebody says that there is a
	22	level of such-and-such, that means only that that's some
	23	sort of hypothetical average figure that has been cal-
	24	culated.
	25	And from a public health standpoint what
		And rion a public hearth standpoint, what

1359

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

Q 1330. Party in 18.2

NOO1

•

8-3

•

affects human health and safety is exposure to actual radia-1 tion. And maybe most of the persons are exposed to no 2 radiation. Someone gets a very high dose. That's what 3 affects them, not the average. 4 And that's the point I'm making there. 5 20024 (202) 554-2345 6 Q. Is it your understanding, or is your testimony 7 here based on your understanding that the average exposure 8 to off-site individuals -- not on-site, off-site D.C. 9 individuals -- will be in the range of 25 - 75 millirem? WASHINGTON. 10 That's what you --11 You mean from the actual plant? Is that A. S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, 12 what you're --13 0. Yes, sir. 14 A. -- referring to? 15 Yes, sir, from the plant. 0. 16 A. I'm not making any statement about what the 300 7TH STREET, 17 exposures will be from the actual plant. I'm not giving 18 an estimate of what the actual exposures are. That was 19 not my intention. 20 Not actual, average, I asked you. Is it 0. 21 your understanding that the average exposures would be 22 in the neighborhood of 25 - 75 millirem? 23 A. You're -- In what sense are you asking the 24 question? I've said I don't give you an estimate of what 25 averages or any other exposures are from the plant.

1360

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

8-6

I'm saying that this is simply saying that --1 All the question really has -- if you can strike these 2 numbers entirely -- it's simply saying that when you deal 3 with average numbers, these are from a public health stand-4 point not particularly meaningful. 5 And that the numbers may vary from a tenth or 6 a hundredth of the average to a hundred times the 7 average. And so averages -- What I'm saying is averages 8 are not of much value to protect public health and 9 safety -- average numbers, average compliance numbers. 10 11 Does that make it clear? 12 I am not at any point in my testimony esti-13 mating what the releases are, or will be, from Waterford 14 3. 15 I'm trying to understand, Dr. Bross -- I 0. 16 think I now understand that you don't know what the average releases are going to be, and you certainly haven't at-17 18 tempted to estimate them 19 Yes. I think I've said that several times. A. 20 Now, I'm trying to understand what it is which Q. . 21 underlies your testimony. Is your testimony independent 22 of whatever the releases are? 23 No, it is certainly not. What I'm saying Α. 24 is that the Mickey Mouse numbers on releases, which are 25 in the utility testimony, are not estimates that are

1361

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

554-2345 20024 (202) D.C. S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, 300 7TH STREET,

- 7

reliable from a public health standpoint. Whatever these 1 estimates are -- I don't know what they are. 2 They're almost certainly going to be sub-3 stantially in excess of these numbers. But what they are, 4 I don't know. 5 300 77H STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 The numbers are simply not reliable. This is 6 not a reliable way to estimate what's going to happen. 7 Look, you're talking about hypothetical 8 questions. This whole thing has been a hypothetical 9 10 question. 11 The numbers that you're calculating are completely hypothetical. The plant is not built. You don't 12 13 have operating experience, particularly in this level of 14 plants, on which to base precise estimates of what the 15 long-term effects will be. There's a short or are on short-16 term experience with these plants. 17 The actual numbers, therefore, for actual 18 radiation releases, when they are measured, can be very 19 substantially above what you have said. And, in fact, if 20 you got to the next sentence on this point, I could give 21 you a general answer rather than a specific answer as to 22 what all of this means, because the State of 23 Pennsylvania held a hearing on Shipping Port -- Mr. Clean. 24 And Ernest Sternglass attempted to use the 25

8-8

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

utility figures to disprove the claims of safety.

1362

He was

showing, he felt, that there was a connection between the 1 official figures released by the utility and releases. 2 Now, in the course of that hearing, which went 3 on for three days, the counterarguments -- this was my 4 5 education in dosimetry, which I regard simply as a can of WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 worms -- the utility witnesses and the NRC and EPA all 6 7 jumped on dose estimates, and said, "Output samples 8 taken -- you know -- are up. We have a sample that's 9 10,000 times higher than the other." 10 But you have when you get estimates -- or 11 if you take one spadeful of dirt -- because what we are S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, 12 talking about is particulates -- there's no measurable 13 radiation, and you go four inches away and take another --14 a little piece of dirt or brush or whatever, and there's a 15 very high level. 16 This kind of inaccuracy underlies all the 300 7TH STREET, 17 utility calculations. And I think, therefore, on the 18 basis of my experience at the hearing, I have, as it 19 were, no faith and confidence in these estimates. 20 And as far as I'm concerned, they have no 21 credibility. 22 Now, that's -- If you say, "What is the 23 exact estimate," I don't know that we have any good way of

8-9

24 calculating it at the present time.

25

You don't know what this plant is going to

1363

		produce. You don't know The most important sizely
8-10	'	produce. Fou don t know The most important single
~	2	factor in estimating what the actual and that's what, of
	3	course, is going to kill people if there's actual re-
•	4	leases will be.
345	5	The most important single factor has been
554-2	6	left out of all of the utility calculations. That factor
1 (202)	7	is management.
2002	8	And with good management you can have a
N, D.C	9	technology operating at levels which are a tenth of the
OLDN	10	acceptable levels. And with bad management, you can have
VASHI	11	it operating well over acceptable levels that other
ING.	12	people manage.
BUILD	13	So management is really the critical factor
TERS	14	here, which, for instance, is not even involved in any of
REPOR	15	your calculations.
S.W I	16	I'm here to talk about the real world, instead
LEET,	17	of Mickey Mouse.
H STR	18	Management is what matters.
LL 008	19	
	20	
	21	
•	22	
-	23	
•	24	
	25	
		이 같은 것이 같은 것은 것이 같은 것이 같은 것이 같은 것이 같은 것이 같은 것이 같이 같은 것이 같이

1364

9-1	1	Q. Dr. Bross, let me return to a couple of the
ge	2	points that you've made.
	3	Have you evaluated any of the actual releases
•	4	from plants against their estimated calculated projected
345	5	doses under Appendix I regulations?
) 554-2	6	Have you done that for one plant in this
1 (202)	7	country that operates under Appendix I?
2002	8	A. I thought I said and I'll say it again, since
N. D.C	9	you've asked the question: My business is not Mickey Mouse
NGTO	10	arithmetic.
WASHI	11	I have not done any of the Mickey Mouse
OING, 1	12	arithmetic you're referring to. Never.
BUILT	13	Q. Are you aware of any actual operating plant
TERS	14	which has exceeded Appendix I doses as projected by the
REPOR	15	plant for compliance prior to the plant's operation?
S.W. ,	16	A. You are asking me about compliance. I don't
UEET,	17	know about compliance.
TH STI	18	Q. Are you aware of any plant
300 71	19	A. That's not compliance. I don't You are
	20	asking me do I know of a plant that is not in compliance.
	21	My answer is no, I don't keep check on
•	22	compliance. That's not my business.
	23	Q. Do you consider yourself an expert in the
•	24	area of management?
	25	A. Well, since you've put it that way, let me

1365

answer your question at a little more length.
 I think it's good that this issue of
 management comes before NRC, because I think this is what
 they should really be judging in these matters.
 There's an area which I have called meta-

technology. Metatechnology is the technology for the safe effective and economical use of technology.

This is my area of special interest in the biomedical area. I'm the president of a corporation called Biomedical Metatechnology, a big long name but it's a very small corporation.

The problems of managing technology have been a special interest of mine for a good many years, but not confined to or exclusively involving radiation technology.

However, the area in which I have had the greatest extensive experience in metatechnology actually does involve radiation. It involves the use of mammography for the mass screening of women to detect breast cancers, and mammography is a very good example of a technology which can be used in an intelligent way. It can be managed intelligently and effectively, or it can be used in a mindless way.

The mass screening of persons who are symptom free under the age of 50 is an example of mindless ways, and if you would like a specific example of my intervention

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

20024 (202) 554-2345 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C.

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

9-2

1366

in this area, I went to the National Cancer Institute to 1 try to stop this mindless policy. 2 After a good bit of fuss, this policy was 3 4 finally terminated. The mass reading of women under 50 by mammography by the National Cancer Institute and the 5 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 6 American Cancer Society was stopped. 7 This is an example of my interest in public 8 health. 9 And also in the area of management, I was 10 involved very early with automobiles, automobile safety, 11 and with tobacco hazards. 12 Again, both of these things are products 13 which can be used intelligently or they can be very 14 dangerously used. 15 Now, nuclear power, in my view, is no 16 different from any of these other things. So it is 17 something, however, which requires -- it is different in 18 this respect. I should correct myself. 19 It requires really exquisite management. It 20 requires a level of management that is beyond most 21 corporate management people. 22 So if you want to take this as an answer as 23 to whether I have worked in this field and been interested 24 in management, the answer is yes. 25 The reason I'm here today is basically

9-3

1367

managerial.

What I'm saying is that we have a lesson to learn from the mismanagement of nuclear reactors in Soviet Russia, where the siting policy in Soviet Russia has produced disastrous health effects.

We can avoid that. We can avoid that here. We can avoid repeating the mistakes of siting policies that were made in the Soviet Union; and the siting policy, of course, is siting nuclear reactors on chemically burdened long river systems.

11 So I'm concerned with this as a policy 12 question. Now, the members of this judgment here have to 13 make a specific decision; but as far as I'm concerned, 14 my hope, if I'm going to accomplish anything today, is 15 that the NRC will take very seriously the whole question of 16 is it sensible policy to site nuclear reactors on long 17 river systems that are undergoing very heavy current 18 chemical burdens.

19 That's the whole point of this hearing as 20 far as I'm concerned, and it's the point of the hearing 21 as far as the question of the synergistic effects, the 22 cumulative effects, and so forth.

These are what we are seeing most probably in Soviet Russia, and that's what we'll see here if we burden our long river systems with a lot of nuclear plants

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

9-4

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

9-5	1	in addition to the chemicals, and that is what I would
•	2	try to prevent.
	3	It's a management question.
•	4	Q. Do you consider yourself an expert in
345	5	management?
554-2	6	A. In metatechnology, yes. In fact, I might be
1 (202)	7	the only expert. No, actually, there are three or four.
2002	8	(Laughter.)
N, D.C.	9	Q. I'm curious about the end of your answer
NGTO	10	with regard to your interest in this proceeding.
VASHL	11	If I were to tell you, Dr. Bross, that it is
ING, V	12	not the purpose of this proceeding to establish policy
	13	with regard to siting nuclear powerplants, either in Russia
LERS 1	14	or in this country, would you still see a purpose to your
LEPOR	15	testimony here?
ŝ.W., F	16	A. Well, we are dealing here today with a
EET, S	17	specific case, Waterford 3, which is an example of siting
H STR	18	on the lower Mississippi River, which is a very heavily
17 001	19	burdened long river system.
	20	So it is a specific example of a policy.
	21	From a managerial standpoint, if you want to make
	22	intelligent decisions, you deal with the decision not for
-	23	a very specific individual case and then another case and
	24	another case and another case, but for general policies.
-	25	So while this hearing is on a very specific
		ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY INC

1369

case, as I would see it, it would set a precedent for 1 other cases and for the policy. Therefore, I would regard 2 the hearing as certainly pertinent. 3 But as far as the population in the State of 4 Louisiana is concerned, they are endangered not by a 5 B.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 general policy, but by a specific plant. 6 You've referred to a heavily burdened river. 7 0. Have you done studies yourself of the Mississippi River 8 in this area? 9 S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, No. I believe some other testimony will be 10 Α. presented on that, but I'm not testifying on the --11 12 You are not familiar; you just --Q. 13 No. I have some experience with the burden A. 14 in, as you mentioned before, the Niagara Falls situation, 15 but I have not come here to tell you about your burdens. 15 As you well know, as several persons have 300 7TH STREET. 17 stated earlier, they felt that they were not given 18 sufficient advance information on my testimony and on my 19 coming even; and, of course, the only reason I'm here is 20 that you have made me come. 21 If my testimony had been simply admitted as 22 testimony, I had no intention of really coming; but since 23 you want cross-examination, that's fine with me. 24 I think that the purpose of an NRC hearing 25 is to bring out in the public domain facts which would

9-6

1370

1371

otherwise be suppressed or little known.

1

4

5

6

7

8

9

15

20

21

25

(202) 554-2345

20024

D.C.

REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON,

300 7TH SFREET, S.W.,

Of course, as far as I'm concerned, the 2 main mistake that was made in Russia was their siting 3 policy is exclusively made by the Communist technocrats. There is no public input.

Here we have, hopefully, a place where we can have public input. That's where we have a substantial advantage over the Communist system. So we, hopefully, can avoid their mistakes.

10 0. As you may appreciate, Dr. Bross, it wasn't as though I wanted to force you to come here for cross-11 12 examination, but it's important, if you can inagine this, for the Judges and for us to meet you personally and see 13 14 you and hear your answers to questions.

> A. I didn't think it was personal.

16 THE REPORTER: Your Honor, while we have a 17 pause here, would you admonish the witness and Counsel 18 both, please, to not speak while the other one is 19 speaking?

JUDGE WOLFE: All right.

MR. BLAKE: I stand admonished.

22 THE WITNESS: I stand admonished, too. I'll 23 probably make a mistake, though.

24 BY MR. BLAKE:

> Dr. Bross, I asked you whether or not you 0

	1	had any specific estimates regarding the releases from the
	2	Waterford 3 plant. Am I correct that your answer is no?
	3	A. That's correct.
	4	Q. And, also, that you are unaware of what the
345	5	numbers are that are being estimated by others?
554-2	6	A. You asked me questions about compliance and
4 (202	7	I don't know the answer.
2002	8	Q. I'm not talking compliance at this point. I
N. D.C	9	want to know whether or not you have any knowledge about
INGTO	10	the estimated releases from Waterford 3 which others
WASH	11	have estimated?
DING.	12	A. NO.
BUIL	13	Q. Now I'll ask you whether or not your testimony
RTERS	14	is entirely independent of whatever the releases will be
REPO	15	from Waterford 3?
S.W. ,	16	A. The testimony is certainly not independent
REET.	17	of what the releases are from Waterford 3.
TH ST	18	It is independent of the Mickey Mouse
300.7	19	estimates of the utility and the Staff on what these
	20	releases are.
	21	The real releases, of course, are what are
	22	the dangers; and as far as my reference, which was in my
	23	earlier testimony, which you are now allowing me to
	24	amplify, on the hearing on Shipping Port, the actual
	25	exposures or actual releases in the case of the Shipping

•

6

1372

Port reactor were very, very, very far above the estimates
 which had been given.

1373

As I said, the plant is called "Mr. Clean,"
but again, there is a very great difficulty in actually
assessing what these releases are.

I don't make my inferences on what the higher levels of -- maybe this will help. I wouldn't draw inferences on what the actual levels of exposures would be directly from the kinds of approaches that you're thinking of, but indirectly from the fact that the methods have been used many times in the past, and they have completely failed.

Now, this point, I think, is very important in assessing what credibility we can give to any of the testimony that you've introduced; and that is, we have a situation where there is a certain recognized arithmetic. It's a very standard form. As one of your witnesses has testified, it's internationally standard.

19 The Russians calculate the releases and the 20 hazards by the same Mickey Mouse arithmetic or pretty much 21 the same Mickey Mouse arithmetic we use; and they use the 22 same wrong estimates of hazards and the same wrong estimates 23 of releases.

24 Now, what I'm saying is that in the testimony 25 that I did introduce specifically, I have given for the

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

9-9

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

nuclear studies -- this is in the testimony, which I believe is this long one. In the back of it is a list of references you can find in this in Appendix 2, a list of medical X-rays and a list of studies involving nuclear exposures, divided into categories nuclear weapons and occupational exposures.

You will find listed here 20 studies which have shown positive health effects properly analyzed by biostatistical methods.

These are studies of what actually happened to people who had these exposures, and we know they had excess cancer and other mortality.

Now, in virtually all these cases -- I won't say every single one, because I didn't actually check this, but in virtually every single case, and in some cases there are, in fact, half a dozen or more Mickey Mouse calculations made.

As for example, at the Big Smokey shock where the Transnuclear Agency, NRC and DOE and everybody and their brothers also made these calculations, in every single case these calculations, these Mickey Mouse calculations showed there was no risk and it would be impossible to detect any risk.

Now, that's a theory. That's your MickeyMouse arithmetic.

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

1374

In every single case, by studying the actual 1 populations exposed to these long levels, you have a clear 2 evidence of health hazard. 3

1375

Now, you have two alternatives and I'll give 4 you your choice. These are multiplicated. 5

You can deal with exposure or you can deal with the health hazard per unit of exposure, or you can deal the product, which is the estimated health hazard.

9 If your Mickey Mouse arithmetic is wrong in 10 every single case, if the Mickey Mouse arithmetic says 11 there is no hazard, that whole series of scientific 12 studies -- and there's so many of them now, 20 of them --13 you can throw three or four out without hurting the 14 argument -- then something is wrong with your Mickey Mouse arithmetic.

16 Now whether you want to say we don't know how 17 to calculate exposures correctly and we're grossly 18 underestimating the exposure, or you are saying, well, we 19 are grossly underestimating the actual health risks, which 20 are maybe a hundred times greater, according to our 21 calculations (that's an area I have studied), rather than 22 exposures themselves.

23 But something is certainly wrong if these 24 numbers give no indication of hazard when there is a 25 serious hazard.

ALDERSON REFORTING COMPANY, INC.

15

6

7

8

9-11

Now, by inference, my inference is I know 1 that they are probably off by a hundred on the health 2 hazards, because I've written this up in a paper and done 3 series of studies. 4 All of the evidence now on low-level exposure 5 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 shows this. 6 But there's another possibility, namely that 7 the exposure levels are very wrong, and I think the 8 Defense Nuclear Agency's estimates, for example, I don't 9 know what their figures -- I didn't do any estimates on 10 Big Smokey, for instance, but they must be wrong because 11 12 their estimates when multiplied out this way are completely 13 off. 14 Now, I would be inclined to split the 15 difference and say that both are wrong, and that your 16 estimates are really not doing a thing to protect the 17 public health and safety. 18 They are simply giving negative estimates 19 which reassure the population. Now, if that's your 20 purpose, of course, they are useful. 21 But if you want to protect the public health, 22 which is my business, these are counter-productive. 23 24 25

9-12

10-1 bm		THE WITNESS: By inference, if you like then
		to sum it up: The evidence would seem to appear as while
•	2	the set that is in the structure would been to appear while
	3	I'm not testifying in the sense that you're speaking of,
•	4	doing calculations but on the basis of this indirect
345	5	argument, it seems very likely to me that the actual ex-
554-2	6	posures are going to be much larger than the Mickey Mouse
(202)	7	calculations, and have been consistently.
20024	8	BY MR. BLAKE:
, D.C.	9	Q. Is your testimony independent, therefore, of
GTON	10	whatever the release numbers are that are estimated by
ASHIN	11	others?
ING, W	12	A. It's independent of your estimates, but I
	13	just want to make it clear that it is not independent
LERS 1	14	of the actual releases, of course, which determine what
EPOR	15	the hazard is.
к.W., В	16	Q. Do you know what the actual releases are?
EET, S	17	A. You don't have a plant built. The only
H STR	18	numbers
TT 008	19	Q. Do you know what the
	20	A any numbers we have would be hypothetical
	21	at this point. Every question involved here is hypo-
	22	thetical.
•	23	You have a set of Mickey Mouse arithmetic
	24	numbers, which you think are estimates of hazards. I
-	25	don't think they're worth a damn.

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

1377

Ev	01	1 0	a.	m	Ö.	
20.20		10	G.	111	c	

1

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

1378

2	I don't think they're worth anything, because
3	my business is protecting public health and safety, not
4	getting something settled one way or another as far as
5	the utility is concerned.
6	And I think you're endangering the health
7	Q. Before the
8	A of the public in Louisiana.
9	Q. Are you familiar at all with the methodologies
10	which are used for estimating off-site doses from releases
11	from a plant like this? Have you ever done such a cal-
12	culation?
13	A. No, no.
14	Q. Are you familiar with the techniques which
15	are employed the pathway techniques, the chi over Q's
16	which are used? Are you familiar
17	A. I am not testifying as a witness on these
18	types of calculations. I do not claim expertise in this
19	kind of calculation. I wouldn't do this kind of cal-
20	culation.
21	Q. Are you familiar
22	A. I don't care what
23	Q with the calculational techniques?
24	A. No. I mean, how many times are you going to
25	ask me the same question?

0-3		,		I've told you. I don't use these techniques
-			I don't beli	ave in them They're no good
•		2	I don t berre	eve in chem. They ie no good.
-		3		What do you want me to say?
		4	Q.	By and large, Dr. Bross, I'll probably con-
	345	5	tinue to ask	you the same question unless I get a
	554-2	6	responsive an	nswer.
	(202)	7		Are you a physician, Dr. Bross?
	20024	8	Α.	No.
	t, D.C.	9	Q.	Have you ever taken a course in anatomy?
	NGTON	10	Α.	No.
	VASHI	11	Q	Physiology?
	ING, 1	12	А.	No.
	BUILD	13	Q	Biochemistry?
-	TERS	14	Α.	No.
	UEPOR	15	Q.	Otology?
	S.W	16	А.	No.
	LEET, 1	17	Q.	Pharmacology?
	H STR	18	Α.	No.
	300 TI	19	Q	Toxicology?
		20	Α.	No.
		21	Q	Public health?
		22	А.	Yes.
-		23	Q.	Where?
		24	Α.	At Hopkins. I suppose that's really I
-		25	should really	put it another way. I gave the course;

1379

	1.1.1.1	이번 사람이 집에 집에 가지 않는 것이 아니지 않는 것이 아니지 않는 것이 아니지 않는 것이 나라 지난 것이 같아요. 것이 아니지 않는 것이 같이 않는 것이 않
	1	it's not exactly taking it.
	2	I'm not testifying as a physician, by the
	3	way; and I do not claim to be expert in medicine; and I
)	4	do not treat patients.
145	5	I would like it very clearly understood that
554-23	6	I have an area of expertise; this is what I'm testifying
(202)	7	on. I'm not testifying on any areas where I'm not an
20024	8	expert.
I, D.C.	9	Q. Have you ever done any research yourself;
VGTON	10	that is, basic research, gathered data yourself?
ASHIN	11	A. For 30 years I have been in the area of public
ING, W	12	health at medical research and cancer research,
SUILD	13	especially for the past 20-odd years.
FERS 1	14	During this time I have done studies which
EPOR	15	have been published and represent in the bibliography
.W., R	16	some 300-odd papers. In most of those papers I am an
EET, S	17	author or there's a couple of co-authors. In a few
H STR	18	cases there are multiple co-authors.
17 008	19	Except when there is multiple co-authorship,
**	20	every paper for which my name appears on the title as an
	21	author is a paper where I was involved in directing, or
	22	in some cases in actully participating in the research.
	23	Q. Let me ask you the question again: Have you
	24	ever gathered any data yourself to do this research which
	25	you referred to?

1380

I thought I answered the question. I'm a A. 1 statistician. My business is dealing with data. That's 2 what I'm in business for. 3

1381

When persons work with me as co-authors -in some cases they may produce the data, so every single case of the 300 is not cases where I've done the data.

But, for example, if you would like a specific, in 1959 when I went to Roswell Park to become Director of Biostatistics, I became involved at that time in what is called the Tri-State Survey. I was directly involved as a statistician in that study.

Now, in all these large studies, it is my responsibility to manage the study, if the management of the study data is collection of data, which is what I would certainly regard it as, then I've been directly involved with the operations of collecting the data, doing quality control of the data, data processing of the material, doing the statistical tabulations, doing the statistical analyses, preparations of reports -- in other words, all phases of the study.

Have you yourself ever done any research to 0. generate that data, or to actually gather it; or have you, in fact, merely analyzed the data gathered by others? A. In the Tri-State Survey -- as an interview

survey -- in the responsibilities of the persons managing

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

10-5

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1 the study of this type, as an epidemiologist, which is what 2 I was -- and biostatistician, involves drawing up a 3 question schedule and being involved in the plans for 4 the administration of the question schedule. 5 If what you're referring to is did I go out 6 and carry out a couple of thousand interviews for that 7 survey, no, that was done by field interviewers. On

1382

9 directly with data as a participant in obtaining the 10 question schedule, this would be only involved in things 11 like pilot studies, or in testing questions out.

occasion I have worked on -- let's say, insofar as dealing

Q. Would you agree, Dr. Bross, that the first Tri-State data report was issued in 1966 by Graham, Levin, Lilienfield, et al.?

A. No.

10-6

REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

8

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

300 7TH STREET, S.W.,

Q -- and appeared -- You would not?
 A. No, there are earlier papers. Maybe you're referring to the first one on a particular topic.

When the Tri-State study was sent up -- there must be about -- I don't know exactly -- 15 or 20 papers that were produced by various participants in the Tri-State Survey, which was involved with Roswell Park's collection of the data.

24 Let me make this clear. When the survey was 25 first set up -- and I went to Roswell Park -- the person

	1	who is the best known epidemiologist in this country
	2	Dr. Abraham Lilienfield was actually setting this study
	3	up in the areas of the three states.
)	4	Now, my department is the Department of Bio-
345	5	statistics. And at that time Dr. Mort Levin, Saxon Graham,
554-2:	6	as his assistant, were in the Department of Epidemiology.
(202)	7	I did not become head of epidemiology at
20024	8	Roswell until sometime in the mid-sixties, like '66 or
, D.C.	9	something.
IGTON	10	And so my I was directly involved in the
ASHIN	11	design of the study, in the planning of the sample, in
ING, W	12	getting the question schedules up, in all these phases of
INITDI	13	the study as a statistician and not just as an analyst.
ERS B	14	That's my business.
EPORT	15	Q. When did the first paper regarding the Tri-
W. , RI	16	State study of which you were a co-author appear?
ET, S.	17	A. At which I was a co-author?
I STRF	18	Q. That's correct.
117 00	19	One in which you were given some credit.
õ	20	A. I think it was around '66 or '67, something
	21	like that. It was
	22	Q. Would you agree that it might be 1968, and
	23	that it is Reference No. 128 in your bibliography?
	24	A It could be. I don't remember exactly.
	25	The

1383

Some several years after other reports had a 1 been issued on the Tri-State Study? 2 Well, I'll tell you what happened with the A. 3 4 Tri-State Survey. It was a rather complex story, but since you're interested: The survey was run, and it was 5 D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 the most expensive thing of its kind. 6 7 And it also had a cost overrun problem in those days. What actually happened was the data was collected, 8 9 and the material that was obtained was given some pre-REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, 10 liminary analyses early in the sixties. 11 It was not given a really thorough analysis 12 for the simple reason that they used up all their money. 13 And they didn't have any money for what some people regard 14 as lesser evils, like analysis. 15 So as a matter of fact, the study was not 200 7TH STREET, S.W. 16 analyzed very intensively at the time when it was actually 17 completed. 18 About that time, Dr. Levin left for Hopkins; 19 and I became acting head of the department. And after 20 that I participated more directly in the statistical 2: analyses of the Tri-State Survey because it was in my own 22 department. 23 0. That is commencing with about 1966 or so, 24 you started to be more actively involved in analyzing the 25 statistics of the Tri-State Survey?

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

1384

10-8

Yes. The preliminary studies were out of the A. 1 way, and there were several reports -- mostly demographic 2 reports, because the persons were interested in producing a 3 series of studies which would amply document this entire 4 study, which is one of the classic studies in American epidemiology.

1385

So that while I was involved at the very be-7 ginning -- and participating through the other period -- I didn't get too much involved in writing up the reports 9 until I became head of epidemiology and it became my 10 responsibility directly.

12 Q. So your testimony is that you had some involvement from the beginnings in the Tri-State Study, but had no 13 involvement in the writing up of any of the data until 14 15 several years after others had published on it?

That's correct.

17 0. Let me ask you a couple of questions about 18 your bibliography. Do you have a copy of that, Dr. 19 Bross?

20 No, I don't think I do. I was not expecting A. 21 bibliographic questions, but maybe I'll have a little 22 help from ... Okay.

23 Dr. Bross, you refer to this bibliography in 0. 24 your testimony. And my recollection is the statement is 25 that you've published more than 300 articles; is that

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

5

6

8

11

16

A.

.

•

correct?

1

		같은 것 같은 방법 것은 것은 것 같은 것 같이 있는 것 같이 나라 같이 많이 많이 많이 많이 많이 했다.
	2	A. Yes.
	3	Q. Is it typical for biostatisticians to list
	4	in their bibliography and to cite as articles which they
200 71H STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345	5	have written letters to the editor?
	6	A. That question requires a little longer
	7	answer. The answer is
	8	Q. Could you give me the short answer
	9	A. The answer is yes and no, because of this
	10	reason. In many cases a letter to the editor actually re-
	11	presents a paper. And the paper that I have put in the
	12	record is exactly an example of that.
	13	It is written in the form of a letter to the
	14	editor. And a good many of my publications are written in
	15	this form.
	16	The reason for that is very simple from my
	17	standpoint. In many cases editors will publish as a
	18	letter to the editor material that they might have a
	19	hassle with their readership about, if they published it
	20	in another way.
	21	So it's simply a device in many cases for
	22	publishing material without getting the editor into the
	23	kind of trouble that sometimes a controversial paper will
	24	do.
	25	That's not true of every letter I've written
		and an arony rector i ve written
		ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

1386

to the editor. But, in general, the letters to the editors 1 that I have written -- this is not my opus; this is not 2 my complete list of letters to the editors which would 3 run over, I think, 600, but just a few that I thought were 4 particularly pertinent. 5 Including in this bibliography letters to the 0. 6 7 editors of newspapers, which you would regard in the 8 same way as letters to scientific journals? 9 In some cases letters to the newspapers have A. this quality. They are not short letters, I might say --10 11 for the most part; and they're listed this way. 12 For instance, I have -- since you raised the 13 point -- written a piece on the accident at Kena --14 Genet. And this was published in the newspaper -- I 15 don't think it's in the bibliography. 16 But it was a long piece and dealt in some de-17 tail with the problems of management that were revealed 18 in the failure of this plant. 19 And when I write rather extensive material of 20 this kind, I do include it in my bibliography. Most of 21 my bibliography consists of papers which have appeared in 22 journals which are reasonably reputable. 23 Let me focus on your work basically over the 0. 24 last five years. 25

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

1387

20024 (202) 554-2345 D.C. 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON,

A.

Okay.

0-12	1		Q	Since and I'll choose out of your biblio-
•	2	graphy	y the '	77 article which appeared in JAMA, No. 279
	3	in you	ur bibl	iography.
•	4		Α.	279?
345	5		Q.	Yes, sir.
554-2	6		Α.	"Genetic Damage from Diagnostic Radiation"?
(202)	7		Q.	Yes,
20024	8		Α.	Okay.
N, D.C	9		Q.	Looking at the articles which are about five
NGTO	10	years	hence,	bringing you up to date over the last five
IHSAN	11	years		
DING. 1	12		Α.	Uh-huh.
BUILI	13		Q.	By my count there were some 47 publications
TERS	14	since	then w	hich you've listed?
REPOR	15		Α.	Are you subtracting the numbers from
S.W. ,	16		Q.	Sure.
tEET.	17		Α.	Okay.
TH STI	18			JUDGE WOLFE: Off the record, please, one
300 7	19	moment	••	
	20			(Discussion off the record.)
	21			JUDGE WOLFE: Back on the record.
•	22			
	23			
•	24			
	25			
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.
11-1 I BY MR. BLAKE:

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2 Q Of those, some 17 by my count are letters to
3 the editor.

1389

A. Possibly. I have no specific information on
5 that. I didn't count them.

Q Of the remaining 30 items, it appears that
7 only 8 in my view deal with health effects of radiation:
8 Nos. 289, 294, 295, 296, 299, 303, 309 and 323.

A. Well, I don't know whether you intend for me to go straight through on this. Some of the --

Q. Well, assume for the moment that my arithmetic is correct here.

A. I don't want to argue about that kind of thing.Q. Fair enough.

Of the eight that deal, by my understanding of your bibliography, with health effects of radiation, it appears to me that four of them were presentations to Congress or to the NRC: 294, 295, 296 and 303.

A. Well --

Q. Now that we're down to just four, maybe you could check --

A. 294, I might say what that item is. That is proceedings of a congressional seminar, and the proceedings -- this was a presentation of material. It wasn't just attendance, if that's what you're thinking.

	A	
11-2	1	Q. No. No, I'm not thinking that.
•	2	A. It was essentially a report on the subject
	3	which was published. I mean, it was published in that
•	4	kind of a journal, in that kind of a volume, for
345	5	congressional testimony; but it was, you know, not a
554-2	6	one-page item or anything like that.
(202)	7	Q. Well, of these four, including this
20024	8	presentation by way of congressional testimony which was
N, D.C.	9	published, were any of those in any sense peer reviewed?
NGTON	10	That is, is it your impression that by
VASHI	11	publishing congressional testimony, that that is subject
ING, V	12	to peer review?
BUILD	13	A. Your raising the question about peer review
LERS 1	14	is very interesting, because
LEPOR	15	Q. Could you answer my question and then
S.W F	16	A. Right, I'll answer your question very.
EET, S	17	directly. The gentleman sitting
H STR	18	JUDGE WOLFE: Dr. Bross.
17 008	19	THE WITNESS: Yes.
	20	JUDGE WOLFE: Please keep your temper.
	21	THE WITNESS: Okay. You are right.
•	22	JUDGE WOLFE: The Counsel is entitled to
•	23	ask you questions, and answer the questions.
	24	THE WITNESS: I appreciate it. I'm sorry. I
-	25	apologize.

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

1	3	9	1
-			

17

18

19

11-3

1

JUDGE WOLFE: All right.

THE WITNESS: When he talks about peer review, there is a specific point that is a little sensitive, which is this --

BY MR. BLAKE:

Would you please answer my question? 0. Right. The peer review process in the A. journals operates in some journals and in some cases and not in others.

The peer review process for persons such as myself who publish reports of radiation hazards is a process which essentially blocks the publication of reports.

Now this has happened repeatedly, not just for me, but for a large number of other persons; and as a result, for certain journals where it is automatic for the editor simply to send a copy for peer review to a member of the radiation protection community, which is essentially do I have to elaborate on what that means?

20 It's a self-styled community which is dedicated to the proposition that low-level radiation is 21 22 harmless. All right.

Now, when an article from myself or others 23 goes to a journal which refers it to one of the members 24 25 of the radiation protection community, the immediate

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

result is not just that the article is turned down, it is that the article is deliberately delayed, very often for periods of up to a year.

1392

This makes it very difficult, on occasion, to public new findings when they are topical. Therefore, under the circumstances, it is necessary, unfortunately, to take advantage of alternative methods of publishing material.

9 Now, when I have testified on the material 10 today, the "Journal of Investigative Radiology" is a 11 peer review journal, and my article was in fact critiqued 12 in that journal.

13 In "The Health Physics," the material was submitted to the editor, and while it is a letter, it's a long letter and essentially an article, and I think it went through a peer review process of sorts.

17 It may not be formal peer review process 18 exactly, because when it was done in this case -- this 19 is why letters are preferable in some cases -- the article 20 was sent to the persons who wrote the original article 21 that misanalyzed the data, because they had the right to 22 respond to my article.

23 That was the arrangement and that's fine with 24 me. So the actual timing interval on this sort of thing 25 is that, for instance, this paper could get into "Health

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

14

15

Physics," which like "Investigative Radiology" is not exactly a journal which likes to publish reports of hazards, and it was able to do this in a reasonable length of time. It will probably get in sometime this year.

1393

If I were to try to go through four or five different journals, such as "Science," which I have done, this peer review process simply blocks publication.

8 Peer review, under ordinary circumstances -9 my papers -- I didn't publish in -- if you read over the
10 names of the journals in which I have published, they
11 are not journals which are negligible journals; but if
12 I want to get something in reasonably fast, I do write it
13 very often as a letter to the editor so as to go through
14 this process more expeditiously.

15 Q. My question was do you regard publishing in
16 the Congressional Record or in proceedings regarding
17 congressional testimony as having undergone peer review?
18 A. If that's your question, the answer to that
19 is it is not a reviewed journal, not a reviewed publication.
20 Q. Is the answer no?

A. I guess if I say it's not reviewed, it says it's not peer reviewed, right? This material is not reviewed at all necessarily. Sometimes it gets some review.

So what you are trying to do is argue or to

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

25

11-5

1

2

3

4

5

6

claim or to imply in the usual way that somehow or other 11-6 1 the publications don't meet peer review criteria or 2 something like that. 3

> I'm not claiming anything, Dr. Bross. I'm 0. 4 asking you for your opinion about whether or not your 5 statement, Example 294, involving congressional testimony, 6 is in your view, by way of its publication, been subjected 7 to peer review? 8

1394

Not peer review per se. There is some 9 A. review in that process, you know. 10

It's not the kind of peer review that you're 11 thinking of perhaps. There is a review. 12

In other words, the material is submitted, 13 it's revised, it's sent back, and things like that. 14 15 There is a review process in those kinds of publications, 16 too.

> You mean it's edited? 0.

Yes. A.

But that's not anything akin to having a 0. scientific peer review by knowledgeable members of a similar scientific community, is it?

22 Well, it's exactly the same thing that most A. 23 of the publications of your witnesses have gone through. 24 In other words, when you have Oak Ridge put 25

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

out its own private house organ, and all people put these

17

18

19

20

articles in a house organ for Oak Ridge or the house organs 1 of the radiation protection community, such as the 2 International Atomic Energy Committee, or whatever it's 3 called, and the various committees nominally devoted to 4 radiation protection, with that in the title. I don't 5 20024 (202) 554-2345 get the titles exactly straight, but that's what I'm 6 referring to. They go to the U.S. and international bodies. 7 These things are published. They take all 8 D.C. kinds of junk and this is in no more sense peer reviewed 9 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, than .Le material I'm talking about. 10 11 That's in the listings because that's a journal, you know, a sort of quasi-official journal. 12 I 13 don't see any great difference. 14 Would you put the other four documents that Q. 15 we've been talking about in the same class? 16 I don't remember. Which were they? A. 17 Let me refresh your memory. 294 was the one 0. 18 we've just been talking about; 295? 19 Yes, that's congressional testimony. A. 20 296? 0. 21 What was that? That's testimony. A. 22 303? 0. 23 Actually, in a way -- well, let me just say A. 24 comething about that testimony. 25 The testimony which was given in 296 was

11-7

1395

4	2	0	C
+	J		O

11-8	1	published in a peer-reviewed journal later.
•	2	Q. What number is that in your bibliography?
	3	A. "Effects of Radiation," that's Serial No.
•	4	95179.
45	5	Q. I'm sorry. Where does that same publication
554-22	6	appear as published in a peer-reviewed scientific journal
(202)	7	elsewhere in your bibliography?
20024	8	A. Oh, that's in the a good part of that
N. D.C.	9	material was in the "American Journal of Public Health,"
NGTO	10	299, sometime later.
WASHI	11	JUDGE WOLFE: Mr. Blake, this would be a
OING, 1	12	good time for a recess?
BUILI	13	MR. BLAKE: Sure.
TERS	14	JUDGE WOLFE: All right. We'll recess until
REPOI	15	2:00 o'clock.
S.W. ,	16	(Whereupon, at 12:45 p.m., the hearing was
REET,	17	recessed, to reconvene at 2:00 p.m., the same day.)
TH ST	18	이는 것은 것은 것은 것은 것은 것을 해야 하는 것은 것은 것을 가지 않는 것을 수 없다. 이렇게 있는 것을 것을 것을 수 없는 것을 것을 수 없는 것을 것을 수 없는 것을 것을 수 없다. 이렇게 가지 않는 것을 것을 것을 수 없는 것을
300 7	19	
	20	
	21	
•	22	
	23	
•	24	
	25	

AFTE	RNOON	SESSIO	N

2:00 p.m.

1397

-	2.00 p.m.
3	JUDGE WOLFE: All right. Mr. Blake.
4	MR. JONES: Your Honor
5	MR. BLAKE: The counsel
6	MR. JONES: Go ahead.
7	MR. BLAKE: I was just going to say that the
8	counsel have conferred with regard to Question 17.
9	MR. JONES: If it please the Board, Your
10	Honor, I have rephrased the Question 29. I have also,
11	pursuant to that rephrasing, made one editorial deletion.
12	I have discussed this with counsel for Applicant and the
13	NRC Staff.
14	They concur in both the question and the
15	They concur in both the question and the
14	answer, as editorialized. I have also conferred with Dr.
10	Bross, and subject to the editorial change, he stands
17	prepared at this time to adopt both the question and the
18	responsive answer.
19	JUDGE WOLFE: Yes, would you read the question
20	slowly, please.
21	MR. JONES: Surely.
22	Question 29 should now read: "Can you
23	state the nature of the synergistic risk to the population
24	of Southeast Louisiana which will be caused by the opera-
25	tional releases of the Waterford 3 nuclear facility?"
	erondr rereases of the nateriord 5 hittear factify,

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

12-1

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

1

Continuing on the next page --

JUDGE JORDAN: Will you do that again? Ι 2 couldn't keep up. 3

1

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

21

24

25

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

12-2

"Can you state the nature of the synergistic" MR. JONES: -- "risk" --JUDGE JORDAN: Go ahead.

1398

MR. JONES: -- "to the population of Southeast Louisiana, which will be caused by the operational

releases of the Waterford 3 nuclear facility?"

The answer is to be edited to delete -- on the second line, beginning on the righthand side with the parenthesis, "such as those named in the question," closed parenthesis.

14 So that for the record, the witness' answer 15 should now read in full as follows, and I quote: "In 16 view of the limitations of our current scientific knowledge 17 on the synergistic effects between specific chemicals 18 and low-level ionizing radiation, I don't think it is 19 possible to give any precise quantitative predictions of 20 specific risks in the exposed population. It is, however, possible to make a rough qualitative assessment 22 by extrapolating from the experience in the U.S.S.R., 23 where there are conditions similar to those that would exist with the operation of Waterford Three."

JUDGE WOLFE: All right. In light of

		1399
12-3	1	conference between counsel and without objection, the
•	2	rephrased Question 29 in the Bross testimony and the
	3	amended answer will be incorporated into the record as
•	4	if read, as part of Dr. Bross' testimony.
345	5	All right, Mr. Jones?
554-22	6	MR. JONES: Yes, that's correct.
(202)	7	JUDGE WOLFE: All right. Mr. Blake, back to
20024	8	your cross.
4, D.C.	9	BY MR. BLAKE:
NGTON	10	Q. Dr. Bross, when we broke for lunch, we were
VASHI	11	working our way through the last five years or so of the
ING, V	12	documents which you had identified in your bibliography.
BUILD	13	We had decided determined that there were 47, that of
TERS	14	those some 17 were letters to the editor.
REPOR	15	That of the remaining 30, eight or so dealt
S.W. , 1	16	with well, actually eight dealt with health effects of
teer,	17	radiation. And of those eight, four were presentations
TH STI	18	to the Congress or the NRC.
300 77	19	And our last questions had focused on 294,
	20	295, 296 and 303 and peer review which those documents go,
	21	if any.
•	22	Is that a fair summary?
	23	A. Well, you're taking the set of It was
•	24	294, 295, 296 and
	25	Q. 303 was the other one.

A. Well, you skipped 299. But the -- which was 1 a peer review paper. And the items that you have here 2 are, in fact, testimonies -- it's true -- testimonies 3 before Congress which are not peer reviewed by Congress. 4

1400

I think if any extenuating comment is required in this case, I believe that transmission of information to the Congress of the United States, so that the latest and most reliable information on radiation hazards 8 can be used by Congress for the formulation of policy on various problems of this kind is something which as a public health scientist, I feel it is my responsibility to carry out.

13 And since these are Congressional hearings, 14 I believe that they are sufficiently important to include 15 in bibliographic -- in a set of bibliographic references, 16 which is essentially a list of items that are available in 17 one way or another in print.

18 Is it -- Does that alter your testimony, 0. 19 your statement that you've just made as to whether or not 20 294, 295, 296 and 303 were subject to peer review?

> No. I believe I have made it clear --A. They were not --0.

23 A. -- that this is testimony that is not 24 peer.reviewed. But it is published, and it should be 25 included in the bibliography.

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

5

6

7

9

10

11

12

21

22

12 - 4

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

18

(202) 554-2345

20024

D.C.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON,

Q Then let me pick up: Of the remaining four items which we've narrowed it down to, 325 -- that, I understand, is still not published?

1401

A. I believe that 325 is the material which I previously had indicated is a photocopy of the galley for an article which is slated for publication this month.

Now, I'm not really avoiding your question, but I would have to say in the interest of accuracy, that sometimes scientific journals do not appear exactly on their publication dates.

So I have not seen a copy of this specific journal. It will be out sometime -- well, it's probably out, but I don't know for a fact that it's out.

And this was a peer reviewed item.

16 Q. You say that Item No. 325 has undergone 17 peer review prior to publication?

A. Yes.

19 Q. Who conducted the peer review, not by name, 20 but this was a peer review done by Yale Journal of Biology 21 and Medicine?

A. Well, I can't remember the name of the
editor. I have in my files extensive correspondence. This
is, in fact, an example of an article which was extensively
peer reviewed and, in fact, approved by the peer review in

1

2

S.W., REPORTERS PUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

300 7TH STREET,

20

23

12

13

this case because it was done by the editor and editorial staff and others.

And in this case -- I might just add on this 3 point -- that the items that I added to this list -- that 4 is, Appendix 2, where I have listed all of the positive 5 studies that I am aware of involving low-level radiation 6 7 hazards in populations actually exposed to low-level 8 radiation, that this list was added after I submitted my 9 original paper, because in one sentence I had said that 10 there are this very large number of publications that have 11 found these results.

And the editor asked me if I would mind listing them. So I did.

So that certainly counts as peer review. Andrather constructive peer review.

16 Q. It is your testimony that the document 17 identified as No. 325 in your bibliography has undergone 18 peer review, and is about to be published or may have been 19 by now?

Α.

. Yes.

les.

21 Q. And that that peer review was done under the
22 auspices of the Yale Journal of Biology and Medicine?

Α.

24 Q. Is this the same article, when it appears in 25 print, that you presented at a Yale symposium?

2-7		A. Well, subject to the changes that were in-
-	:	volves, which were fairly extensive in the peer review
-	:	process that is to say, when it was presented, it was
		an oral presentation.
-	12	Q. Uh-huh.
	554-21	A. There's quite a substantial difference
	(202)	between what is acceptable as an oral presentation and
	20024	what is appropriate for the Yale Journal as a written
	N, D.C.	document.
	10	So the two have a lot in common, but there
	III II	are things that are added and a few things that are re-
	') 12	moved from the other material. Mostly additions.
	13	
-	14	
	15	
	16	
a b b c +	17	
TU CT	18	
2 000	19	
	20	
	21	
	22	
-	23	
•	24	
	25	이 가지 않는 것 같은 것 같

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

And it is your testimony that Item No. 299 13-1 1 0. was subjected to peer review before publication? 2 Item 299 had a varied characteristic from 3 A. 4 peer review, and let me just elaborate slightly on that 5 because I believe it is pertinent to the review process 554-2345 6 in journals that I referred to earlier. 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 7 When this article was submitted to the 8 editor, he said that he would consider it if I would 9 allow a critique by members of the radiation protection 10 community of the article. 11 I said, "That's fine with me if you will 12 allow me an opportunity to respond to the critique in the 13 same issue." 14 This is a kind of peer review process. It's 15 not the standard peer review. 16 In other words, the editor had named to me 17 the reviewers, which is not customary. They were Vicey 18 and Land. 19 Under the circumstances, I agreed to this 20 arrangement. The arrangement was not carried out to the 21 letter. 22 They published my article and they published 23 the critique of the article, but they would not publish 24 my response in that issue. 25 So I was essentially confronted by having no

1404

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

1

opportunity to reply.

2 Did you never get an opportunity to respond? 0. 3 I had asked for something like equal space. A. The critique of my article was longer than the original 4 5 article, and I felt that to adequately respond to such a 6 lengthy critique of my article, I should be given something 7 like that space, or half the space, or something like this. 8 The editor said, "No, you can only have so many 9 words," and it was, I felt, impossible to do, and it 10 wouldn't be published in the same issue, either. 11 So I did not regard this as an opportunity to 12 respond. 13 0. Did the editor describe to you why he was 14 taking this position? 15 Well, I think we had some correspondence on A. 16 this. You mean, why he dealt with the paper in this 17 way, particular way. 18 It's not uncommon, I might say, for this to 19 be made a prerequisite of publication or a barrier to 20 publication. 21 In almost every case, that an article 22 dealing with health hazards came out in the literature with 23 positive findings, there was an arrangement of some kind for 24 a member of the radiation protection community, defending 25 the radiation-is-harmless doctrine, to respond to that

1405

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

16

18

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

original article, sometimes in the form of editorials or sometimes in the form of publication of an article.

1406

I might say that this is not standard practice of peer review in ordinary science. I do not have this problem in publishing, except in this area and except with members of the radiation protection community.

It is a very unusual situation where peer review has been distorted into a process for the suppression instead of the improvement of information, unfortunately.

0. Distorted into suppression; is that your opinion about this set of conditions?

12 Well, it's based on a very large number of A. 13 specific case examples that I could not cite from memory, 14 but which are in the literature where, among other cases, 15 the studies which were done on the children who were downwind from the Big Smokey and other tests, when that 17 was published there was a counter-article or a critique published along with it.

19 In the case of Mancuso's article there have 20 been -- you know, when he publishes, there has been lis 21 kind of co-publication or editorial commentary.

22 In the case of the girl that we're talking 23 about right now, the editor saw fit to intervene with 24 editorial comments which were completely unwarranted. 25 They were printed along with the article, but

13-4	1	that would never be done ordinarily. That's very unusual.
•	2	Q. The two remaining documents that we haven't
	3	talked about which, at least from my review, appear to
•	4	involve health effects, are 289 and 309.
345	5	Were those two documents subjected to typical
554-2	6	peer review prior to their publication?
(202)	7	A. The "Journal of Medicine" is a reviewed
20024	8	journal.
l, D.C.	9	Q. And this report was in fact reviewed?
ICTON	10	A. Yes.
ASHIN	11	Q. And 309?
NG, W	12	A. That's "Investigative Radiology"
A	13	Q. Yes.
ERS B	14	A which is a peer-reviewed journal, and
PORT	15	a journal that would certainly not allow reporting of any data
W. , RH	16	that would not strongly support the conclusions if the
ET, 8.1	17	conclusions are that there are serious hazards
STRE	18	The fact the conclusions in this particular
HTT 0	19	article are in a conce the first report of price
30	20	article are, in a sense, the first report of primal
	21	synergism.
	22	The article was reviewed and in this case
•	23	there was a critique to the article published along with
	24	it.
•	25	This particular critique, which did not happen
		to be by a member of the radiation protection community,
		ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

		이 같은 것은 것은 것은 것은 것은 것은 것을 하는 것을 하는 것을 하는 것을 하는 것을 하는 것을 가지 않는 것을 가지 않는 것을 하는 것을 수 있다. 것을 하는 것을 하는 것을 수 있는 것을 수 있는 것을 하는 것을 하는 것을 하는 것을 하는 것을 하는 것을 수 있다. 것을 하는 것을 하는 것을 하는 것을 하는 것을 수 있는 것을 수 있는 것을 수 있다. 것을 하는 것을 수 있는 것을 수 있는 것을 수 있는 것을 수 있는 것을 수 있다. 것을 수 있는 것을 수 있다. 것을 수 있는 것을 수 있다. 것을 수 있는 것을 수 있다. 것을 것을 수 있는 것을 것을 수 있는 것을 것을 것을 것을 것을 것을 것을 것을 것을 수 있는 것을 것을 것을 수 있는 것을 것을 것을 것을 것을 것 같이 않는 것을 것을 것을 것을 것을 것을 것 같이 같이 않는 것을 것 같이 않는 것을 것 같이 않는 것을 것 같이 않는 것을 것 같이 않는 것 않는 것 않는 것 같이 않는 것 않는 것 같이 않는 것 않는 것 않는 것 같이 않는 것 않는 것 않는 것 않는 것 같이 않는 것 않는 것 같이 않는 것 않는 것 않는 것 같이 않는 것 않는 것 않는 것 같이 않는 것 않는 것 않는 것 않는 것 같이 않는 것 않는 것 않는 것 같이 않는 것 않는 것 같이 않는 것 않는
5	1	but by an honest scientist, was in fact quite flattering
	2	and not the kind of critique I generally get.
	3	Q. What discipline was the honest scientist that
	4	you've referred to?
554-2345	5	A. Pardon?
	6	Q. What was his discipline?
1 (202)	7	A. He was a statistician.
2002	8	You know, peer review, since you've raised
N, D.C	9	the question of discipline, in theory would mean that my
NGTO	10	papers would not be reviewed by persons such as
NASHI	11	Leonard Hamilton, but by a person who is my peer, an
ING, 1	12	epidemiologist and biostatistician.
BUILD	13	Now, I'm a Fellow of the American Statistical
TERS	14	Association. I'm a Fellow of the American College of
REPOR	15	Epidemiology.
S.W.	16	If the review of my work were by my peers, it
REET,	17	would be by Fellows of the American Statistical Association
TH STI	18	or the American College of Epidemiology, or persons of
300 71	19	corresponding rank and stature in these areas.
	20	The critiques that have been made of my work
	21	have not been made by persons with these characteristics.
	22	Q. Has Dr. Land ever critiqued any of your work?
•	23	A. Yes. I mentioned him.
	24	Q. Well, would you say that he is not a person
	25	of equal stature, that is in the epidemiology or
		ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

2

3

4

1 biostatistic area?

A. I would say it very strongly.

Q. You would say he is not?

A. I would say he is not.

5 Q. You would say he does not have education in 6 those areas?

7 A. I would say that Dr. Land has been involved
8 with the studies of high-level radiation that were
9 involving the Japanese A-bomb studies, on the actual
10 individuals exposed to the A-bombs. He has done a long
11 series of studies in this area.

12 They are not particularly good studies. In
13 fact, they are seriously defective. However, they came out
14 with the right answer from the standpoint of the radiation
15 protection community, which was that the levels were very
16 low, and these are the quantities that are used in the
17 BEIR Report.

Now, Land has never, to my knowledge, done a study comparable to the ones I'm citing in which you look at populations of human beings that are actually exposed to low-level radiation.

Now, if you want to find out what happens to people who are exposed to low-level radiation, you look at the people who are exposed.

Now, you don't look at people who get a

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

25

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

1

what it might be at low levels. 2 As far as I'm concerned, Land has not made 3 a serious contribution or a lasting contribution. He has 4 supplied the kind of information which is used in the 5 official radiological protection journals and things of 6 that sort; but I don't regard him as a peer. 7 Do you regard Dr. Rothman of the Harvard 0. 8 School of Public Health? 0 A. Rothman is more of a peer. 10 What about Dr. Oppenheim, Indiana University; 11 0. do you recognize that name? Oppenheim? 12 I'm very bad on names. I don't remember that 13 A. name. You know, I have vague recollections of 14 Oppenheimer, but I don't think that's the same person. 15 I should think that you would want to ask your 16 17 witnesses to state where they are Fellows of the American 18 Statistical Association or of the American College of 19 Epidemiology in order to show that they are peers of mine. 20 How about Sir Richard Dowl; do you recognize 0. 21 that name? 22 A. Yes. 23 Would you say he's a peer of yours? 0. 24 That's a very interesting question. A. At 25 one time, yes, though not lately. ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

hundred or a thousand times that dose and then try to guess

		동생 가슴 날 때 이 것을 걸었다. 한 것 같은 것
13-8	1	Actually, Dowl and Hill were a team.
•	2	Bradford Hill was the statistician and Dowl was a
-	3	physician, and they were an effective team in the smoking/
	4	lung cancer area where I was working with Ernie Winder and
345	5	Mort Levin many years ago.
554-2	6	At that time I felt, certainly, he was a
1 (202)	7	peer of mine; but actually, the brains of that team was
20024	8	the statistician.
v, D.C.	9	Q. Is that generally your view of all of these
VGT ON	10	studies?
VASHID	11	A. No. It just happens that Bradford Hill
ING, V	12	is a really sharp person and he wrote the best textbook
BUILD	13	in elementary statistics for many, many years.
rens	14	So no, I don't believe that all statisticians
LEPORT	15	are better than anybody else, and I don't believe that
S.W. , F	16	all epidemiologists are better than anybody else, and I
EET, 1	17	don't believe that my specialty is better than anybody
H STR	18	else's specialty.
TT 00	19	I simply believe it's more relevant to the
	20	subject of this hearing.
	21	Q. What about Malcom Pike?
	22	A. Pike is a
-	23	Q. Do you recognize that name?
	24	A. Yeah.
-	25	Q. Is he an epidemiologist?

3-9	1	A. Well, yes. As a matter of fact, he's somewhat
•	2	structured like Land in a way, but not in this country,
	3	I believe.
•	4	I think there has always been like two or
345	5	three persons in England or in the United States who are
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2	6	sort of the designated hit men.
	7	For a long time, whenever any paper came out,
	8	Land critiqued it and, you know, it was a very negative
	9	critique.
	10	He did Mancuso; he did a number on Najerian;
	11	he did a number on me. Everybody who came out with
DING,	12	positive results got the benefit of a hatchet job from
S.W. , REPORTERS BUILD	13	Dr. Land.
	14	Q. What do you mean by "positive results"?
	15	A. I mean results which show that in a group
	16	exposed to low-level radiation there was excess disease
REET,	17	of one kind of another, deaths or disabilities or excess
TH ST	18	health hazard.
300.7	19	Those are positive. If they find nothing
	20	in the evidence, it's negative.
	21	I should maybe make a point, for instance,
•	22	of a letter I wrote to "Health Physics" that illustrates
-	23	this.
•	24	The actual evidence there is deaths before
	25	age 21 of the children of persons who were exposed to

1412

t

13-10	1	the A-bomb or not city, actually, another group at
•	2	various dose levels.
	3	Now, most of the studies I'm talking about
•	4	make at least some effort to deal with an estimate of some
345	5	kind or a response to the exposure to some designated
NGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2	6	levels or low levels of ionizing radiation.
	7	In some cases, maybe not accurately measured,
	8	but by inference, or one way or another.
	9	So these are the kinds of studies I'm talking
	10	about which are done by epidemiologists.
WASHI	11	The other kinds of studies which are
SING,	12	traditional in the radiation protection community are not
BUILI	13	this class of studies at all.
TERS	14	
REPOI	15	
S.W.	16	
REET,	17	
I ST	18	
117 008	19	
	20	
	21	
	22	
	23	
•	24	
	25	

1	BY	MR.	BLAK	E :
---	----	-----	------	-----

14 **(**)

•

	2	Q Let me ask you, while you term that actual				
	3	studies of radiation levels, whether or not you have ever				
	4	conducted a study of actual radiation levels around a				
45	5	nuclear power plant?				
554-234	6	A. No.				
(202)	7	Q. You referred earlier on several occasions				
20024	8	to the fact that evaluations, calculations of releases				
. D.C.	9	and resultant doses are near arithmetic to you.				
GTON	10	A. Are you asking for a response there?				
ASHIN	11	Q and				
NG, W	12	A. Do you want me to answer that or what?				
ULLDI	13	Q in fact, I believe you had characterized				
EKS B	14	them as Mickey Mouse.				
LNOKI	15	A. All right.				
W. , KI	16	Q. Mickey Mouse arithmetic. Is that correct?				
	17	A. That's correct.				
SIRE	18	Q. Your view is, however, that your statistical				
HU O	19	work regarding populations. I take it, is not Mickey				
5	20	Mouse arithmetic: is that correct?				
	21	A That's correct				
	22	0 But you have never evaluated the docor cur-				
	23	rounding any nuclear nower plant?				
	24	A There not an Vor know tim not a preferring of				
	25	anti-nuke. I don't go chacing anod the				
		under numer, i don e go enasing around the country, you				

1414

know, looking for plants to find hazards with or something of that sort.

1415

The only time I would deal with radiation doses as dosimetry is indirectly as, for example, in the paper that we were talking about, the Japananese A-bomb exposure data, those are retrospective dosimetry calculations of the persons who were in the study.

I am taking the numbers directly from the report in "Science" of these persons. These are, presumbly, done in a different way, because there's a -you know, hypothetically at least there's a ground zero and a bomb and so forth, and they have distances of the persons from the bomb for their purposes of getting estimates of exposure.

The Portsmouth Naval Shipyard, the exposures that are in that study, are again not measured by me, but I am taking them from Admiral Rickover's records of the actual badget doses in most cases -- or in some cases they are other measurements, but badge dose primarily, let's say -- for the nuclear workers exposed at that plant.

If I recalculate the data on Big Smoky that is in the -- from the Center for Disease Control study, where they have assessed the dosimetry for the individual in that study of myleoma leukemia, you know, I am again

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

14 - 2

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

		1416
14-3	1	using the assessments that they are making there.
•	2	Q. You're using the data generated by other
	3	people, but you reassess it or relook at it in your
•	4	statistical
345	5	A. Well, specifically on the yes, on radia-
554-2	6	tion, I've
1 (202)	7	Q. That's your general approach in the radiation
20024	8	area
4, D.C.	9	A made no claim and make no claim to
NGTON	10	being involved with the actual measurement of radiation
VASHD	11	in the dosimetry sense.
ING, W	12	Q. Have you ever received an award for scholar-
auro	13	ship for work in any of the radiological sciences or in
LERS 1	14	connection with your work statistical work related to
EPOR	15	radiation?
.W.	16	A. Well, you know, people in the areas who are
EET, S	17	concerned about nuclear hazards, you know, write me cita-
H STR	18	tions and things like that. But I wouldn't count that.
17 00i	19	Basically, no.
	20	Q. Have you ever been appointed to any scientific
	21	committee or standard-setting body on radiation standards?
_	22	A. Well, you know, of course, that I was on the
•	23	Portsmouth Naval Shipyard study. I'm not
-	24	Q. This is the Oversight Committee
•	25	A. That's the Oversight Committee.
		ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

21

25

Q.

-- with Dr. Hamilton?

1417

A. I was one of the three persons who were appointed by Congress -- it was myself, Kazie Morgan who I do respect, a firstrate man, and Tom Ankuso, who decided that he'd never get to do data, and it wasn't really worth sticking around and then come out with a negative study, which, of course, they did.

Then the Radiation Protection Community and the Atomic Industrial Forum decided that they had to have equal say. So they added some more members to represent them.

I believe you know some of them. And there were also a few who were added, sort of neutrals, to the Committee.

In the end it had a much larger number of persons on it. So that's how I got appointed.

I was appointed directly as a result of my testimony in 1978 -- February 1978 -- that's mentioned in here in the -- and so were the others, because they had also testified at the hearing.

Q. This was an NRC hearing --

A. No, this was a Congressional hearing, which
has a -- what is a serial number -- I can't ever remember
that serial number.

149 -- Oh, here it is. 95-179.

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

14-5	1	Incidentally I don't know whether you're
•	2	familiar with the volume. That's a big thick book. It
	3	has lots and lots of additional material in it. And just
•	4	to clarify my previous statement: In addition to the
345	5	testimony I gave, in cross-examination and so forth, there
554-2	6	was allowed entry of materials of a scientific nature.
(202)	7	I took advantage of that and essentially put the paper in
20024	8	that way.
4, D.C.	9	Q. I see. And that wasn't subject to any peer
NGTON	10	review, I take it?
VASHID	11	A. No, no. That was
ING, W	12	Q. You were just allowed to put it in
	13	A subsequently submitted for peer review
TERS P	14	and got into the complicated machinery we've talked
EPOR	15	about.
.W., R	16	Q. Your appearance at the Yale Symposium which
EET, S	17	led now to this most recent publication
H STR	18	A. Uh-huh.
17 00	19	Q was it a condition of appearing there
	20	that your work would be published?
	21	A. Well, I you know, I had kind of hoped that
•	22	the participants at the Symposium would perhaps have their
-	23	work published. I mean, it was an incentive for me to go
•	24	to the Symposium.
	25	But I really went because I think they had six

	1	people, and I was the only one presenting a report on
	2	positive hazards and figured, you know, they needed a
	3	token scientist at that meeting.
	4	Q. You mean token scientist in that the others
2345	5	at the Yale Symposium were not scientists in your view?
) 554-2	6	A. Yes.
24 (202	7	Q. Could you provide me the names of the other
C. 2002	8	five who were at that meeting who, in your mind, are not
NN, D.(9	scientists?
NGTO	10	A. You mean can I name them now, or can I pro-
WASH	11	vide you at a later date with a list?
DING.	12	Q Well, why don't you start now by just giving
BUIL	13	me whoever it is that you remember.
RTERS	14	A. Actually Leonard could help me.
REPO	15	THE WITNESS: What's his name at Argonne?
S.W.	16	JUDGE WOLFE: Doctor, from your own recol-
FREET	17	lection.
TTH S	18	THE WITNESS: I'm sorry.
300	20	You know, I know them pretty well. I'm
	20	really bad on names, but I can't produce his name.
	22	He's very well known. He has witnessed with me several
	23	times as a matter of fact at the hearings, and I
	24	I cannot produce his name, I'm sorry to say.
	25	rou know, I could look up the list and see
		who was there and who

1419

14-7 1 BY MR. BLAKE:

The other five individuals who appeared with 0. 2 you at the Yale Symposium who you've referred to as non-3 scientists, you're unable to recall their names? 4 Well, they're not in my field. One was a 5 A. 20024 (202) 554-2345 guy who was talking about -- it was more or less pro-6 motional material as far as I was concerned. 7 8 Most of the persons -- There were --D.C. I was the only person, as far as I was concerned, who 9 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, 10 presented a new scientific study -- new scientific data 11 at that meeting that I heard anyway. 12 I missed a couple -- I think one session or 13 so. 14 The Radiation Protection Community goes 15 around regularly and gives the same talk over and over 16 again at different meetings. I don't do this. I don't 17 like to talk about the same thing twice. 18 So I had prepared new material. 19 Q. Were you one of the initial invitees at 20 that Symposium? 21 Α. No. 22 now does it happen that you attended? 0. 23 Α. Well, again I'm bad on names -- but now I 24 can't even remember names of people who I know pretty 25 Goffman, I think, was originally -well.

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

14-8	1	Q. Dr. John Goffman?
•	2	A. I believe, but I can't I'm not certain.
	3	It was one of these people in this group who was invited
•	4	and who agreed to go, and then when he saw the line-up of
45	5	persons, he said, "I won't attend unless you make it
554-20	6	even." You know, like three on three or but notfive
(202)	7	on one.
20024	8	So he sort of at the last minute said that
N, D.C	9	he didn't want to go. And so he suggested me, and they
NGTO	10	called me up and said, "Would you please come so we can
WASHI	11	have some balance at the meeting?"
JING,	12	And I said, "Well, it's only five to one.
BUILI	13	That's pretty good odds," so I came.
TERS	14	Q. Five to one being the one you the scientist
REPOR	15	against the other five who were non-scientists?
S.W	16	A. Right.
REET,	17	Q. What does DNA stand for?
TH ST	18	A. Well, I'm not sure exactly what you want for
300 7	19	an answer. But
	20	Q. Well, I'd like what the term stands for.
	21	A. All right.
•	22	The term is the name for the double helix
	23	genetic material in the literature that's used as the
	24	name for the genetic material, generally speaking now.
	25	Rather than speaking about genetic material, people

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

say DNA.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

14-9

I mean, there's a chemical involved, but they're not really referring to the chemical. They're referring to the double helix as a genetic material. Q. Do you know what those letters stand for?

1422

A. I always get mixed up on these chemical names.

It sounds strange. I can't remember exactly, and I don't want to take a stab.

I don't believe there's any question as to what it is. There's a point I might make about names and definitions.

The meaning of DNA is determined not by the formal formula for it, it's really determined by the way it's used in scientific discourse, so people don't refer to the entire chemical in scientific discourse very much anymore, because -- it's just simply an abbreviation.

Now, 35 far as in scientific discourse, which is what matters, its use is that it refers to this double helix which is the basis for the genetic code.

15-1	1	Q. In your view, would it be unimportant to
ge	2	understand the chemistry in order to understand what in
•	3	fact happens in the system?
	4	A. Well, the answer to that is for certain
2345	5	studies, of course, in the sciences the detailed chemistry
554.3	6	matters.
4 (202)	7	In a way in which I am speaking of genetic
2002	8	damage, I really use DNA as a way of avoiding a lot of
N, D.C	9	confusion which exists in speaking about genetic damage.
INGTO	10	It's simply a more specific thing to refer to.
WASH	11	In other words, when you talk about genes in
, DNIG,	12	general, this is somewhat vaguer and people can argue
BUILT	13	about things like genetic and semantic facts and things
TERS	14	like this.
REPOR	15	Q. Do you profess to understand the genetics at
S.W. ,]	16	that level or in fact what DNA is or
REFT,	17	A. In the biochemistry, no, I don't know the
TTS H	18	chemical structure of DNA.
300 71	19	Q. Nor what role it plays?
	20	A. Oh, that's another question.
	21	Q. No. Let me understand you.
•	22	You don't know what the chemical is, but you
	23	do know the role that it plays?
	24	A. For my work, what matters is the role that
	25	the structure plays. Now, the chemicals that are in this

15-2 structure, code for enzymes for instance, if you want to 1 get information on what is coded for what, then you have 2 to see a biochemist, not me. 3 If you want to know what happens when you 4 put a break into the structure, what matters functionally 5 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 6 is that, for instance, the damage --7 Would I come to you to find that out, a 8 biostatistician? 9 No, this is general knowledge, not statistical A. 10 In other words, the way in which -knowledge. 11 But you have the knowledge? 0. 12 A. I think it's general knowledge, not uniquely 13 for me. I think everybody is fairly aware of the fact 14 that there's a complex chemical structure, that a lesion 15 in the chemical structure can miscode for an enzyme. 16 What matters to me is that the miscoding for 17 the enzyme would be -- which is misinformation in the 18 genetic code, is reproduced by cloning, and then becomes 19 something which can be a threat to the total organism, 20 resulting in cancer or leukemia or something of this sort, 21 as a result of the misinformation. 22 What is important is not the details of 23 biochemistry, because if you go to a museum or anything 24 like that, you see that it's a very complicated molecule. 25 If you shoot at it, as it were, with a rifle
1425

and so it doesn't, for my line of argument, matter exactly what the chemical structure is.

It conveys information. The importance of the structure is it conveys information; that the radiation damage puts misinformation in; when this is cloned, then you get health effects.

10 That's really what matters in this process.
11 The details of the individual chemical structure does not,
12 from my perspective.

Q. From your perspective, that is, in order to
support your thesis, you need not understand the
biochemistry --

A. That's correct. Right.

Q. -- of the system?

18 A. I don't know that I want to get into a
19 dissertation on this. but in science there are a lot of
20 levels at which you can understand a given thing.

Like DNA, you can understand it at the
biochemical level or even below that.

Then you can understand it at the biological
level or at levels coming above that where you are dealing
with human disease.

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

15-3

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

16

15-4	1	I think that as far as understanding the
•	2	cancer process, for instance, this is fairly clear.
	3	As far as details of that cancer process,
•	4	fine details like you're talking about, the chemical
345	5	structure or something, you know, this is not all that
) 554-2	6	clear. But you know the general process, not the fine
4 (202	7	detail, and that tells you how the hazard works.
2002	8	That's why there's a latent period. I
N, D.C	9	mean, you need to know this much to understand why you
NGTO	10	analyze data in certain ways.
WASHI	11	I need to have that much information to analyze
, DNIG,	12	the data. I need to know what a latent period is and why
BUILE	13	it is.
TERS	14	I don't need to know what the particular
REPOR	15	chemical break is.
S.W. ,	16	0. Let me refer you, Dr. Bross, to your answer
teet.	17	to Question No. 15.
TTR HT	18	A. Uh-huh.
300 71	19	Q. The fourth line of that answer I'm sorry,
	20	I don't have page numbers, but if we can just go through
	21	your testimony by referring to the question numbers.
•	22	A. That's fine with me.
	23	Q. This is Question 15, and in the fourth line
•	24	of that you refer to, at the beginning of that line,
	25	"Low-level nuclear radiation."

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

	-			
1	54	-	84	
	-	-		
-	27		100	

1

2

3

554-2345

D.C. 20024 (202)

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON,

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

Yes.

A.

Q. Do you mean to distinguish by some method nuclear radiation from other forms of radiation?

Well, at the NRC hearing in 1978 it was 4 A. 5 stipulated, because I was presenting testimony on diagnostic X-rays, that for the purposes of the kinds of studies 6 7 that we were doing, that these rads and rems, for instance, 8 are interchangeable, and that these different types of 9 radiation that we're talking about are essentially similar 10 enough that we can talk about a single as opposed to a lot 11 of different things.

12 In other words, I believe that stipulation13 should apply here, too.

Q. That is, that the forms of radiation that we're talking about in the emissions from Waterford 3 are such that we need not distinguish between rad and rem?

A. For the most part. You can always find, you know, occasional exceptions, but most of the radiation would be essentially similar, and going back and forth between rads and rems and to forth, which I may do automatically in some of my testimony, I'm not talking about different things. I'm talking about the same thing.

Q. What is an exception?

24 A. Well, you can have problems. For instance,
25 in Japan, where they had the A-bomb --

199	101	a The talking about Waterford 3
-7	1	g I'm talking about wateriold 5.
Ð	2	A. Oh, well, I'm not referring to Waterford 3.
	3	I'm saying there are some exceptions, but
0	4	for the most part, the nuclear radiation and diagnostic
45	5	X-ray will be similar.
N54-23	6	Q. Are there any exceptions for Waterford 3 in
(202)	7	its releases?
20024	8	A. I imagine so. I don't know.
D.C.	9	Q. You don't know?
GTON.	10	A. The main point is that
VIHSV	11	Q. Is nuclear radiation Do you use that
C. WI	12	term now or is it just in that one context at the NRC
UILDIN	13	hearing that this nuclear radiation term
ERS BI	14	A. Well, the issue comes up now and then as to
PORTI	15	whether we're talking about the same thing or something
W., RF	16	different when we talk about X-rays and particulate
ET, S.	17	radiation.
STRE	18	There are differences, obviously. Particulates
HILL OF	19	are not the same thing as waves.
æ	20	Therefore, the key issue which is involved
	21	here is what is a prime risk factor, and that's the dosage
-	22	measured either one way or the other with, as I say, some
•	23	exceptions which may exist, which I am putting in primarily
-	24	just to make sure that I don't overstate the case.
•	25	These things, the risk is basically the

15.

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

exposure, rads or rems, and the health effects are similar.
 Not necessarily identical, but the primary determinant of
 the health effect will be the rads and the rems.
 Then you can have other determinants, other
 factors.

6 Q In this same answer, you've classed doses in 7 the range between 100 millirem and 10 rem in what you 8 refer to as the one-rad range.

1429

9 Elsewhere you refer to the one-rad range, and
10 I take it you're talking about this range of doses?

A. Well, the answer to that is, you know, it is not a hard and fast range in any of these things.

I'm trying to distinguish between background radiation, which generally speaking starts at about 100 millirem and runs down, which is somewhat outside of the range, and a higher level of radiation, which, say, at therapeutic ranges can be much higher, or else in weapons exposures.

19 What I'm trying to do is make the words
20 "low-level ionizing radiation or the one-rad range" as
21 specific as possible so we know fairly well that we're
22 not talking about background radiation necessarily. We're
23 not talking about high-level radiation necessarily.

24 So in other words, I think it's just for 25 purposes of clarity. I don't want to give the misimpression

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON,

11

12

15-8

1	that there's some sort of, you know, number there, that
2	there's a break in the scale or anything of that sort.
3	There isn't.
4	Q. Is this classification scheme yours?
5	A. Well, I think it's basically a matter of
6	convenience. People use different ranges, but this is
7	what I thought I would specify to avoid possible confusion.
8	Q. Do others refer to the one-rad range?
9	A. I
10	Q. Have you ever seen anybody else refer to the
11	one-rad range?
12	A. Well, people refer to ranges. I don't know
13	whether they refer I think because the NRC's testimony
14	is generally involving five rem, it's more customary to
15	talk, maybe, about that range.
16	But it would be again an order of magnitude
17	up or down from whatever was the central number.
18	(A Have you ever seen anybody else refer to the
19	one-rad range?
20	A. I do not recall a specific instance of it,
21	but on the other hand, I couldn't say that I've never
22	seen it, because it wouldn't strike my attention.
23	You are asking a flat question. I really don't
24	know whether I've seen it for certain or not.
25	Q. You don't recall ever having seen anybody else

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

1430

		1431
-10	1	A. I don't recall. That's true. No, I
•	2	couldn't name
-	3	Q refer to the one-rad range?
	4	A you a person who
554-2345	5	THE REPORTER: Hold it. I'm sorry, I can't
554-2	6	get but one of you at a time.
1 (202)	7	At this point I have no question or no
20024	8	answer.
N, D.C	9	MR. BLAKE: Let me start with the last one
NGTO	10	if I can.
WASHI	11	BY MR. BLAKE:
OING, 1	12	Q. You do not recall ever having seen anyone
BUILI	13	else refer to the term one-rad range?
TERS	14	A. I can't give you a name, no. I can't
REPOR	15	recall any particular person who made such a reference. I
S.W. ,	16	cannot recall such a reference and give you a name.
REET,	17	Q. Do you recall any references to the term,
TH ST	18	ever having seen it in anybody's paper, other than your
300 7	19	own?
	20	A. I don't recall, no.
	21	
•	22	
	23	
•	24	
	25	
		ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY INC

BY MR. BLAKE:

0.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

16 - 1

Q. Are you aware that it is common for individuals to talk about doses and in so doing classify doses over two orders of magnitudes?

A. I'm sorry, I don't quite -- You mean --Are you really referring to the width of the range?

Yes, sir.

You refer to effects or impacts associated with the one-rad range.

A. Right. Well, in this area, you see, you're really on a log scale, if you want to deal with -- if you want to stay on the scale over the kind of range, for instance, of numbers that would be discussed at a hearing like this, which range all the way from way below background to possibly two numbers -- if you're talking about BEIR report numbers -- they're in 200 or 300 rads.

So that's a very wide range, and you usually work on a log basis. And, therefore, a log number up or down would be -- the center point might differ, but people use -- you know, an order of magnitude up or down as the sort of thing which you break off on this kind of a scale.

In other words, it's a factor of ten up or down, or some persons might want to make it five. But it's that sort of log scale that you're working on.

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

2	1	Q. Are the effects or the impacts that are as-
	2	sociated with a dose of 100 millirem essentially the same
	3	as those associated with 10 rads or 10 rem?
	4	A. In my view, there is no break in the scale.
	SHE 5	I gave this as a matter of precision in speaking, if I
	554-2	could.
	(202)	And the purpose of this is not to indicate
	20024 8	that there is any kind of abrupt break in that scale. The -
	6 D.C.	As you get down towards 100 millirem, you're getting cer-
	NOL 10	tain effects that are not changing when you hit a
	VIHSE 11	hundred 100 millirem.
	8 9 12	And, similarly, when you're going up, they
UILDIN	III 13	don't suddenly change when you hit 10. It's not that kind
	8 SH3 14	of a break. It's simply a convenience for speaking about
	15	it.
,	H 16	Q. You would expect to see the same effects
1	17	associated with 10 rads of radiation as you would with
	18	100 millirads or 100 millirem?
-	19	A. Are you asking about the dose response curve.
90	20	is that the thrust of your question?
	21	Q. I'm asking you whether or not you would eva
	22	pect to see the same effects or impacts with either of those
	23	two doses which are different by two orders of magnitude
	24	A. Oh, the answer to that is the qualitation.
•	25	the effects are not necessarily different . But
		and different. But

1433

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

(202) 554-2345

REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024

300 7TH STREET, S.W.

quantitatively they would be different.

In other words, in terms of the scale we're talking about, the person who had a higher exposure than -if a person had a rem instead of 100 millirem, he would have a higher risk, according to what seems to be happening in our figures.

1434

But that doesn't extend indefinitely. And if you get very high doses, the curve goes back down. And this is shown in the data that I presented on the Japanese A-bomb children.

The risks that you see in the persons with gonadal doses over 10 rem and the risks that you see for the parents with gonadal doses under 10 rem are not actually that different.

In fact, the curve goes -- appears to go down after 10 rem.

17 Q What is the curve exactly that you're
18 describing, the curve --

19 A. This is called a dosage response curve.
20 Q. Yes. But in your own words, what does that
21 mean? Does that mean a dose effectiveness or a dose
22 impact, or a -- How would you exactly describe what's
23 happening in that curve?

A. Well, if you -- I think maybe the diagram
25 shows it more clearly. In other words, you have some sort

of measure on the Y-axis -- in this case it's percent 1 mortality for children who were -- the children of parents 2 exposed to given gonadal doses. 3 The gonadal dose is on the X-axis in this 4 graph, and that's usual, the dosage is on the X-axis. 5 So that, for instance, just for purposes of reference, 6 NIC means "Not intcity." That meant that there was no evi-7 dence that they were exposed to the A-bomb. 8 D.C. This is the first control group that you're 9 0. WASHINGTON. 10 referring to? This is the control group. 11 A. Then you get to groups where you have zero S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING. 12 to nine rem for one parent or the other --13 I'm familiar with your graph. What is your 14 0. 15 point? A. Well, the point is that as you go up -- you 16 know, the X-axis is a scale which goes up. As the scale 7TH STREET. 17 changes. the Y-axis shows the effect of the response --18 in this case the deaths at -- under 21. 19 300 For instance, in this case the control is 20 somewhere around six -- a little more than six, and in the 21 case of the subgroup where both parents were exposed, it 22 goes up to around seven. 23 Now, a general dosage response curve may have 24 different X-axis labels or Y-axis labels, but the X-axis 25

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

1435

20024 (202) 554-2345

		1436
	1	label is a dosage of some kind measured some way, and
	2	the Y-axis is a health effect for my testimony at
	3	least, as measured here it's percent mortality. But it
)	4	could be the risk of lung cancer, as in Portsmouth Naval
345	5	Shipyard data, or some other variable that would go up
) 554-2	6	with dosage or would be related to dosage.
4 (202	7	So, in other words, it specifies a relation-
. 2002	8	ship. And the reason I say dosage response curve rather
N, D.C	9	than line
INGTO	10	Q Is it your opinion
WASH	11	A is it's
DING,	12	Q. I'm sorry. Is it your opinion that the Ports-
BUILI	73	mouth Naval Shipyard data shows this demonstrates this,
n FRS	14	that at higher doses it drops off?
REPOI	15	A. The Portsmouth Naval Shipyard data is
S.W. ,	16	does not actually go down. Actually here I would prefer
REET,	17	to say
TH ST	18	Q. You say it does not?
300 7	19	A. It doesn't go up, rather than say flatly
	20	it goes down, because the confidence intervals tend to be
	21	somewhat overlapping here.
	22	But there is no evidence of the linear re-
	23	lationship that is the basis for all of the calculations
	24	that are made by the generally by the Radiation
	25	Protection Community, and in this specific case for

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

18

1

Waterford 3.

2 Q. Did the Tri-State data demonstrate that it
3 tailed off at higher doses?
4 A. No, actually it doesn't show a tailing off.

1437

A. No, actually it doesn't show a tailing off.
5 It doesn't increase very much, though.

6 The -- What's probably happening is it's 7 quite relatively flat, as far as can be judged by the 8 data. In other words, what isn't the case is that it's 9 going up linearly. That you can say.

What is the case is a little harder to say.
II It could be just leveling off, or it could be actually
going down. It may not actually go down until you get to
higher doses than we have in the study.

14 Although in this case, the Japanese data, 15 it's not shown in this particular --

16 Q. So the Japanese data, in your view, has shown 17 that effect --

A. The Japanese data showed --

19 Q. -- while the Tri-State data did not demon-20 strate it?

A. Well, most of the data I'm talking about,
the upper limit of the actual exposures tends to be around
10 rem. There are occasionally cases higher, but the bulk
of the series will be inside that level, because that's
what I'm talking about -- lower level radiation or

diagnostic x-rays, generally speaking, in that lower
 range. And nuclear radiation, for that matter, at Ports mouth, too, is mostly under 10 rem.

1438

So you don't have a clear sharp body of data out where maybe you'd like to see it, exactly like 50 rem, or .5 rem. So you can't be -- I don't want to sound too cocksure about what the actual point of turnaround is. And all I would prefer to say is it goes up for a while at very low doses and then seems to level off somewhere around 10 rem.

Q. Are you familiar with the term "Gy" symbol?A. No.

Q. How about Sb?

A. That was "Gy" you said?

Q. Yes.

A. I don't ... It doesn't ring a bell.
Q. Are you familiar at all with the current
doses which are used in the treatment of cancers?

19 A. In the treatment of cancer? To some extent.
20 That's not my primary area of interest.

In the treatment of cancer, the doses, of course, are completely different from what we're talking about. In the studies that I've conducted, or been responsible for the data management, the use of 5000 rads or more is not all that unusual.

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

6-7

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

24

25

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

That's completely out of the range we've

1439

been talking about entirely.

Q. And completely out of the range of doses which you have studied?

A. Well, see, I mentioned that -- These are doses in studies that I've run involving therapeutic effects, but not here looking at the other effects.

In other words, when you're giving doses of 5000 rads, your object is to destroy the tumor cells --I mean really destroy them, and prevent the cells from reproducing and so forth.

So you are creating a situation that's way beyond the kind of -- It's done by genetic damage and not frying the cells. But you're producing such a heavy amount of genetic damage in the DNA that, you know, nothing is viable.

17 That's how these things work at that very 18 high dose. But that, you know, is the therapeutic applica-19 tion of radiation technology. And the kinds of things 20 that we're talking about, presumably, do not get --21 well, you couldn't get health effects so easily from cells 22 that got that kind of dosage -- not from those cells 23 themselves.

I mean, they're dead.

Q. Have you ever been involved in any clinical

work of this type?

0.

A. Well, I am Director of Biostatistics at Ros well Park.

Right.

A Since 1959 when the very first collaborative clinical cancer research work started in solid tumors, I was involved in the studies. They were in my department, centralized in my department and managed by my department, and at the present time what sort of the -- you might say, second or third generation of that, is still in my department for the genitalogical group that is studying, among other things, high doses of x-rays for the treatment of genitalogical cancer.

So in that sense, I've had involvement there. And, of course, my involvement with clinical studies generally goes back to Sloan-Kettering where I did the very first study ever done in this country -- first collaborative clinical trial ever done in this country on leukemia, which was involved around -- sometime in the early fifties, 1953 or 1954, I think -- under way.

21 So I've been involved in clinical studies
22 rather deeply for -- since '50 or -- 1950 or so.

Q Do you have a number of doctors, that is,
M.D.'s who work for you as head of Biostatistics -A No, no.

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

1440

16-9

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

	-		-	n	
	6.	-		63	
E. 1	D	_	1.0	U	

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

Q -- who do this clinical work for you?
 A. No. Doctors don't work that way. They don't take orders from a--

1441

0. I may have misunderstood --

A -- non-physician. That's just not done.
I mean, I guess -- Let me clarify that point.

Q. Please.

A. There is a statistical unit -- Doctors treat the patients. I don't go near patients to treat them, of course. It would be criminal and fatal for the patient, I suspect.

But in any case, I don't have hands-on -any hands-on contact, of course, with patients. In fact, it would be somewhat illegal for a person with my background and training as a statistician to have this kind of operational involvement with an actual patient being treated.

18 The doctors are a collaborative study. They 19 run themselves -- and the statistical section keeps asking 20 them for data -- getting their data most of the time, or 21 trying to get it, and then centralizing it at Roswell 22 Park -- or there are a lot of collaborative studies in 23 this country besides the ones at Roswell.

24 And then these data are analyzed statistically 25 to see what, if anything, the treatments they're being

given contribute to the survivorship of the patient. That's an entirely -- of course, I don't want to confuse the issue here at all. That's totally un-related, therapeutically -- therapeutic studies are not related to the studies that I've been talking about. 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 You can see them in my bibliography, but they're --you know, I'm not brining those in as evidence that I'm clinically oriented or -- you know, doctoring.

6-11

T

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

Q. You state in your response to Question No. 16, there are, and you have it in quotes, "indicator diseases."

Are the indicator diseases that you're talking about those which you've enumerated in that answer, in your opinion? That is, asthma --

A. Yes, these are typical.

Just for the record, I could clarify one point. From time to time, we made minor changes in that list, because we felt we had more, stronger indicators, but that's essentially the list that we used in the study. Q. Dr. Bross, you've been very careful to point out that you have no involvement in clinical work, and that you have no background in the medical sciences, and that you're not involved in treating or diagnosing patients.

What is it that qualifies you to describe these particular diseases as indicator diseases? A. Well, let me explain what the word means and then I think that this will be clarified.

20 When we first looked at the Tristate Survey 21 data, which is extremely rich data, which has something 22 like 150 different fields, kinds of information in the 23 question schedule so that it's extremely complex and 24 detailed data, we were looking for factors other than 25 radiation itself, per se, you know, which might be

	1	involved in leukemia, which might clarify the situation
, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345	2	as far as leukemia.
	3	Q. Excuse me just for a second.
	4	Who is "we" at this point?
	5	A. I think what we have sort of forgotten, if I
	6	refer back to my earlier testimony, when I became the
	7	director of biostatistics and the acting head of
	8	epidemiology for seven years and had responsibility for the
	9	Tristate Survey data, at that point we actively began a
90 IV	10	re-analysis of the data which had only been partially
ASHIN	11	analyzed.
UILDING, W	12	Q. Who is "we"?
	13	A. This is, at that point, both the members of
ERS	14	the Biostatistics Department and myself, and the remaining
EPORI	15	members of the Epidemiology Department.
W R	16	Saxon Graham had taken off for the State
SET, S	17	University of Buffalo with some of the data, and
A STRU	18	Mort Levin had gone down to Hawkins, and so I got, as it
00 7LI	19	were, the responsibility for doing something with this
×.	20	department and with this data.
	21	So "we" refers to the staff I had at that
	22	time.
	23	Q. Pardon?
	24	A. It refers to myself and my staff of the
	25	Biostatistics and then Epidemiology Departments.

.

.

-

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

7-3		0. It refers to statisticians who worked for you
-		P re rereis co scattscrotans who worked for you
•	2	at Roswell Park at the time?
	3	A. Well, actually, around that time I got a
•	4	, grant from the National Cancer Institute for a study of
345	5	biometric methods in cancer research and I added extensively
554-2	6	to my staff at that point. I would say they were
(202)	7	statisticians and epidemiologists, but there was also a
20024	8	physician.
, D.C.	9	Q. On your staff?
IGTON	10	A. Yes.
ASHIN	11	Q. So doctors do work for you?
ING, W	12	A. Well, let put you have me in a
	13	contradiction, but it's not really a contradiction.
LERS I	14	Q. No, I'm sure.
tEPOR	15	A. The problem is, he was an Italian physician
. W. F	16	and he had an Italian M.D., but an Italian M.D. is no
EET, S	17	good in this country. So he could not practice clinical
H STR	18	medicine.
17 00i	19	So he was interested in epidemiology and he
	20	worked for me. Under ordinary circumstances, unless a
	21	doctor you know, if a doctor isn't in practice, that
•	22	might happen, but that doesn't happen ordinarily.
•	23	It's a special situation.
	24	Q. So it was statisticians and epidemiologists
•	25	who were working for you at the time that you're now

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

17-4 , referring to?

5

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

24

25

A. Yas, and this physician, Dr. Viadana, who is
now in, I think, Milano, in the Epidemiology Department
there. I can't quite recall.

1446

Q. Go ahead, please.

A. Well, that's the other member, the medical
7 member of the department.

8 Of course, I had available to me as a member 9 of an institute, Roswell Park Memorial Institute, the 10 option of talking to persons from the staff on any of these 11 guestions.

For instance, in my bibliography, there's a
whole series of papers on pathology, which were done
by Viadana and myself and the chief of pathology,
Dr. Pickford.

16 I'm not a pathologist, but Dr. Viadana knows
17 a lot about it, and Pickford, of course, is the head of
18 the department.

19 So I would work that way. I would get the 20 information from persons who were knowledgeable. I don't 21 claim or want to appear to claim to be knowledgeable in 22 all areas, but I just get the information I need for my 23 operation from persons who know what they're doing.

Q. Let me see if I understand.

When you first started using the term

		"i distantion distances " the term use developed by individuals
5	1	"indicator diseases," the term was developed by individuals
)	2	who worked for you at Roswell Park?
	3	A. Actually, this work was work that I did with
	4	Dr. Viadana.
554-2345	5	Q. With whom?
	6	A. Dr. Viadana.
1 (202)	7	Q. Dr. Viadana, the Italian doctor
2002	8	A. Yes, he is the Italian physician
N, D.C	9	Q whom you were talking is now in Milan?
VASHINGTON	10	A. Henry Viadana.
	-11	JUDGE WOLFE: Just a moment now. Here we
ING, V	12	go ahead.
FERS BUILD	13	THE WITNESS: Sorry.
	14	JUDGE WOLFE: One at a time, please.
REPOR	15	BY MR. BLAKE:
S.W. 1	16	Q. Is Dr. Viadana the Italian doctor of whom
LEET,	17	you were earlier talking who is now in Milan?
H STF	18	A. Yes, and we were at this point trying to find
300 77	19	predictors that might tell us something about when
v	20	leukemia might be more likely, and that was the reason
	21	for the name "indicator diseases."
	22	Now, we screened a very large number of
	23	diseases looking for ones which might give us some kind
	24	of a prediction on when a patient when a child would
	25	get leukemia.

1447

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

The diseases that came out of this study, which was, incidentally, also done for adults, and the adult study was also with Dr. Viadana in this case, where we could find certain disease conditions reported in the medical history of the case prior to the occurrence of leukemia.

1448

In fact, usually more than three years or five years prior to the occurrence of the clinical diagnoses of leukemia.

So we are not talking about pre-leukemic diseases. We're talking about diseases that occurred in the most cases substantially before the occurrence of the leukemia.

Now, the interesting thing that developed there and one that's very important from the standpoint of determining health risks, since you have made a point about indicator diseases (it's an important point), that, as it says, there's a much higher risk of developing leukemia.

Now, the reasons why this would happen, why there would be these kind of predictors, would go back to the kind of function () DNA that I was referring to.

That is to say, if you have genetic damage in the DNA that's cloned and reproduced in the child or adult, then you have a population of cells which carry

1 misinformation.

Now, these cells may be in the host defense
system. For instance, blood-forming cells.

If that's the case and they are carrying misinformation, then the ordinary processes that would occur -- for instance, the feedback mechanism that stops the production of white blood cells when the need has vanished. You need something to start up the production if there's an infection or something, and then you need to shut it off.

Now, the shut off of the machinery would be presumably handled through an enzyme system, although we don't know all the details of that system.

Now, the point about indicator diseases is the same genetic damage that has produced these diseases, which generally speaking represent failures of the body's host defense system to react effectively, can also be producing the leukemia itself; or in the case of adults, the diseases like heart disease, which we reported earlier, can be early manifestations which are going to reflect the same genetic damage or similar genetic damage to what is actually producing the subsequent leukemia in the adult.

Now that means that the co-occurrence of diseases is very important to our understanding. It means probably that there's pre-existing genotic damage

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

000 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

17-7

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

of these groups that are very much more prone to get 1 leukemia under conditions where they are radiated. 2 I think it is important to understand why 3 the health effects of low-level radiation have been 4 so badly misunderstood in recent years.

The whole population, as it were, is not entirely vulnerable. It is only that fraction which probably had some pre-existing genetic damage which can be added to by the radiation.

1450

So this is very pertinent to this particular discussion, and the indicator diseases allow us to get a much better handle on the dosage response curve.

13 For instance, they give a very clear dosage 14 response curve for the Tristate Survey in the paper in 15 the "American Journal of Public Health," and in the paper 16 in the "Journal of American Medical Association," and 17 also the one in "Investigative Radiology," and other 18 papers on the children.

19 These do not show with the kind of growth 20 statistical analysis that have been done earlier and which 21 people generally do.

22 It was a sophisticated statistical analysis 23 that brought these facts out, but it was the scientific 24 basis for that analysis, the co-occurrence of diseases 25 from the genetic damage produced that allows the statistics,

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

17 - 8

17 9 1

(202) 554-2345

20024

D.C.

REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON,

300 7TH STREET, S.W.

2

as it were, to work.

indicator diseases are, but we do feel it's a very 3 important aspect, because in order to protect the 4 population you have to protect, as it were, the weakest 5 members of the population; that is to say the most 6 vulnerable people. 7 I understand that this definition was 8 0 9 derived now based on your answer in about the '66 time frame? It was done by --10 11 Close to '66, but I think it was a few years A. 12 after that maybe. 13 '66 or a few years after, it was arrived at 0. 14 without the involvement of any licensed physicians; is 15 that correct? 16 Were there any M.D.'s involved --17 Well, I believe you are talking about a A. 18 physician with an American medical license when you say 19 "licensed physician"? 20 -- in this, other than your Italian doctor? 0. 21 That's correct. Any physician licensed in 22 this country who was involved in your definition of 23 indicator diseases? 24 A. No. It was with Henry Viadana that I was 25 working.

That's a little long explanation for what the

1451

17-10	1	He didn't have an American license, but he
	2	was a good doctor.
	3	Q. I see, and what are your qualifications to
•	4	judge that?
345	5	A. Well, he went on later to actually get a
554.2	6	training in pathology and do very successfully before he
(202)	7	went back in epidemiology, so I think he was a very good
20024	8	man.
L D.C	, 9	Q. How did you generate your understanding of
VOT ON	10	the medical terms which you used in describing indicator
ASHID	11	diseases?
NG, W	12	A. I'm trying to get the thrust of your
Intro	13	question. You mean how did I know what an allergy was?
ERS H	14	Q. Sure.
EPORT	15	A. Something like that. Is that what you are
.W., R	16	Q. And genetic damage, which you referred to,
EET, S	17	and host defense system, which you've referred to, each one
H STRI	18	of which we're going to go through with you.
00 771	19	I'm trying first to find out where you come
	20	by your knowledge, since you've taken no courses in the
	21	subject.
-	22	A. Well, of course, you know, I've been in the
•	23	medical environment since 1949 at John Hopkins for three
-	24	years, where I gave courses, and Cornell University
•	25	Medical College, where I taught in the Medical School,

17-11 and --1

4

5

6

D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON,

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

You taught medical courses at either Hopkins 2 Q. or Cornell? 3

No, no. Of course it's in the area of A. statistics and epidemiology.

And at Sloan-Kettering Institute, where I've worked with a lot of persons who were physicians, like 7 Dr. Winder I mentioned, and quite a few other persons at 8 9 Sloan-Kettering.

10 And, of course, I worked at Roswell with 11 physicians, Tom Dowl, breast surgery, or John Pickering 12 who is a pathologist, or people who are experts in a 13 particular area or doing a study in a particular area 14 that I have to get involved with.

15 In other words, I've learned enough 16 vocabulary to be able to talk to the people, and you 17 are talking about, essentially, vocabulary.

Basically, you know, I learned it from their usage of the words, how the words are used.

BY MR. BLAKE:

18-1

bm

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

25

D.C. 20024 (202) 554 2345

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON,

Q Would you say that your understanding of the vocabulary, as you've referred to it -- with respect to terms like "host defense system" or "infectious diseases" or "indicator diseases," or "genetic damage" are similar in level of knowledge to your knowledge of DNA?

1454

A. Well, if you're referring to the function of DNA, of course, I feel I have sufficient knowledge. If you're referring to the names, defining what DNA letters stand for, or what exactly the symptoms for pneumonia or something of this sort are, the answer is: I don't have that kind of medical knowledge.

And it is, in my view, sufficient for me to know that somebody who does have this kind of information, you know, has said this person has such and such, like leukemia.

I could not diagnose leukemia. I would not attempt to diagnose leukemia. It's a very difficult task.

The data in the leukemia registry that was used in the Tri-State Survey was generated by licensed physicians, giving diagnoses of leukemia, who were reviewed by licensed physicians, who concurred with those diagnoses.

So in dealing with a problem, as you may have

know, there are certain things which I accept from coworkers or from persons who are working in the area that is involved in the study, and is not, you know, my province.

You would not attempt -- I think you just 0. 6 said -- to diagnose leukemia. Would you attempt to define 7 leukemia? 8

A. Well, defining it is -- you know, my position 9 on definitions is one you have not encountered before, be-10 cause I'm also -- as you may have noticed in some of the 11 papers -- involved with linguistics. 12

And in my view, words mean what the users of 13 the words -- how they use them. That's what determines 14 what the words mean. 15

So formal definitions are, to my way of 16 17 thinking, not informative in most cases. And the way in which -- if I could communicate -- the problem is com-18 munication. And I can communicate 1 have a reasonably 19 good idea of what a doctor mean and leukemia, or a doctor 20 21 means by mylemoid leukemia, even is I'm not personally 22 capable of making a differential diagnosis.

23 So you're not prepared either to diagnose a 24 leukemia, nor to define what leukemia is -- its beginnings, 25 its ends, what it is?

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

4

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

A. I can describe the leukemia process, and the reason I can do that is a little different from anything we've talked about.

I've indicated from time to time that I have been interested in mathematical models -- mathematical systems for prediction, which are -- however, in my view there are certain requirements for mathematical models which completely distinguish them from what I have referred to as Mickey Mouse arithmetic.

A mathematical model must be thoroughly tested before you put credence in it. Now, we have -in conjunction with my colleague, Dr. Bloominson of my department -- who is still in my department --

14 0. I'm sorry. I didn't catch, I didn't hear -15 A. Dr. Leslie Bloominson, who is in my department,
16 developed various theoretical models and tested these
17 models against the actual data for a variety of con18 ditions.

19 Now, one of the models involved here -20 involves the system in the white cell development in the
21 human body. And this is a mathematical model of how
22 white cells are called -- how you generate more white
23 cells when you need them in infection and so forth.
24 They --

25 Q I'm sorry. I still didn't hear it. How

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

0

10

you generate more white cells --

A. When a person gets an infection, they need to have something to counter the infection. This is a host defense system. You know, this is what keeps us alive.

The host defense system involves the blood system -- parts of it. There are other parts of the hose defense system. The white cells are involved in protecting the human being from dying from the effects of infection. And to do that you generate more white cells

11 until the infection is over. Then you shut them off, so 12 that there is a feedback machinery that operates in this 13 system.

The way in which I got involved is this is -since you have asked about the clinical side -- Our
studies of chemotherapeutic agents led us to this because
the chemotherapeutic agents for cancer, generally speaking, have the effect of producing profound depression
in the white cell count.

And in order to understand what was happening to patients who were receiving very heavy doses of drugs and to try to develop a dosage schedule which would avoid putting patients in critical conditions by getting their white count too low, we developed a mathematical model for the hemostatic system, which had that function.

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

Now, this isn't just a verbal model. This is completely 2 developed and, in fact, computerized model -- that will 3 describe the process that will lead to leukemia if you 4 say somewhere the feedback mechanism fails. 5 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 And then, instead of the white cells coming 6 back down like they should after challenge -- actually 7 what happens, I guess I should say, is that the white 8 cells go down to a very low level. And that triggers 9 the development of more white cells. 10 But it overshoots in the model and in the 11 real world. And something has to cut off that overshoot 12 13

1

14

15

at some point. But it doesn't come in at the right time and the right way. So, therefore, the persons have this imperfection.

Now, that model can serve also as a model --

1458

This is, as far as I'm concerned, a process 16 explanation for leukemia. 17

Now, I regard this as a more adequate ex-18 19 planation of what goes on in the disease for present purposes, because the failure of the feedback is directly 20 related probably to some inadequacy in the informational 21 system in the genetic structure. 22

23 Therefore, this is the kind of information 24 about leukemia which is pertinent to this hearing, although 25 it's not pertinent to treating a patient necessarily.

4	.4	5	a
	· • •	0	3

	1	Q. And the gentleman who described this		
	2	developed this is a statistician or epidemiologist?		
	3	A. Well, actually he was originally a mathe-		
	4	matical biologist.		
45	5	Q. He is not a medical doctor or clinically		
554-23	6	trained?		
(202)	7	A. No, I've indicated that my department as such		
20024	8	consisted of persons, with the exception of Dr. Viadana,		
D.C.	9	who were from mathematics or computers, or for epi-		
GTON	10	demiology or biostatistics or persons who are involved		
ASHIN	11	in doing studies of this kind.		
NG, W	12	Q. Are you aware that the medical community		
IULDI	13	or in the medical community there is a thesis that the		
ERS B	14	diseases which you have identified as indicator diseases		
PORT	15	are actually pre-leukemic; that is, the initial stages		
W. , RF	16	of leukemia?		
ET, S.	17	A. Well		
STRE	18	Q. Are you aware? Yes or no.		
0 7TH	19	A. I am aware of this, and I have commented		
30	20	earlier on this specifically. You may not remember my		
	21 testimony.			
	22	Let me remind you: I said specifically		
	23	that		
	24	Q. Are you aware		
	25	A this was the case, that the		

18-6

MR. BLAKE: Judge Wolfe --JUDGE WOLFE: Yes.

MR. BLAKE: May I continue to ask questions, 3 please, of the witness? There will be an opportunity for 4 redirect to the extent counsel doesn't think I give the 5 witness an opportunity to sufficiently expand on his 6 answers. 7 Quite frankly, I think I've been overly 8 generous, at least to date. 9 JUDGE WOLFE: I will let the witness finish 10 his answer. 11 THE WITNESS: Well, the reason I felt I could 12 answer this is because I had mentioned in advance the 13 timing of the occurrence of these indicator diseases and 14 of the leukemia, indicating that there was a substantial 15 time period of three or more years -- generally five 16 years -- between the occurrence of the indicator diseases 17 and the occurrence of the leukemia. 18 Now, pre-leukemic diseases are not unknown. 19 That is to say, there are diseases which are somewhat like 20 leukemia that occur prior to leukemia. But this is pre-21 22 leukemic. 23 That is to say, within a year or a year and 24 a half, something like that. Three years. -- of the 25 diagnosis of leukemia.

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

1

2
- 8	1	So, therefore, I'm perfectly aware that
•	2	the medical community, as he puts it, have raised this
	3	as an issue. It is a false issue, and I have already
0	4	taken care of it.
	ş 5	JUDGE WOLFE: All right. Doctor, when counsel
	554-23 9	asks you a question, answer it directly. If you have
	(202)	been asked what you think is the same question before
	20024 8	and you have given an answer that you think has been to
	, D.C.	your mind satisfactory, nevertheless, you must answer the
	NOT 10	question, absent objection by opposing counsel.
	AIHSA/	So just answer the question. Answer it maybe
	6, 12	five times over, unless I step in or opposing counsel
•	13	steps in your counsel, I should say.
-	1 SH31	All right.
	NO431	THE WITNESS: Well, I would like to
	16	apologize if I misspoke. It's a natural reaction, and I
	17 17	will try to curb it.
	H IS	JUDGE WOLFE: It's all right.
	LL 19	Yes.
	20	MR. JONES: Your Honor, if I might suggest,
	21	in view of the fact that we've been proceeding for some-
•	22	thing over an hour and a half at this point, I'd like to
-	23	move for a brief recess.
•	24	JUDGE WOLFE: All right. We'll recess until
	25	five minutes of four.
	88.5	(A short recess was taken.)
		ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

1461

-	100			
- 10	C1	-		
	-9	-		
	. er 1		-	

3

4

5

6

7

9

10

11

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

00 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

JUDGE WOLFE: All right.

BY MR. BLAKE: 2

Dr. Bross, let me re-establish where we were Q. prior to Mr. Jones asking for the break.

1462

At that point, as I understood your testimony, it was that the concept of indicator disease had been developed by you and statisticians who worked for 8 you in concert with an Italian doctor not licensed in this country, who was also involved in the concept in the time frame '66 or shortly thereafter; but that no members of the medical community in this country were 12 involved in it.

Is that correct?

In the development of the set of diseases A. that was listed as indicator diseases, the criteria were statistical criteria for prediction, and this is a mathematical process rather than a medical process, to see what predicts what.

And you've agreed with me that generally 0. members of the medical community in this country regard these diseases as pre-leukemic, rather --

> I certainly did not agree with you. A. I'm sorry. 0.

I thought we -- I'm sorry, too, because I A. thought we had straightened that out with the extra

19-2 | discussion that we had.

No, the medical community as a whole, which I won't speak for, which I don't know anyone who can speak for, so far as I know does not have a firm opinion as to what the indicator diseases are. So there's no reason to think that all diseases that are listed here are going to be called pre-leukemic.

Q. In other words, you and the group, your group, identified these diseases as indicator diseases, but some members of the medical community regard them as actually pre-leukemic, that is, the initial stages of leukemia? Would you agree with that?

A. No. The situation is that there is something
14 called pre-leukemic disease. That's an entity.

Q. That's a what?

A. That's an entity. In other words, the term "pre-leukemic disease" refers now to a class of diseases, or symptoms really, symptom paths or syndromes.

These are an entity are by themselves, okay?

21 Now, the list of diseases that I have given 22 here for the indicator diseases are other disease entities, 23 which doctors would not identify. They are other 24 diseases, and whether some persons have claimed or not 25 that these are pre-leukemic diseases is determined by the

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, 300 7TH STREET.

8

9

10

11

12

15

16

17

18

19

		1464
19-3	1	time frame and not by medical opinion.
•	2	But pre-leukemic diseases, they immediately
	3	predate the diagnosis of leukemia.
2345	4	Q. I see, so you are quarreling with my use of
	5	the term "pre-leukemic disease"?
) 554-2	6	That is, a pre-leukemic disease in your
4 (202	7	opinion is one which immediately precedes the onset of
2002	8	clinically observable leukemia?
N, D.C	9	A. That's a currentusage of the word, yes, as
NGTO	10	far as I know.
WASHI	11	Q. Would you characterize pre-leukemic as a
, DNIG	12	medical expression or an expression of statistics?
BUILT	13	A. Well, the condition refers to somewhat vague
TERS	14	complaints that may or may not be diagnosed as pre-leukemic
REPOR	15	at the time, but maybe post hoc
S.W. ,	16	Q. Would you
teet,	17	A are considered pre-leukemic.
TH STH	18	In other words, it's the time frame very
300 71	19	often that determines what you call pre-leukemic.
	20	If leukemia didn't occur, they wouldn't
	21	call it pre-leukemic.
•	22	Q. Would you characterize the term "pre-leukemic"
-	23	as a medical term or as a term of statistics?
•	24	A. The language here of all the diseases is
	25	medical, so

		1465
9-4	1	Q. Including the term
•	2	A this is a medical term.
	3	Q. Including the term "pre-leukemic"?
•	4	A. Right. All the diseases, this is part of the
2345	5	vocabulary of a physician. It's not part of the
0.554-5	6	vocabulary of a statistician, unless he's dealing with
4 (202	7	medical problems and has some sort of joint vocabulary
2002	8	for communication.
N. D.C	9	Q. If a doctor or several doctors or a class of
NGTO	10	doctors refers to these diseases as pre-leukemic, would
WASHI	11	you quarrel with their characterization?
OLNG,	12	A. I indicated to you that in order for
BUILT	13	something to be pre-leukemic, there's a time frame
TERS	14	involved.
REPOR	15	Pre-leukemic means prior to leukemia.
S.W	16	Now, if it's shortly prior to leukemia, under
REET,	17	ordinary usage; we're talking about diseases that are
TH STI	18	back five years or ten years, and if someone calls them
300 7	19	pre-leukemic, he's simply not using the term correctly.
	20	Q. You've referred elsewhere in your testimony,
	21	Dr. Bross, to a cloning
•	22	A. Yes.
	23	Q theory, and a period of 32 doubling times.
•	24	What time frame would you associate with
	25	that period, that is, closing of 32 times, that it might

1 take?

19-5

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

A. Well, these estimates vary somewhat with the
condition, but for the solid tumors, for the tumors which
would require, for instance, 32 doubling times to become
somewhat palpable or detectable, the period would be
roughly of the order -- each doubling time would take
about a half year.
8 So we are talking about the 32, about 15.

9 or 16 years, that sort of time frame.

10 Q. And at what point in this doubling would you 11 refer to -- at what point in this extended number of 12 years would, in your opinion, the tumor actually exist? 13 A. Well, that is a sort of semantically tricky 14 question.

In one sense, when the initial damage is produced and the cloning starts, the process starts.

17 In another sense, nothing is going to be 18 picked up medically until it becomes large enough to 19 produce some kind of effect on the host.

This means that -- It becomes a diagnosed tumor at, say, something of the order of 32 doubling times, or it could be more, because they can be missed for a while and can be 34 or 35.

In other words, at some time after 32 it becomes detectable, and it can be called clinically a

19-6 1 tumor or a cancer.

4

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

Would you say, Dr. Bross, that with regard 2 0. to the tumor that we've been talking about, that it didn't 3 exist until it was detectable; that is, until it was at the 32 cloning period? 5

1467

Well, that's why I said you are raising a A. semantic point, because it's a continuous process, and the fact that the tumor is discovered, the first time it's discovered it becomes a clinically discovered tumor, that people would, say, speak of it as a tumor, but it existed prior to that.

Doctors refer in the ordinary usage to the period prior to the actual detection as tumor. It doesn't change from one thing to another at detection.

For instance, specifically, mammography is basically -- the object of mammography is an attempt to get the tumor detected before it has metastasized, that is, spread throughout a given area or the body.

19 Therefore, people would talk about the tumor 20 as existent in the person before it was actually found. 21 They would say it was discovered on mammography, say, but 22 they don't regard it as coming into existence at that 23 point, because in order to be discovered it has to be 24 pretty large to be picked up by the mammogram as a shadow. 25 The reason we are talking about these numbers,

1	like doubling times, is because you have to have a certain
2	mass in order to detect by palpation or another detection
3	system.
4	Q. Wouldn't you say, regardless of whether or
5	not it was detectable, that the tumor in fact existed
6	many years prior to the time that it was detectable?
7	A. Well, as I say, if you take that line, you
8	could say it started it goes all the way back to the
9	time the cloning starts.
10	Q. Well, let me analogize back to leukemia.
11	A. Yeah. Here we've been talking
12	Q. At some point in time leukemia is clinically
13	observable and identifiable as leukemia.
14	Does it take some time for leukemia to develop
15	to a clinically observable and identifiable stage?
16	A. Yes.
17	Q. And during the period of time of its
18	development to that stage, could there be in fact preceding
19	stages which are evidenced by other symptoms in the human
20	body?
21	A. Well, you have presumably a pathology
22	developing and there could be symptoms which would not be
23	recognized as leukemia directly, and which would be called
24	pre-leukemic.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

25

1468

However, the detection -- you have to have a

20024 (202) 554-2345

D.C.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON,

25

6

certain point before it would be probably diagnosed 1 thoroughly as leukemia. 2

Is that period until the time when it would 0. 3 be observed or identified as leukemia, could that consume 4 some period of years? 5

1469

Probably not. It has to have a certain -- in Α. other words, the way in which the situation for leukemia 7 comes to light is a little different than for solid 8 tumors, and the effect is that you have to have a 9 reasonably large -- the reason you need cloning is you 10 need a reasonably large cell population that has the 11 misinformation in it in order to have a clinically 12 13 detectable effect.

So you could have effects showing up shortly 14 prior to the time that you might be able to detect it as 15 16 leukemia, and this would be your pre-leukemia.

17 But that would be in the time frame I 18 mentioned.

19 Q. Dr. Bross, is it your opinion that from the 20 initiation or onset of leukemia, observable or identifiable 21 or not, until the point in time when it is clinically 22 detectable or observable, that period of time is very 23 short?

24 For leukemia? A.

> Yes, sir. Q.

1

2

3

4

5

6

8

9

We're talking about probably doubling or A. latent periods running maybe seven, fifteen, twenty years. In some cases leukemic doubling times are

1470

such that the disease is not manifest until maybe twenty years.

In other words, the cloning has to go on. The doubling time is a convenient way of describing the 7 process of how it's going, but in any of these processes, we're dealing with biological processes, they don't necessarily run in the simple way that physical processes run.

In other words, the process may be checked temporarily by one means or another so that -- you know, it isn't automatically that it's going to come at a particular time, 15 years or whatever. There's a range.

Q. So in fact, you would agree that with respect to leukemia, the pre-leukemic stages, albeit not yet clinically observable and identifiable as leukemia, may involve periods of years?

> Well, a year or two, as I indicated. A. 0. I thought you just said seven years? A. No, no. The latent period is seven years.

23 In other words, if you go all the way back, not 24 to the time when you can pick up any kind of symptoms, but 25 to the time when the process starts with presumably a

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

18

19

20

21

		1471
-10	1	misinformation in the DNA, that point in time is seven
Ď	2	years.
	3	The pre-leukemic doesn't start then. You
	4	still have to have, even before you get clear symptoms,
345	5	you know, some fair amount of the cloning.
4 (202) 554-2	6	The cloning has to be fairly substantial
	7	before it can affect the whole organism.
2002	8	
N, D.C	9	
NGTO	10	
WASHL	11	
JING,	12	
BUILI	13	
TERS	14	
REPOR	;5	
S.W	16	
REET,	17	
TH STI	18	
300 7	19	
	20	
	21	
	22	
	23	
	24	
	25	

DI MR. DUARD		2	
--------------	--	---	--

Α.

Q. But you would not refer to that entire 2 period from the initial onset or initiation as pre-leukemic? 3

No.

At what point in the cloning would you start 5 referring to it as pre-leukemic, Dr. Bross? 6

Well, as I indicated -- but I will repeat, A. 7 as the Judges have asked me to -- that the period of 8 time could be most likely a year, year and a half or 9 two years -- something of that order of magnitude.

And that when we're dealing with conditions 11 which occurred five years earlier or seven years earlier, 12 this isn't what we're talking about. 13

And in children you'd say a period of a year 0. 14 and a half or two years, but not five years, that you might 15 see pre-leukemic conditions? 16

I believe that would be in conformity with 17 Α. 18 ordinary usage of the medical profession of the word "pre-leukemic." 19

20 Your testimony is that the indicator diseases 0. are not pre-leukemic, but that if you have such a disease 21 22 and have been subjected to irradiation, for example, in 23 utero, then you may be more susceptible to leukemia? IS 24 that a correct --

Well, you've got the time frame a little A.

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

20-1

nic

q

1

4

10

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

1	twisted here.	
2	Q	I see.
3		If you had
4	А.	The indicator diseases come after the
5	٩	Let me finish and see if I
6		If you have exhibited an indicator disease
7	and then are	subjected to some level of radiation, it is
8	more likely t	that you will develop leukemia than one
9	than an indiv	vidual who is also subjected to that same
10	amount of rad	liation, but who has not exhibited symptoms
11	of the indica	ator disease. Is that correct?
12	А.	No.
13		Let me try to clarify the point
14	۵	No, let me try one more time. In your
15	application o	of the term "indicator disease," is identi-
16	fication of t	the indicator disease necessary prior to
17	the point in	time when a radiation dose is provided to an
18	individual?	
19	Α.	No, please let me clarify this.
20	۵.	Please. Go ahead.
21	Α.	The point about this is that the radiation
22	is delivered	substantially earlier. In other words, let's
23	say it's in u	tero radiation that's involved. And the
24	indicator dis	eases may be a reflection of a reaction to

1473

25 that condition.

		[2019] 16 24 24 25 27 27 27 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20
0-3	1	But it is not we're studying children who
•	2	were irradiated after they had the indicator diseases.
	3	That's not the I don't know whether it's clear now.
•	4	Q I thought that's what I had said initially.
45	5	Let me see if I now understand it correctly.
554-23	6	Is it your position that given a certain number
(202)	7	of individuals who have been irradiated in utero, who are
20024	8	not in fact conceived, born some of whom exhibit
l, D.C.	9	symptoms which you've referred to of indicator diseases,
VGTON	10	it is your opinion that those individuals who exhibit the
(ASHIP	11	indicator disease symptoms will later have a greater
ING, W	12	probability of developing clinically observable leukemia?
	13	A. Yes.
TERS	14	Q than will those who have not exhibited
LEPOR	15	the disease symptoms?
ŝ.W., B	16	A. Right.
EET, S	17	Q. Would that naturally follow if, in fact, the
H STR	18	disease symptoms were pre-leukemic stages?
300 7T	19	A. I'm not sure what that question is saying.
	20	The
	21	Q. If you were to agree with me for the moment
•	22	A. You mean the pre-leukemia would be also
	23	caused by the radiation?
•	24	Q No, I'm not going to that for the moment.
	25	A. That, presumably, would happen because you

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

1

2

3

4

know, it could be an earlier stage of leukemia. But that's not what we're talking about.

1475

In other words, pre-leukemia would be very high risk, but it wouldn't count.

Assuming for the moment, Dr. Bross, that that 0. 5 element of the medical discipline which believes diseases 6 such as asthma, urticaria, eczema, et cetera, are 7 actually the initial stages of leukemia -- that is, pre-8 leukemia -- wouldn't it naturally follow that individuals 9 who exhibit symptoms of those diseases would later on 10 develop clinically observable symptoms of leukemia? 11 12 A. Well --

13 Q. -- if you give me the first, would you agree 14 with the second?

15 A. The point that I think maybe is not being 16 clear here is that all of the diseases that are listed as 17 indicator diseases are reasonably frequently encountered 18 in children. In other words, the children -- a lot of 19 children have asthma.

That does not mean that all of the children who have asthma are going on to develop leukemia, not by any means. It means that the risk of leukemia will be higher in that group. But the absolute risks of leukemia are very low.

So even if you increased the risk by a factor

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

1

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

of two or a factor of five or a factor of ten, the actual absolute risk is still very low. 2

1476

The -- If these things were in fact true pre-leukemias, if all these cases were pre-leukemic, then, of course, the risks would be enormous in that -- you know, children with sthma would go on to develop leukemia.

Pre-leukemia is a disease that precedes leukemia. So, in other words, instead of there just being a high risk, you know, you'd have the kids who had asthma 9 going on to leukemia.

That doesn't happen.

That assumes that leukemia develops at the 12 0. same rate and continuously in all people; is that correct --13 what you've just stated? 14

What I was saying does not involve that 15 A. No. It's simply that if it's truly pre-leukemic, concept. 16 it's followed by leukemia. And so if the asthma is truly 17 pre-leukemic, then it's not just a higher risk, it's just 18 19 going to occur with leukemia.

20 So that if these diseases were in fact the 21 same thing as pre-leukemic diseases, you know, you would have in this group -- not a tenfold risk, but you would 22 23 have a hundredfold or much higher risk than that.

24 In other words, it would be almost like if 25 you got the disease, you'd go on and get the leukemia. That's

what	pre-leukemi	C	means
------	-------------	---	-------

1

2

3

4

5

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

20-6

That's why -- you know, if you're going to talk about pre-leukemia, that's what 't means.

Q Can you give me an indication of something which is pre-leukemic, but is not leukemia?

A. Well, you're now asking me for medical testimony. I can give you an impression that among the diseases that are likely to be considered pre-leukemic would
be something like a form -- or some forms of anemia
and the -- you know, this is the kind of thing perhaps.
In your view, exhibiting symptoms of anemia

12 would be pre-leukemic, but would not be leukemia?

A. Well, you asked me for an example of something that a doctor would regard as possibly preleukemic, and I gave you an example.

I don't -- You know, I'm not saying that I don't -- You know, I'm not saying that that is pre-leukemia. I'm saying that's something that somebody might call pre-leukemic.

19 Q Is there anything that you would call pre-20 leukemic?

A. Well, I'm not testifying as a physician. And the -- you know, you can't really have it both ways. If you want me to testify as a statistician, I'd be pleased. If you want me to testify as a physician, I

25 can't do it.

1

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

Q Dr. Bross, is there anything that you would regard as pre-leukemic?

1478

2 You mean certainly pre-leukemic? I don't A. 3 know. I cannot really say that I know of anything that 4 I know is in that category, absolutely or -- you know, I'm 5 not speaking as a physician, so I really can't say. 6 So you would knock some things out as not 7 being pre-leukemia -- some types of diseases, such as 8 asthma, urticaria, eczema, pneumonia, dysentery and 9 rheumatic fever and refer to those as indicator diseases, 10 but there is no disease or symptom which you would call 11 pre-leukemic? 12 A. What I'm saying is pre-leukemic is a time 13 frame reference. If the diseases occur very shortly 14 before the leukemia, then it can be pre-leukemic. 15 If the diseases we're talking about -- like 16 these that we're dealing with here -- occur substantially 17 before the occurrence of leukemia, then I wouldn't call 18 19 them pre-leukemic. 20 It's a time frame question. It's not a 21 diagnostic symptom question. 22 0. Is it your view, Dr. Bross, that individuals who have been irradiated in utero will exhibit a greater 23

24 susceptibility for the indicator diseases than individuals 25 who have not been irradiated in utero?

1-1

DAT

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

10

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Well, the answer to that question involves A. the mechanisms that I have talked about.

1479

In other words, if there is pre-existing genetic damage, then you are going to have -- let's say -exposure to x-ray and it's going to produce -- it's going to be more likely to produce both, both the indicator disease and the subsequent leukemia.

In other words, it is a kind of enriched 8 series you're dealing with. Because of that, you are, in 9 a certain sense, picking up more persons who are in this susceptible group to start with than in the persons who 11 subsequently show a history that does not include any of 12 the indicator diseases.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

	1	THE WITNESS: Now, that's what co-
	2	occurrence is all about.
	3	BY MR. BLAKE:
	4	Q. Is the answer yes to my question?
20024 (202) 554-2345	5	A. Well, I have attempted to give you an answer
	6	to the question. I at this point don't really see
	7	exactly where you're driving so maybe you can rephrase
	8	it.
V. D.C.	9	Q. You mean you didn't understand my question?
NGTON	10	A. Well, I thought I gave you an answer to your
VASHID	11	question.
300 7TH STREET, S.W. , REPORTERS BUILDING, V	12	I thought I understood a question I
	13	gave an answer to a question that I understood, and I
	14	thought it was a reasonably coherent answer. It fits in
	15	with the statements I've been making previously, with my
	16	testimony and with the issues before this hearing.
	17	I thought to the best of my knowledge I had
	18	answered your question.
	19	Now, apparently, I did not answer your question
	20	in your view. I'm really trying to get some clue as
	21	to what you are driving at that was not in my answer.
	22	Q Let me try again. Is it your opinion that
	23	individuals who are irradiated in utero are more likely
	24	than those who are not to develop diseases which you have
	25	characterized as indicator diseases?

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

1480

3	1	A. This is the relative frequency now not of
	2	leukemia, but just of the indicator diseases, per se?
	3	Q That's correct.
D	4	A. The effects are not overwhelming. You know,
554-2345	5	it isn't like the risks are enormously higher, as some of
	6	the risks are when you bring in a combination or co-
(202)	7	occurrence of the diseases.
20024	8	I don't think that the risks are, the
, D.C.	9	risks of indicator diseases are greatly changed by the
NOT DI	10	occurrence specifically of the radiation. In other
ASHIN	11	words
NG, W	12	Q. Is your answer no?
Initial	13	A. It's Well, I won't say there's absolutely
FERS F	14	no difference, but there's not a major difference, yes.
EPOR	15	Q. There's no statistically significant, meaning-
W. , R	16	ful, observable difference?
EET, S	17	A. These are small differences. They're not
H STR	18	really significant probably not significant in most
17 00	19	cases.
	20	Q. Is it your opinion that individuals who
	21	exhibit symptoms of the diseases which you have identified
	22	as indicator diseases are more likely than people who
	23	do not exhibit symptoms of those diseases to later exhibit
	24	clinically detectable symptoms of leukemia?
	25	A. Well, this is the point and I have to

1481

- 4	1	separate and answer in two senses. In the first case, if
•	2	there isn't also history of radiation exposure in the
	3	child which had the indicator diseases, then this doesn't
•	4	seem to affect greatly the risk of leukemia.
	ş 5	It's when you have the combination of a
	554-23	reported exposure to radiation early on, or in utero,
	(202)	and the indicator diseases also that you have the increased
	8	risk.
	D.C.	Is that clear?
	NOT 10	In other words, there are two groups here:
	VIHSV 11	Those who don't have any radiation, those who do and they
	м [.] 5 _N	do not behave the same way.
	I0110 13	Q. Is your opinion that people who have both
•	8 SN3 14	been irradiated in utero and exhibit what you've referred
	15	to as an indicator disease, that that class of people is
	a 16	more likely to later exhibit leukemia?
	S'. 17	A. That's correct.
	18 IS	Q than people who did not either exhibit
	112 19	the indicator disease symptoms or
	ື 20	A. That's correct.
	21	Q weren't irradiated in utero.
•	22	Is that shared by members of the medical
-	23	community?
•	24	A. I'm sorry. Would you Did you say
-	25	"shared"?
	1	

by members of the medical community? 2 As far as I know, there are people who accept A. 3 these views and people who don't. And the persons who 4 have connections with certain groups, such as the 5 Radiation Protection Community, certainly do not share 6 those views. 7 There are a lot of doctors now who do believe 8 in the fact that there are susceptible groups, and that 9 the susceptible groups which are sort of indicated by 10 the occurrence of these diseases in conjunction with 11 a prior exposure to x-ray do get more leukemia and are 12 the groups that have to be protected from a public health 13 standpoint. 14 15 So there is a fair amount of medical 16 opinion in agreement with the basics that I've stated.

Q.

0. Are there publications by medical doctors 18 that you're aware of which refer to the concept of indi-19 cator diseases, as you have expressed it here?

Is your opinion shared, endorsed, accepted,

20 Well, most of these refer to the idea of a A. 21 susceptible subgroup. This is in the literature quite a 22 bit.

23 And, of course, that's linked to the notion 24 that I brought in. Indicator diseases are a way, which is 25 why they're called indicator diseases in this sense, of

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554 2345

17

21-5

being able to get to -- not identifying specific individuals in the susceptible subgroup, but as it were, an enriched series where there are more susceptibles in that series than in the persons who don't have the indicator diseases.

1

2

3

4

5

6

11

12

13

14

16

17

25

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554 2345

21-6

1484

The idea of a susceptible subgroup which was first, I guess -- prior to any of these papers that we've 7 8 been talking about so far -- came out quite early in the game, I guess -- is, as far as I know, accepted by members 9 of the medical community. 10

Q So you are reading the literature as saying susceptible subgroup where that term is used, to be an endorsement of your use of the term "indicator diseases"?

A. Well, I'm saying the purpose of using in-15 dicator diseases analytically, scientifically and for statistical purposes was to try to get a handle on the susceptible subgroups.

18 Q. How is it that you identify susceptible 19 groups prior to birth? That is, is there a method in your 20 view of identifying susceptible individuals prior to 21 birth?

22 Unfortunately, there is not. And that's A. 23 essentially why we have to resort to a somewhat indirect 24 method of trying to get a handle on the group.

> Are we talking here about problems with 0.

		승규가 승규가 지난 것이 집에 가지 않는 것이 같이 가지 않는 것이 가지 않는 것이 가지 않는 것이 없다.
7	1 2	infants, problems with children, when we talk about
		leukemia and in utero radiation and indicator diseases?
	3	A. As far as the Tri-State Survey goes, the
	4	actual data really doesn't start until after infancy.
45	5	Q. After
554-23	6	A. After early In other words, the early
(202)	7	infancy period is not included in that data. It's the
20024	8	period from I believe one year to 14 years that is in
, p.c.	9	the data.
IGTON	10	They were not infants.
ASHIN	11	Q In your study of the numbers of individuals
NG, W	12	who exhibited clinically observable symptoms of leukemia,
Intro	13	who previously had exhibited symptoms of the indicator
ERS B	14	diseases, were those numbers who in the end demonstrated
EPORT	15	leukemia, exhibited clinically observable leukemia?
.w., R	16	A. I'm sorry. I just don't This question
EET, S	17	I don't You're talking about numbers
H STRI	18	Q. Uh-huh. I want to know
UTT 00	19	A. I'm not sure what you mean by numbers. Do
e	20	you mean
	21	Q. Let me try again
	22	A indices
	23	Q. Let me try again. Are you aware of data
)	24	which suggests that there is any distinction as a function
	25	of in utero radiation between the numbers of children

5 1485

who develop leukemia, all of whom have exhibited symptoms 1 of your indicator diseases? 2 A. Well, you're talking about a difference and --3 you know, I -- one of the groups that you're mentioning 4 seems to be those who have indicator diseases and leukemia 5 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554 2345 and radiation. I'm not sure who you're comparing it 6 with now -- with those who don't have any of these -- or 7 don't have indicator diseases and x-rays. 8 The answer is yes if that is the case --9 Those that exhibit the indicator disease that 0. 10 were not irradiated. 11 The risks of leukemia are not substantially A. 12 increased. If they don't have radiation, they just have 13 the indicator disease --14 Right. 15 0. That doesn't seem to produce much. What A. 16 produces the major effects is when you have the combina-17 tion -- the co-occurrence of the diseases and the exposure. 18 19 You have to have all three, in a sense. Maybe that's why these questions have been hard to follow. 20 21 There are three factors here. 22 Q. Let me refer you to your answer to Question 23 No. 17. Let me insure that you have the right corrections 24 to this, as a result of the Board's order. 25 Question No. 17 now should read, Dr. Bross,

21 - 8

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

	1	"How does additional annual radiation exposure relate to
	2	the background radiation exposure?"
	3	That's Question 17.
	4	A. Uh-huh.
10	5	Q And your answer is unaffected by the Board's
54-234	6	ruling. I will say that because the last time we
202) 5	7	talked, you had indicated you had some changes which were
0024 (8	not related to the Board's order.
D.C. 2	9	Could we agree that the average life span
G, WASHINGTON,	10	of individuals in this country is on the order of 70
	11	years?
	12	A. Well, I take it you're talking about life
IIIDIN	13	expectation?
RS BU	14	Q. Fair enough.
ORTE	15	A. The life span There's a difference
., REI	16	between life span and life expectation. The life span is
T, S.W	17	sort of the biblical three score and ten that you've just
STREE	18	mentioned.
HTTT (19	That hasn't been greatly changed.
300	20	
	21	
	22	
	23	
	24	
	25	

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

1487

Ţ

		이 같은 것이 같은 것이 같은 것이 같이 있는 것이 같은 것이 같은 것이 같은 것이 같은 것이 같이 같이 많이
2-1	1	Q. So we can agree that the average length of
•	2	time that people live in this country is about 70 years?
	3	A. No, because
	4	Q. We can't agree on that
345	5	A. Well, that's a different question. Let
554-2	6	me just make I'm not arguing that it's an immense
1 (202)	7	difference, but for purposes of making this crystal clear,
2002	8	life span and life expectation are two different concepts
N. D.C	9	that you mixed in the same question.
NGTO	10	As far as life span goes, that's really the
NASHI	11	thing that hasn't changed much. It's still around the
ING,	12	Biblical life span, and the life expectation is the thing
BUILD	13	people mostly talk about, which does show gradual shifts
TERS	14	upward.
REPOR	15	But 70 years, this is for general discussion,
S.W 1	16	you know, not a specific number for a particular purpose;
REET,	17	that's fine with me.
LI STI	18	Q. Could we agree that there is average natural
300 7	19	background of radiation in the United States of somewhere
	20	in the neighborhood of 100 millirem per year?
	21	A. I think that's stated in the question, yes.
	22	Q. Can we agree that the natural background
	23	radiation levels in the Denver, Colorado, area are higher
•	24	than the average in the United States?
	25	A. Yes.

g

1488

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

25

20024 (202) 554-2345

D.C.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON,

Q. Can we agree that they are greater than 150 millirem per year?

1489

A. The problem of the background doses which you're dealing with here is actually dealt with in some detail in a paper in "Health Physics," in a letter in "Health Physics," which is cited, and I --

Q. Dr. Bross --

A. -- will answer your question that the answer is yes, and the paradoxes are explained in that article.
 Q. Dr. Bross, as I understand your response to Question No. 17, you would say -- You have indicated in your response to Question 17 that with radiation increments of 50 millirem per year this might be taken as roughly equivalent to aging 50 percent faster per year?
 A. This is a very rough equivalent. The idea is to show basically that -- This is not intended as an absolute or flat, unconditional type of statement. It's a very rough way of looking at these figures.

19 In other words, what does 50 extra millirem 20 mean? It's essentially increasing the dosage per year for 21 an individual by 50 percent.

If the dosage of radiation actually -- we get radiation from multiple sources, so not just from background.

If the dosage is increased by 50 percent, and

22-3 background radiation were the sole factor, then it would 1 be true that the radiation would show this increase, yes. 2 But there are a lct of other factors. 3 Is it your testimony that if excess radiation Q. 4 to the public is 50 millirem per year, this might be 5 554-2345 taken as roughly equivalent to aging 50 percent faster 6 20024 (202) 7 per year? 8 What I'm saying is that's a rough estimate --A. D.C. 9 0. Is that your testimony? 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, 10 Well, I'm giving you testimony as a sort of A. 11 indicator of a way to look at numbers. 12 If you mean that I am stating this as a 13 scientific fact or that this is taken literally as this, 14 no, I don't. That's not my testimony. 15 That's not my intention, anyway. 16 Well, I can't see any other intention in Q. 17 the testimony. Pr. Bross, other than what I'm reading. 18 Are you changing the number or saying that 19 50 percent faster is really not the right number or it's 20 a range of numbers? 21 Well, if you want -- I've given it very rough. A. 22 If you want to make a very carefully phrased statement, 23 it will be a very long statement. 24 For instance, it would say, if the only 25 radiation exposure were background radiation, this would

1490

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

be the case; but, of course, that doesn't happen to be true in this country or other countries.

1491

So this is a very, very rough or crude way of looking at it. I'm not saying more than that.

Q. If I added "other radiation exposures," this effect would not occur?

A. It would be washed out. That's why -- as explained in the "Health Physics" testimony, I was dealing with the question of background radiation, attempting to give some kind of clarification to what background radiation, relative to possible releases in the range, which is eliminated from the question, how this would relate to the background radiation.

In a very rough way, this gives some idea of how it might relate.

In fact, as I pointed out in the article in Health Physics," because of these other effects that come in pretty well wash out.

19 It doesn't come up this way. You don't 20 see a doubled risk in Denver and you don't see a reduced 21 risk in New Orleans because of the background radiation, 22 because that's not the only radiation exposure and the 23 other factors come in and sort of diminishes effect.

24 Q. What are the other radiation exposures which
25 most people in Denver or other parts of the country

		- 1	
22-5		1	receive, other than natural background radiation?
•		2	A. Well, there's a long list of them.
		3	Q. I see, and what are they?
•		4	A. Well, they include medical exposure.
	345	5	Q. And how much would you have that add to the
	554-2	6	average per year?
	1 (202)	7	A. Well, these average numbers for medical
	2002	8	exposures are, again, numbers which I don't deal with.
	N, D.C	9	I'm just saying that the average there are
	NGTO	10	these other sources, and because of these other sources,
	NASHI	11	you don't see in the vital statistics which are used in
	ING.	12	these comparisons the differences that you would see i
	BUILD	13	only background were involved.
-	TERS	14	If you like, on this particular question, I
	REPOR	5	would rephrase my answer to improve the record or whatever
	. I	6	you'd like on this.
	T 1	7	It was intended to give an idea of what 50
	II I	8	rem meant in terms of background, because the background
	1 1	9	radiation, if that were the only radiation, would be
	2	20	what would account, say, for the increased risks in
	2	1	leukemia in populations which were not exposed to radiation
•	2	2	technologies.
	2	3	9. What additional radiation would you add to
•	2	4	the average member of the public other than some amount
	2	5	or medical radiation and natural background?

1.12.2		
1	А.	Well, there's a long list, like in travel.
2	Q	In travel, did you say?
3	A.	Yes.
4	Q.	And how much would you add for the average
5	person for th	nat?
6	А.	As I say, I do not These numbers are
7	all calculate	ed. They are in the radiation protection
8	community giv	ves long tables of these numbers, and I don't
9	happen to thi	ink those tables are particularly informative.
10		What's true is there are a lot of other
11	factors, but	when we start adding estimates and individual
12	numbers, you	know, I'm not proposing to do that.
13	Q.	How many papers do you believe exist in your
14	bibliography	which make reference to medical irradiation?
15	Α.	I didn't count them. There are quite a lot.
16	Q.	Quite a lot?
17	A.	Yeah.
18	Q	Twenty, thirty, eighty?
19	Α.	I don't know. I didn't count the number
20	specifically	in my bibliography for medical radiation.
21	Q	And you do not know what people receive on
22	average in th	ne United States from medical irradiation?
23	Α.	What I'm telling you is that the average
24	numbers that	are given are not numbers which I would be
25	prepared to	testify about.
1.1		

I don't believe the numbers. For instance 22-7 1 I'll give you a for instance. 2 I'm aware that there are such numbers. 3 I do not want to testify as to those numbers. 4 For instance, I think someplace or another in 5 D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 the testimony there's talk about 70 millirem average from 6 medical radiation. 7 8 I don't know whether that particular number I 9 remember is correct or not, but it's the kind of number 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, 10 that you're trying to get me to talk about. 11 I don't believe this kind of number means 12 anything, because what it amounts to is there are a lot 13 of people that are getting doses of medical radiation which 14 are, of course, in the rad range for diagnostic purposes, 15 and they are getting much larger doses which are in the 16 therapeutic radiation range. 17 Now, if you also include people who don't get 18 X-rays and so forth and average it all up, you may get to 19 a number like 70 millirem; but to me, that doesn't mean 20 anything, because in fact, that isn't what a person gets. 21 That's just one of these average numbers which 22 are used, as far as I'm concerned, erroneously. 23 Well, aren't we talking here about average 0. 24 numbers? 25 Isn't your 50 millirem a year, isn't your

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

	이 것은 것은 것은 것은 것 같은 것은 것은 것을 가지 않는 것 같아요. 이 것은 것은 것 같아요. 것은 것 같아요. 가지 않는 것은 것은 것을 수 있는 것이 같아요. 가지는 것은 것
1	50 percent aging factor? Aren't we talking about the
2	average effects to people in your answer here?
3	A. All I'm doing in this is to show that a
4	50 millirem dose, in addition to background, is not
5	something which would be completely negligible.
6	That seems to be the thrust of the testimony.
7	I don't want to say exactly how much the
8	actual 50 millirem addition to the total radiation
9	exposure of a person is going to contribute.
10	Q. Now, Dr. Bross, can you agree with me that
11	the average person in the United States, his greatest
12	component of exposure is natural background; would you
13	agree with that?
14	A. Well, the answer is no.
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

1495

BY MR. BLAKE:

2

3

4

5

6

7

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

23 - 1

bm

Q. Would you agree that it's -- if it's not the greatest component, that it's 25 percent?

A. Well, you were getting into the specific questions that I dealt with in the letter in health physics dealing with the paradoxes of background radiation.

And if you would like my complete answer to
these questions, it's all given there. I am not testifying
here or now -- I think the line of questioning indicates
that this is a great point I'm making. It's not a great
point I'm making.

13 It's simply a matter of giving a person some 14 idea of how 50 millirem compares to background. That's 15 all.

16 Q. That's what I'm trying to come to understand.
17 I look at the testimony; I see there the statement with
18 respect to excess radiation of 50 millirem be taken
19 roughly as equivalent to aging 50 percent faster per
20 year. That's the statement in the testimony.

21 What I'm trying to understand is: What does
22 that really mean, and how could I see evidence of this?
23 And when I start asking you about what is natural back24 ground, can you expect to see this exhibited anywhere by
25 virtue of differences of natural background, you say it is
	1	lost in the sea of all radiations which people receive,
	2	and, therefore, you don't really see this effect at all.
	3	Is that correct?
	4	A. Yes.
45	5	Q. So this effect in your view exists, but you
554-23	6	cannot see it?
(202)	7	A. It's a hypothetical effect because it deals
20024	8	with background radiation by itself, which isn't a real
, D.C.	9	situation.
CTON	10	In other words, this question may not be
VASHIN	11	phrased as perfectly as it might. It is basically dealing
NG, W	12	with radiation background as just background radiation
SUILD	13	as the sole exposure, how it would be what 50 percent
rers 1	14	would mean in that respect.
LEPOR	15	The figures on the before we had a lot of
S.W	16	other radiation in the environment, the relationship to
LEET,	17	age, which again is very rough it's something like
HIS HU	18	that the risk of leukemia would go up with age in a
300 71	19	specific ratio all of the time.
	20	And that's essentially in those days when
	21	that was the only source of radiation or practically the
	22	only source of radiation the background radiation
	23	it was equivalent to aging.

1497

24 And if you like, I will correct the statement25 to say that if you want to take all of the sources of

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

25

radiation and deal with the modern current situation of multiple exposures, then, of course, you are dealing with something much more complex than this simple picture.

Except that we can't do that because you don't 0. know what people are generally exposed to. Hasn't that been your testimony? You don't know what the average exposures are to people either from medical radiation, from technological radiation sources of one sort or another, from travel and televisions; isn't that your testimony?

A. Well, you're asking me do I know what these exposures are -- you were asking me specific questions 12 at out numbers. And I'm saying I'm not giving you those 13 numbers because I don't believe in those numbers. 14

But there are not -- I mean there are a lot 15 of other factors involved and background radiation today 16 really is not an issue. 17

18 It's not an issue in general, or it's not an 0. issue in this proceeding? Is that what -- What do you 19 20 mean that background radiation is not an issue

21 Well, I believe that that's a matter of public A. 22 knowledge, that there are a lot of sources of radiation. 23 I'm not quantifying them. I'm saying qualitatively, yes, 24 there are a lot of sources of radiation.

I'm refusing to give you quantitative numbers

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

15

that I don't believe in.

JUDGE FOREMAN: Mr. Blake, I would like to take the privilege of stepping in for a second with a question. Maybe I can clarify this, and then all of us would go ahead because I think Dr. Bross is answering as well and as honestly as he can.

1499

There seems to be a conceptual difference here. So, Dr. Bross, I just want to ask you a question. THE WITNESS: Surely. 9

JUDGE FOREMAN: If that clears it up, okay; 10 if it doesn't, then we can go ahead. 11

In this answer, you are indicating that an 12 index of aging attributable to natural background is a 13 tenfold increase in leukemia. 14

THE WITNESS: Yes.

JUDGE FOREMAN: And if one added a 50-milli-R, 16 then one group would be increasing -- or accelerating that 17 increase in leukemia as an index of aging? 18

19 THE WITNESS: That's correct. And only with the riviso that, you know, we're really just talking 20 about background radiation -- say, hypothetically back 21 22 before we have these contaminating factors.

23 At that point in time there was this very 24 close relationship between aging and the background radia-25 tion exposure. It was more or less going up proportionately.

5	1	And I'm saying and I perhaps did not make
D	2	it sufficiently clear, and I should have, I recognize
	3	this that in those terms if you add 50 millirem per
D 9	4	year to the 100 millirem, then it would have the same
	g 5	effect in a sense as accelerating the aging process, or
	6	it would tend
D.C. 20024 (202) 5	(202)	JUDGE FOREMAN: The aging process is mani-
	8	fested by the rate of increase in leukemia?
	9	THE WITNESS: Yes.
	NOL 10	JUDGE FOREMAN: I guess that's all I can
	NIHS 11	add. I don't know whether that is helpful.
	5 12	MR. BLAKE: That's helpful, Dr. Foreman.
	13	Let me shift to the other statement since Dr. Foreman
	8 14	has specifically raised the tenfold increase in leukemia
1000	15	statement.
	16	BY MR. BLAKE:
10 4.0	17 IZ	Q. Taken literally, Dr. Bross, would that state-
CFDV	18	ment mean that you would expect to see in the public
nat o	19	incidences of leukemia increase tenfold with each ten
16	⁵ 20	years of life? That is, folks between cases of
	21	leukemia diagnosed between in people aged 10 to 20
	22	10 to 19 would be tenfold of those diagnosed at ages
	23	0 to 9 or 0 to 10?
	24	A. Yes. These are the age-specific leukemia
	25	rates over time, which is simply another way of saying

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

1500

said. That's what I'm referring to.
And, indeed, a hundred times greater between
and a thousand between 30 and 39, et cetera?
Yes. I'm beginning to wonder whether I made
and I should have said twofold. I'm not

I don't actually -- since you're making this a major issue -- recall specifically the age-specific rates. But the important point that is involved is that it goes up -- it goes up -- the age-specific rates go up with time in this way so that you have some rough correspondence to aging.

sure. My memory is a little bit unclear on this point.

I see. That --0.

MR. BLAKE: I wish you had jumped in a lot 14 earlier, Dr. Foreman, because you've cut this one down a 15 lot. 16

17 BY MR. BLAKE:

what you've

20 and 29,

a mistake,

Q.

A.

18 You're not proposing anything close in your 0. 19 testimony to the numbers which you've indicated in here? 20 You're not really proposing that there is a tenfold increase in leukemia with each decade of life, or that you 21 22 could expect to see this by virtue of a 50-millirem in-23 crease in background?

24 I think it's possible that in answering this A. 25 question I was relying -- unwisely -- on my memory about

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554 2345

23-6

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

1502

23-7 1 the a

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

the actual rate at which the leukemia goes up.

And I can't -- I don't remember the actual age-specific tables.

The point that I was making was really not dependent on the actual numbers. It's simply that in terms of the disease, there is this very rough relationship between the duration and presumably the extent of background radiation exposure and the risk of leukemia, which actually the figures are in my -- are in that letter that I cited in "Health Physics."

And I think I was mistakenly trying to avoid
going back to that reference. I should have.

But the point is simply that there is a kind of correspondence between leukemia risks and age and, presumably, the background exposure which is presumed constant with age or was at one time.

Is there anything in the statistics of 17 0. 18 leukemia incidence as a function of age which would support 19 your tenfold increase statement, or anything close to 20 it -- nine, eight, seven, six, five, four, three, two? 21 Yes. There is a definite increase, yes. A. 22 In other words, it's supported -- I can't remember 23 whether I have misquoted the actual number that I had originally given in the other paper, but there is very 24 25 definitely in the statistics -- especially the earlier

1	statistics, this kind of relationship.
2	Q I can agree with you, Dr. Bross, that there
3	are greater incidences of leukemia observed in people aged
4	80 than are observed in people aged 10.
5	A. Yes.
6	Q. But are you aware of any statistics that
7	support anything close to
8	A. To what I've said here
9	Q to what you've said here in your testimony?
10	A. Yes, yes. Leukemia
11	Q. Yes?
12	A statistics do this. Let me add another
13	codicil, since I guess in the interest of accuracy I should
14	say that we really if I had put all the if's, and's
15	and but's in, it would have been a complicated statement.
16	But one of the statements I should have put
17	in is that since childhood leukemia and adult leukemia are
18	really somewhat different diseases, the statement really
19	refers to adult leukemia.
20	It, generally speaking, refers to let's
21	say what would happen from 20 to on out. It will
22	If you want to be very literal, there are a lot of other
23	things that I have to say.
24	For instance, in the actual age-specific
25	statistics, this relationship begins to get lost at very

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

1503

high ages. That's for several reasons, because for, among other things, the figures are beginning to lose numbers in those age groups, so that the numbers get kind of erratic at the top end of the scale.

1504

But insofar as the numbers, say, between 20 and 50 or that sort of range -- 20 and 60, where the agespecific leukemia rates are given, they show this kind of direct relationship to age.

9 Q. Isn't it -- and you assigned this at least 10 in part to the existence of natural background?

11 A. Well, if we were talking about leukemia 12 prior to the existence of radiation that has been put into 13 the environment, then, presumably, that would be the 14 primary factor, that the natural background would be the 15 factor that would have that effect on the leukemia 16 rate. That's why it would go up that way.

17 Q And you assign it as -- Did you assign it 18 in part to a cumulation or cumulative effect, which is 19 occurring on the individual? Is that involved in this?

A. Well, the way that background radiation works,
as I see it in terms of the discussion that I've been
giving, is that you are exposing the persons to constant
radiation, but that the risk is going up because you're
taking more shots, in a sense.

Therefore, as you take more shots, you

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

25

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

13.



24-1 0. I see, so the probability, if you will, of 1 2 this shock you are referring to is the same at any point in time, but the fact the longer you live, the greater 3 4 has been your total exposure, not in terms of radiological exposure, but rather, in a profile; and, therefore, the 5 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 6 greater the chance or the risk that you will --7 Yes, that's correct. A. 8 -- take on leukemia or otherwise 0. 9 A. Yes. 10 0. And also reflected in that, I take it, is 11 the latency period which may be involved with the earlier 12 initiation of leukemia, but which is not observed, therefore 13 detected and therefore reported until later years? 14 A. Well, if you have a latency period on this 15 curve, if you can sort of visualize a straight line --16 let's say, if there was no latency, it would just go 17 straight up, but since there's a latency, it sort of 18 starts at a later point. 19 It has moved or shifted over, and let's say, 20 does not really start going up very fast until after you 21 get into the thirties and forties. 22 But that's a shift of the curve, not a real 23 difference of the point that -- in a certain sense 24 background radiation, at least in the old sense, was 25 propertional to age and the risk of not just leukemia, but

1506

24-2	1	other diseases, shows this relationship.
•	2	Q. Which again, I take it, is no more than just
	3	the fact that you are exposed for a longer period of time
•	4	to the same probability at any point in time?
345	5	A. Right.
) 554-2	6	Q. And, therefore, over all, there's a total
4 (202	7	greater risk?
2002	8	A. Right.
N, D.C	9	JUDGE WOLFE: Mr. Blake, would this be a
NGTO	10	good time to recess? It is now 5:15.
IHSAV	11	MR. BLAKE: Fine.
ING, V	12	JUDGE FOREMAN: May I add just one comment?
BUILD	13	JUDGE WOLFE: Yes.
TERS	14	JUDGE FOREMAN: Dr. Bross, in view of the
LEPOR	15	quantitative uncertainties of your numbers and some of
S.W	16	the problems in developing a concept, is this worth
teet.	17	pursuing any more as an addition to the points that you
H STF	18	wish to make in your testimony, or can you say enough has
300 71	19	been said?
	20	"HE WITNESS: As far as I am concerned, I will
	21	be perfectly happy to drop the question.
•	22	I put it in solely as a kind of way of showing
	23	a little bit what the relationship, since there were
•	24	discussions on background and what additions to background
	25	were, to try to clarify that point.

24-3 I've succeeded in messing it up, and it is 1 not in any sense essential to my testimony. It was just 2 a clarification. 3 JUDGE FOREMAN: Mr. Blake, I don't want to 4 interrupt your cross-examination, because you have points 5 300 77H STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 to make. 6 7 But you might consider that statement in your pursuance of questioning. I'm not saying you shouldn't, 8 9 but note that he has said that. 10 MR. BLAKE: I have. Thank you, Your Honor. 11 JUDGE JORDAN: May I just say one thing. 12 There is also a little unclarity in my mind 13 as to -- well, you recognized there was uncertainly about 14 the tenfold increase, whether it was tenfold or twofold; 15 but there is also a question in my mind as to whether it is 16 a geometric increase each decade of life? 17 THE WITNESS: It's going up geometric. 18 JUDGE JORDAN: It's a geometric increase. 19 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. I apologize. I 20 was trying to bring in an answer, and I should have 21 checked with my paper, but I didn't. 22 JUDGE JORDAN: No, I'm not asking you what 23 the number is, but you do believe it's geometric? 24

THE WITNESS: Yes.

25

JUDGE JORDAN: All right. That's all I need

1508

to know. Thank you. 1 MR. BLAKE: Judge Wolfe, Mr. Jones has 2 pointed out to me that you used the term "recess." It 3 never occurred to me that we're going to stop for the day. 4 Is that what you had in mind? 5 000 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2355 JUDGE WOLFE: Yes. 6 MR. BLAKE: Stopping for the day? 7 JUDGE WOLFE: Yes. We run from 9:00 to 5:00, 8 unless -- and I've gone a little bit over because you 9 were in the middle of pressing your cross-examination. 10 So we will recess until 9:00 a.m. 11 MR. BLAKE: Would you entertain a request to 12 13 continue? JUDGE WOLFE: I would entertain, but not 14 particularly be entertained. 15 (Laughter.) 16 JUDGE WOLFE: I see you, Mr. Jones. 17 MR. JONES: Chairman Wolfe, Mr. Blake has 18 discussed this matter with both myself and Dr. Bross at 19 the last recess, and we had advised him that based upon 20 his estimate at that time that he felt that he should --21 and I'm not trying in any sense hold him to that estimate 22 be able to complete his cross-examination of Dr. Bross 23 this evening by extending for a bit. 24 Therefore, on that premise, we told him 25

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

24-4

1509

000 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554 2345

1

that we had no objection to continuing.

2 However, we are completely at the Board's 3 disposal.

1510

MR. BLAKE: I guess I should add at this 4 point now that I'm another hour and a half or two hours 5 down the pike, it is apparent to me that I would not 6 finish this evening, assuming that we took a break and 7 8 then came back and went until 6:30 or a guarter to 7:00. 9 I don't think that would allow me to finish. 10 JUDGE WOLFE: Well, no one advised me 11 earlier, and at most this evening, without prior notice, 12 all we could proceed to would be until a guarter of 7:00. 13 And you still have another hour or more 14 of cross-examination. 15 MR. BLAKE: Yes, sir. 16 JUDGE WOLFE: And then we have Mr. Turk. 17 What is the expectation of the parties, that 18 we will be finished with Dr. Bross tomorrow? 19 MR. BLAKE: It is still my expectation we 20 will be finished with Dr. Bross tomorrow. 21 MR. WOLFE: Mr. Turk, on your cross-22 examination? 23 MR. TURK: It's difficult for me to predict 24 at this time how long the cross-examination will take. 25 It will be a greater amount of cross-examination

- 6	1	than I have had of other witnesses in the past.
	2	My rough estimate would be on the order of
	3	four hours.
	4	(Bench conference.)
45	5	MR. TURK: I should say it might be less, and
554-23	6	it might be a little bit more.
(202)	7	JUDGE WOLFE: All right. The Board will
20024	8	accommodate all concerned then.
4, D.C.	9	In order to be fairly assured that Dr. Bross
NGTON	10	can be excused tomorrow, we will take a ten-minute
VASHI	11	recess, and we will proceed to a quarter to 7:00.
ING, V	12	All right.
BUILD	13	(Recess taken.)
TERS	14	전 소문 전 전 전 전 전 전 · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
REPOR	15	
S.W	16	
LEET,	17	
TH STF	18	
300 71	19	
	20	
	21	그는 그는 것은 것은 것을 가지 않는 것을 하는 것을 가지 않는 것을 하는 것을 하는 것을 했다.
	22	
	23	and the second
)	24	
	25	

		이 지수는 것 같은 것은 것은 것을 수 없는 것이라. 사람이 있는 것이 같은 것이 없는 것이 없
25-1	1	JUDGE WOLFE: Back on the record.
g	2	During the off-the-record conference with
	3	Counsel, it's been agreed that instead of proceeding
•	4	until a quarter of 7:00, we will proceed until 6:00
345	5	o'clock.
554-2	6	All right. Back to you, Mr. Blake.
(202)	7	BY MR. BLAKE:
20024	8	Q. Dr. Bross, referring now to your response
, p.c.	9	to Question No. 18, did the were you first aware of the
IGTON	10	typographical error today between "reasonable" and
ASHID	11	"measurable"?
NG, W	12	A. I believe that's the first I heard about it.
	13	Q. But does it alter at all your answer to the
LERS I	14	question? The same answer?
EPORT	15	A. It seems to be essentially the same
. W. , R	16	question. I wouldn't change my answer because of that
EET, S	17	change.
H STR	18	Q. And in your answer as written, you refer in
17 00	19	the fourth line to the "new risk estimates."
	20	A. Yes.
	21	Q. What new risk estimates are you referring to
•	22	there?
	23	A. Well, I think the simplest way to answer
	24	the question is to contrast new and old, because that's
The second	25	what new refers to; it's the opposite of old, as it were.

1512

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

15

16

17

18

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

The old risk estimates that have been the basis for the BEIR Reports and other official reports for the Federal Inter-Agency Task Force are based on two classes of data, primarily. There may be a little exception.

There are some animal studies that were involved in the estimates, but primarily, the data that was involved involved persons who were exposed to risks, or exposed to levels of radiation which were of the order of a hundred or more times the levels that would be involved in the one-rad range.

The basic data that was involved there came 12 from persons who were exposed to medical X-rays, therapeutic 13 medical X-rays, which ranged in dosages from some of the 14 studies in the 100-rem range, some a little below that, but many of them in the range of about 350 rem or rads, which I'm using interchangeably, although the radiologists always refer to rads and the health physicists to rems.

19 The data that is involved in that, plus the 20 data from the Japanese A-bomb studies of persons who were 21 exposed to dosages which were really guite high, and in 22 that same range, like three or four hundred rem.

23 So these studies all deal with dosages that 24 are far above the levels that we want to be talking about 25 in considering low-level radiation hazards for this kind

of a hearing. 25-3 1

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

In order to go from dosages at those very 2 high levels to estimates of what the risks would be at levels much, much lower, it was necessary to use assumptions about the dosage response curve that we had earlier mentioned.

1514

The commonest assumption, though not the only assumption, was the linear hypothesis or linear extrapolation, which is equivalent, which means that if for instance you find health risks at 300 rem are visible and there's a certain amount, that you divide by the 300 to get the estimate from the linear hypothesis of the dose effect relationship at one rem or at five rem or at low doses.

15 So in other words, this is the old risk 16 estimates, all based on this class of data and on these 17 assumptions; and what I'm contrasting here, and when I 18 refer to new risk estimates are those estimates which are 19 based on persons who are exposed actually to low levels of 20 radiation in the general range under ten rem, and who were 21 studied in biostatistical epidemiological studies for the 22 health effects from either deaths from specific causes or 23 leukemia.

24 So these two classes of data are entirely 25 different.

The new studies have in general a number of 1 scientific and technical advantages over the old studies, 2 which I have listed in detail in Chart A of my paper, and 3 it's entitled, "Comparison of New Data on the Portsmouth 4 Shipyard Workers with the Data Used in Official 5 6 Reports (Interagency, BEIR, ICRP, etc.)," which are the 7 old data.

1515

So if you want to see in a certain sense the 9 answer to what's new data and what's old data as I'm 10 referring to it here, the thing that's labeled BNS data and the characteristics of this data that are listed in the table are those for the new data; and the official report in the column labeled "Official Reports," those are the characteristics of the data that's the old data. Q. Now, help me, Dr. Bross, with the table that you are referring to. Do you have an exhibit number on the paper?

MR. JONES: Your Honor, let the record reflect that the witness is referring to Joint Intervenors' Exhibit 25?

THE WITNESS: I'm sorry, I didn't know the number, but it's this table if that's any help. It's the last page.

There's one more difference between the old data and the new data, which is that the old data was

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

8

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

25-4

25-5 collected and analyzed, in general, for the first BEIR 1 Report for the most part, with minor changes in later 2 reports; whereas the new data has mostly but not entirely 3 4 been reported since 1978, and the data I'm talking about since 1980. 5 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 BY MR. BLAKE: 6 7 0. I see, so the new risk estimates which you 8 are referring to here are based on the Portsmouth Naval 9 Shipyard worker data? 10 No, not exclusively. In other words --A. 11 0. Is that what PNS stands for in Chart A? 12 Yes, PNS is Portsmouth Naval Shipyard Workers, A. 13 but I was using this -- What I'm saying is, this isn't 14 the only new data. 15 The new data has these characteristics in 16 general that are listed in that column. 17 The old data has in contrast the characteristics 18 that are listed in the column labeled, "Official Report." 19 The new data that I'm referring to, more 20 specifically, if you would like to have as definite a 21 specification on this point as possible is in the appendix 22 of the same paper, which I've forgotten -- is it 25, 23 I believe? 24 In the section labeled "Appendix II, 25 Biostatistical Studies of Populations Exposed to Low-Level

1516

25-6 Ionizing Radiation Where Positive Health Effects Appear 1 in the Data (By Type of Exposure)," these studies would 2 be -- which are separated into three categories, medical 3 X-ray, nuclear weapons and occupational exposures, these 4 studies will reflect the new data for the most part. 5 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 There are some old studies there, but most 6 of the studies that are listed here, let's say, in the 7 late '70's and in the '80's. 8 9 So these studies give rise to completely 10 different estimates of the health effects, which do not 11 involve linear extrapolation. 12 I'm looking now at two pages which are a 0. series of reports, or at least references, in Appendix II. 13 14 It is a portion of these studies which 15 include the information which provide the basis for the 16 new risk estimates? 17 Yes. The new risk estimates -- not all these A. 18 studies produce new risk estimates, but the new risk 19 estimates come from this list almost entirely, I believe, 20 from studies that are on this list. 21 These studies have this different 22 characteristic. So if we refer to new and old estimates, 23 that's what I'm referring to in my testimony. 24 Do you have them identified in your copy and 0. 25 could you quickly indicate which ones you are actually

1517

25-7 referring to, as opposed to all of them? If you have not, 1 then let's not take the time to --2 Well, I would have to go down the list A. 3 almost item by item if you want a specific response to 4 this. 5 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 Most of the studies that I'm referring to 6 are basically studies of the Hanford data, the Portsmouth 7 data and the federal studies such as the Center for 8 9 Disease Control study of Big Smokey veterans, and the 10 Portsmouth study, and of course the studies that I cite 11 in my testimony. 12 Maybe you and I can get together with Q. 13 Mr. Jones quickly afterwards, and we'll not take the time 14 on the record at the moment. 15 It may be that we can do it more quickly. 16 Okay. A. 17 MR. JONES: We would have no objection to 18 that, Your Honor. 19 JUDGE WOLFE: All right. Fine. 20 BY MR. BLAKE: 21 Are these new risk estimates which you refer 0. 22 to in your testimony your estimates of risk? 23 Well, the ones I'm quoting for me are A. 24 estimates that I made, but not all of the new risk 25 estimates were made by me.

1518

25-8	1	They were made by others. Mantuso and others
•	2	have made risk estimates. There are from the different
	3	studies risk estimates possible, and other people have
•	4	made them besides myself.
345	5	Q. Are these new risk estimates which you've
. 554-2	6	made or which Mantuso has made subscribed to by ICRP?
4 (202)	7	A. No.
2002	8	Q. NCRP?
N, D.C	9	A. No.
NGTO	10	Q. BEIR?
IHSVM	11	A. No.
DING,	12	Q. UNSCEAR?
BUILI	13	A. No.
RTERS	14	Q. Any other committee, council, agency?
REPOR	15	A. No. These estimates have been ignored by
S.W. ,	16	the radiation protection community, which would cover all
REET,	17	the agencies you've mentioned.
TH ST	18	In other words, none of the For example,
300 7	19	specifically, BEIR III does not really deal with this
	20	kind of material in its estimates.
	21	It does not use this. It sometimes attacks
•	22	these papers or otherwise tries to disparage them, but it
	23	does not use the new data to make estimates.
•	24	Q. Is this new risk estimate your 1980
	25	reassessment?

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

1519

25-9 No. Actually, the estimates I'm referring to 1 A. here primarily are coming a little later and involve a 2 little bit newer data, namely what is in this paper here, 3 and particularly the other estimates of doubling dose 4 5 follow up the estimate that I originally gave to the NRC 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 in 1978, the estimate for myeloid leukemia in men by 6 7 rem doubling dose. 8 0. You have also sponsored as an exhibit here 9 "1980 Reassessment of Health Hazards of Low-Level 10 Ionizing Radiation." 11 A. Yes, I -- I don't know what you mean by 12 sponsored quite, but I wrote it --13 0. Well, you wrote it and it appears as an 14 ehxibit in the proceeding. 15 -- or talked about it and presented it. A. Yes. 16 Is it based on your new risk estimates? 0. 17 A. No. No. In a way, the new risk estimates in 18 this paper essentially supersede the earlier paper that 19 I gave in Germany. 20 In other words, these are more recent 21 estimates. These are newer estimates, although they are 22 in line with the estimates that I cited earlier. 23 As far as I'm concerned, my testimony is 24 based, in my questions and so forth, on this latest 25 publication.

1520

	,	BY MR. BLAKE:
	2	Q. I see. And it supersedes what we have
	3	identified as Exhibit 26, the 1980 Reassessment?
	4	A. Yes, there's some minor amount of overlap.
345	5	It covers somewhat different terrain in some cases, but
) 554-2	6	the essential thing you're talking about the estimates
4 (202	7	are superseded and are in here.
2002	8	JUDGE WOLFE: And when you say "in here,"
N, D.C	9	Doctor, you mean
NGTO	10	THE WITNESS: In this
WASHI	11	JUDGE WOLFE: in Joint Intervenors
, SNIG,	12	THE WITNESS: 25.
BUILI	13	JUDGE WOLFE: 25. All right.
TERS	14	BY MR. BLAKE:
REPOR	15	Q. Does it also supersede a 1981 Reassessment
S.W. ,	16	which you made?
REET,	17	A. What I did for a while until this paper
TH STI	18	was published was make a reassessment more or less
300 7	19	annually to try to keep up with the literature, which is
	20	fairly which comes out fairly fast.
	21	So there were a lot of references in this
	22	set which are not in the earlier sets. But they are
	23	essentially updates.
	24	In other words, they updated each other. And
	25	this is the latest update.

6-1 bm

•

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

1521

	1	Q.	Is this latest update Joint Intervenors
)	2	Exhibit 25 -	
345	3	Α.	Yes.
	4	Q.	does it differ from your 1981 Reassessment?
	5	А.	Only in the sense that it adds more material
554-23	6	effects.	
(202)	7	Q	But it's essentially the same thesis, same
20024	8	theme, based	on the same information, but now you've added
N, D.C.	9	more	
NGTON	10	A.	Yes.
WASHI	11	Q.	Referring to your answer to Question No. 19,
DING, 1	12	you refer in	the last line of that answer to 30 studies.
BUILD	13	Α.	Yes, which are the ones listed.
TERS	14	Q.	Are these the studies that you've identified
REPOR	15	in Exhibit 2	and about which we're going to talk
S.W. ,	16	Α.	Uh-huh.
REET,	17	Q	further?
TH ST	18	Α.	That's correct.
300 7	19	Q	I'm sorry. Appendix 2, not Exhibit 2.
	20		JUDGE FOREMAN: While Mr. Blake is thinking,
	21	would you tel	1 me which journal this was the galley
)	22	of. Where wa	s this published?
	23		THE WITNESS: This is the "Yale Journal
)	24	of Biology an	d Medicine."
	25		JUDGE FOREMAN: Thank you.

BY MR. BLAKE:

1

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

26 - 3

Q. In your answer to Question 19, you indicate 2 that the BEIR III Report is unacceptable to you. And as 3 I understand your testimony today, it's because they've 4 ignored this type of data, that is, from lower-dose 5 data, and rather have relied on high-dose, or what you 6 refer to as the old risk estimate theory and extrapolation 7 down based on the linear/linear concept? Is that a fair 8 summary? 9 A. That's a fair summary, if I could just add 10 one comment on that. The -- "Ignored" is a word, but it's 11 not maybe exact because in some cases they took the 12

1523

13 trouble to attack individual studies in these reports.

So in that sense, you know, they had looked at them in that sense; and they had made a series of negative comments of one kind or another concerning the studies.

But it is correct to say ignored in the sense
that the actual data was utilized in any way in BEIR
III for the risk estimates.

21 Q. You've used the term "attack." There's a 22 difference of opinion between you and the BEIR Committee 23 members; is that correct?

A. Well, in my view -- I believe I get the thrust
of your question. In my view, what should have been done

1

2

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

in the BEIR III study was to take advantage of all of the data which has come in since BEIR I.

Actually BEIR II and BEIR III are almost -there's just a year's difference between those two. BEIR I was carried out -- in fairness to the persons who prepared BEIR I, I think they made a conscientious effort to use the data which I've referred to as old data, and which was in those days virtually the only data they had available to work from.

In the BEIR II Report the question about linear hypotheses and so forth became a very hot issue. There was agreement in a certain sense that they would not consider the new data. So it wasn't considered.

But there was a lot of disagreement in BEIR II on the linear hypothesis. It ended up with another report that came out about -- maybe only a short time later, a year later or so, which attempted to paper over the differences between the members of the BEIR Committee itself.

In my view, the weakness of the BEIR Report is that they should have taken the newest and best data that was available for their estimates. And this was not done.

24 Q. Would you regard your position with respect to
25 BEIR III, or what maybe you would describe as an

	1	inadequacy in BEIR III as an attack on BEIR III?
	2	A. What I've just said?
	3	Q. Yes.
	4	A. Well, if you like, it is
15	5	Q. No. Would you?
54-23	6	A the negative assessment of BEIR III as
(202) 8	7	a scientific publication, and I would you know, I'm not
20024	8	fussing about the word "attack," but basically it's an
D.C. 1	9	extremely negative criticism if you want to make it
GTON,	10	more politely.
VIHSV	11	But I really don't see any reason to mince
VG. W	12	words. I don't agree with this report. It's a terrible
IITDI	13	report. And in that sense, you know, I'm attacking it.
ERS BI	14	I'm not attacking the people. I'm attacking
PORTI	15	the results.
N. , RE	16	Q. Is there any distinction between the BEIR III
ET. S./	17	Committee's difference or negative appraisal of your work
STRE	18	and your negative appraisal of BEIR III's work? Is it
HTT 0	19	the same? If one is an attack, the other is an attack.
30	20	If one is a negative appraisal, is the other a negative
	21	appraisal?
	22	A. No.
	23	Q. No?
	24	A. The actual effort made by BEIR III are attempts
	25	to simply discredit this. Now, that's both an attack but
		a source a source of but

•

1525

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

it is also an effort to completely discredit the work that was done.

Now, my purpose is not primarily to change the assessment that was made of the old data, which I think could simply be replaced by the new data. I'm not saying we should not have a consideration of the old data, but it's simply obsolete.

8 I'm not in that sense going through the same
9 kinds of criticisms of individuals and of the studies
10 that are being made. I'm not trying to reject the
11 old studies for the reason that they're old, but simply
12 because there are better data available now.

That's to me at least quite a different kind
of criticism than individual attacks on each individual
study.

16 Q So yours is a professional difference of 17 opinion with them, but their difference with your work, 18 you would characterize as an attack?

19 A. No, it's not really so much a professional 20 difference of opinion. I'm saying, you know, this is what 21 they should have done and didn't do, rather than, you know, 22 this is what was done and it's terrible, or something of 23 that sort.

Q. Is your opinion of the BEIR III Committee's
25 report and their work influenced at all by that Committee's

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

expressed conclusions about your statistical work? 1 2 Well, the truth of the matter is that, although A. 3 it might have been customary to circulate these things beforehand, I didn't really see any of this very much be-4 5 forehand. 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 6 I had talked to Radford who was the Chairman 7 of BEIR II a little bit about this. I had some informa -8 tion. 9 But as far as I'm concerned, it is not the 10 critique of our work which is my critique of BEIR III. 11 It is the fact that they didn't use the data that now 12 exists. 13 It is -- Actually I didn't -- I expressed 14 my views about the failure of BEIR III to do this before 15 I even saw most of the things that they have actually 16 said or written. 17 In fact, I don't seriously -- you know, I 18 don't spend a lot of time reading those things. I get a --19 They say the same thing over and over again. So I 20 don't respond to criticism in this way, like answering 21 it or anything of that sort. 22 Are you generally familiar, or have you spent 0. 23 enough time looking at the BEIR Committee Report so that 24 you're generally familiar with the type of people who serve 25 on the BEIR Committee?

26-7

26 - 8Well, I know Radford. And I know a couple of A. 1 the people who -- I guess they put on as chairman to replace 2 him, but if you're asking for names, I'll have trouble. 3 In general, I had some personal contact of 4 one kind or another, not necessarily in the preparation 5 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 of the BEIR III operations where I didn't see people, 6 but prior to that with most -- with some at least of the 7 persons on that committee. 8 Would you say there are in fact renowned 0. 9 biostatisticians on the BEIR Committee? 10 Well, they don't have representation of A. 11 12 persons who in my view are outstanding statisticians or in my view are outstanding epidemiologists, although some 13 of them like Radford is someone who I would certainly 14 15 accept as a peer. 16 But most of the persons on the Committee -the predominance of that Committee consists of persons who 17 18 are not either statisticians or epidemiologists. There's 19 only a couple who could come anywhere close. 20 Edward Radford you would qualify as a peer 0. 21 of yours, but not as an outstanding scholar in the field? 22 Well, I suppose it's impolitic to make A. 23 a personal judgment of persons at an open hearing where 24 it would go into print. But I'm afraid that I would have

1528

to say that we both served on the Committee, and we talk

25

to each other and so forth. 1 I don't -- I think Radford is a very 2 sincere person. But he's not, in my view, the kind of 3 person who can do the statistical analyses that I think 4 are called for. 5 300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345 0. And there is no one, in fac , on that 6 Committee who in your view is capable of doing the type 7 of work which is called for --8 Well, I can't remember every single person on 9 A. the Committee. But the bulk of the members of the Com-10 mittee are persons who -- for instance, radiologists, 11 12 I believe, and health physicists -- persons who have long 13 associations. 14 Q I'm talking mostly about the epidemiologists c. the biostatisticians. 15 16 I think that the person associated with the A. 17 Japanese A-bomb data -- but I actually can't remember the 18 name of the person ... but I think he took over for 19 Radford. 20 And I -- you know, I respect the man. 21 Gilbert Bebee? Q. 22 A. Yes. 23 -- from NCI? Q. 24 A. That's it. 25 He is a respectable epidemiologist in your Q.

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

27-1

300 7TH STREET, S.W., REPORTERS BUILDING, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20024 (202) 554-2345

view?

Well, I have dealt with Bebee on occasions. A. And I -- you know, I don't have the same negative attitude, let's say, towards him that I would have towards other members of the BEIR Committee who are in my view completely unqualified. JUDGE WOLFE: All right. We'll now recess until 9:00 a.m. (Whereupon, at 6:02 p.m. the hearing was recessed, to reconvene at 9:00 a.m., Wednesday, March 31, 1982 in the same place.)

NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

This is to certify that the attached proceedings before the

in the matter of: LOUISIANA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY (WATERFORD)

Date of Proceeding: March 30, 1982

Docket Number: 50-382-OL

Place of Proceeding: New Orleans, Louisiana

were held as herein appears, and that this is the original transcript thereof for the file of the Commission.

Mary L. Bagby

Official Reporter (Typed)

Official Reporter (Signature)